COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

Westminster School District

Westminster Teachers Association

July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2024

Board Approved: January 19, 2023

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT Westminster School District WESTMINSTER TEACHERS ASSOCIATION July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article I	Preamble	. 1
Article II	Recognition	. 2
Article III	Association Rights	. 3
Article IV	Management Rights	. 7
Article V	Grievance Procedure	10
Article VI	Evaluation	16
Article VII	Transfers and reassignments	22
Article VIII	Leaves	29
Article IX	Class Size	43
Article X	Safety	45
Article XI	Hours/Work Year	46
Article XII	Health and Welfare	52
Article XIII	Wages	57
Article XIV	Summer School and Extended School Year (ESY)	63
Article XV	Layoff and Rehiring	64
Article XVI	Peer Assistance Review and Beginning Teacher	
	Support Program (PAR/BTSA)	67
Article XVII	Professional Growth	73
Article XVIII	Personal & Academic Freedom	74
Article XIX	Special Education	7 5
Article XX	Concerted Activities	76
Article XXI	Statutory Changes, Separability & Savings	77
Article XXII	Negotiations Procedures	78
Article XXIII	Completion of Meet and Negotiate	79
	Agreement	80
	Appendix	81

ARTICLE I - PREAMBLE

2021-2024

The articles and provisions contained herein constitute a bilateral and binding agreement by and between the Board of Trustees of the Westminster School District, hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the Westminster Teachers Association/California Teachers Association/National Education Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association."

This agreement is entered into pursuant to Chapter 10.7, Sections 3540-3549 of the Government Code.

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from July 1, 2021 until June 30, 2024.

2021-2024

ARTICLE II - RECOGNITION

Section 1 - Recognition

1.1 The District hereby confirms the certification of the Association as the exclusive representative for the following certificated unit:

Included:

1.1.1 All regular, full-time and part-time, probationary and permanent certificated employees, and temporary certificated employees as defined in Education Code Section 44920, Speech, Language and Hearing Specialists, Psychologists, Preschool Teachers, Nurses, Counselors and summer school teachers.

Excluded:

- 1.1.2 All other employees, including substitutes and confidential, supervisory and management employees as defined in the Educational Employment Relations Act.
- 1.2 The Parties agree that the unit described above is the appropriate unit and that they will not seek by any means to amend or change in any way the unit described herein during the period of time this contract is in effect. Nothing agreed to herein will prevent adjustments to the unit to be made upon mutual agreement of the District and the Association. Further, all newly created certificated positions except for those that are management, confidential, or supervisory, shall be assigned to the bargaining unit. Prior to designating any certificated position as management, confidential, or supervisory, the District agrees to meet and discuss the placement of positions with the association and attempt to reach mutual agreement. Disputed cases shall be submitted to the PERB for resolution.

Section 1 - Association

- 1.1 The Association and its members shall have the right to reasonable use, without charge, of District office equipment, audio-visual equipment, facilities, and buildings, except that charges may be levied for any supplies used or for any building or facilities used for which the general public would be charged.
- 1.2 The Association shall have the right to post notices of activities and matters of Association concern on specified bulletin boards, at least one of which shall be provided at each school site in areas frequented by unit members. The Association may use the District mail service and unit member mail boxes for communications to unit members.
- 1.3 The parties agree that nothing in Article III, Sections 1.1 or 1.2 is designed to allow the printing or distribution of any materials which violate the Education Code. In this respect, the Association will not use District services for activities prohibited under SB82.
- 1.4 Authorized representatives of the Association shall be permitted to transact official Association business on school property at reasonable times but may not contact unit members while unit members are at work.
- 1.5 The Association President or his/her designee shall be provided 111 days (60%) of paid release time to fulfill organizational duties and engage in collaborative activities with the District. The District shall engage the services of a substitute, temporary, probationary or permanent employee to fulfill the duties of the Association President's regular assignment.

The cost of the Association President's release time shall be primarily borne by the District and the Association shall pay \$9,000.00 annually. The Association President shall continue to receive the same salary and benefits he/she would have received had he/she remained in his/her regular assignment.

The Association shall determine a schedule of release time prior to the start of each school year subject to the approval of the Superintendent. Occasional variations to the agreed schedule may be made by mutual agreement of the Association President with the concurrence of the employees' immediate supervisor and/or the Superintendent.

The Association agrees that these days of released time shall not be used for participation in a conference or meeting which deals with an issue on which the Board of Trustees has taken an official position of opposition, or that deals with strike, work stoppage, sick-in, or any form of work slowdown.

Authorization for the use of these released days shall be granted by the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, or designee. A letter from the Association President will be submitted. The Association will reimburse the District for the cost of substitutes in excess of the release time paid by the District.

- 1.6 The District shall provide up to a total of 40 days of paid release time to Association leaders for purposes of meeting with District management as mutually scheduled and agreed to between the Superintendent and the Association's President (i.e., WSD/WTA Communications). The District will continue to provide paid release time in addition to these 40 days for unit members to participate in the Professional Development Committee, Health and Welfare Benefits Committee, Budget Advisory Committee, and District/Association Bargaining Sessions. In addition, the District will provide paid release time for the WTA Executive Board, WTA Negotiations team, and no more than two (2) association representatives per site/location to attend one Joint Training session per year as scheduled at a mutually agreed upon date and time.
- 1.7 Unless a unit member requests that his/her data not be provided, names, assignments, and non-confidential address and phone numbers of all unit members shall be provided without cost to the Association no later than October 15 of each school year.

Section 2 - Access to Information

- 2.1 The Board shall give to the Association, upon request, a single copy of available information, statistics, and records necessary to negotiations or necessary for the proper administration or enforcement of this Agreement.
- 2.2 The Association shall have the right to receive one copy of the Board of Trustees agenda packet with all non-confidential supporting information on the morning of the next work day after the agenda is released to the Board.

Interpretation of Article III, Section 2.2 of the current Collective Bargaining Agreement Between District and WTA.

We interpret the above cited Section of the collective bargaining agreement to require the District to make available to the Association notice of special meetings of the Board called pursuant to Section 35144 of the Education Code in the same manner as a regular meeting. In addition, the District shall attempt to notify the WTA by telephone of a special meeting. In the case of a special meeting, the District shall provide the meeting call and any agenda plus non-confidential supporting material.

- 2.3 The Association shall have the right to receive a copy of the preliminary District budget for the ensuing year at the time it is forwarded to the Board of Trustees and the adopted budget at the time it is adopted.
- 2.4 The Association shall have the right, at reasonable times, to review and make a copy of other non-confidential materials in the possession of or produced by the District, necessary for the Association to fulfill its role as the exclusive bargaining agent.

Section 3 - Payroll Deductions

- 3.1 The District shall deduct, free of cost, authorized amount from the salary of unit members and make appropriate remittance for Association dues/fees. Upon appropriate written authorization from the unit member, the District shall deduct, free of cost, authorized amounts from the salary of any unit member for annuities, credit union payments, District-wide charitable donation, or any other plans or programs mutually agreed to by the District and the Association. The right of payroll deduction check-off privileges for payment of organization dues/fees shall be accorded by the District exclusively to the Association and shall not be accorded to any other organization whose members are part of the bargaining unit represented by this Agreement. The Association shall receive all sums deducted by the District related to unit member dues/fees on a monthly basis.
- 3.2 The unit members' dues/fees shall be remitted to the Association on the first payday of the month. The District will provide the Association with a list of certificated employees from whom such deductions are made with each monthly remittance to the Association.

Section 4 - Organizational Security

4.1 Any unit member who applies for membership shall sign and deliver to the District an assignment authorizing deduction of unified membership dues to the Association.

Pursuant to such authorization the District shall deduct appropriately pro-rated deductions from the regular salary checks of the unit members. Deductions for unit members who signed such authorizations after the commencement of the school year shall be appropriately pro-rated to complete payment by the end of the school year.

- 4.1.1 The Association shall indemnify and hold the Employer and its employees or agents harmless from any and all claims, demands, suits or any action arising from the Organizational Security provision contained herein.
- 4.2 With respect to all sums deducted by the District, for membership dues or agency fee, the District agrees promptly to remit such monies to the Association, accompanied by an alphabetical list of unit members for whom such deductions have been made, categorizing them as to membership, and percentage of employment of less than full time, and shall indicate any changes in personnel from the list previously furnished.
- 4.3 The Association agrees to furnish any information needed by the District to fulfill the provisions of this Article. Changes in the amount of dues to be deducted shall be certified by the Association twenty (20) days before the effective date of change.
- 4.4 In no instance will any employee be dismissed because of failure to pay Association dues/fees.

ARTICLE III - ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

2021-2024

- 4.5 In any instance in which the provisions of this Article are contested, the Association agrees to pay to the District all reasonable legal fees and costs incurred in defending against the court or administrative action.
 - 4.5.1 It is understood that the expenses referred to above will not include District staff time normally expended.
- 4.6 The District shall not make dues deductions from unit members who are in an unpaid status.

Section 5 - Nondiscrimination Clause

5.1 The District shall not discriminate against any employee on the basis of ethnic group identification, religion, age, actual or perceived sex, sexual orientation, race, ancestry, national origin, gender, color, physical or mental disability, marital status, or Association membership.

ARTICLE IV - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Section 1 - Statutory Rights

- 1.1 All matters not specifically enumerated as within the scope of negotiations in Government Code 3543.2 are reserved to the District except as restricted by law. It is agreed that such reserved rights include, but are not limited to, the exclusive right and power to determine, implement, supplement, change, modify or discontinue, in whole or in part, temporarily or permanently, any of the following:
 - 1.1.1 The legal, operational, geographical, and organizational structure of the District, including the chain of command, division of authority, organizational divisions and subdivisions, external and internal boundaries of all kinds, and advisory commissions and committees;
 - 1.1.2 The financial structure of the District, including all sources and amounts of financial support, income, funding, taxes and debt, and all means and conditions necessary or incident to the securing of same, including compliance with any qualifications or requirements imposed by law or by funding sources as a condition of receiving funds; all investment policies and practices; all budgetary matters and procedures, including the budget calendar, the budget information process, accounting methods, fiscal and budget control policies and procedures, and all budgetary allocations, reserves, and expenditures apart from those expressly allocated to fund the wage and benefit obligations of the Agreement;
 - 1.1.3 The acquisition, disposition, number, location, types and utilization of all District properties, whether owned, leased, or otherwise controlled, including all facilities, grounds, parking areas and other improvements, and the personnel, work, service and activity functions assigned to such properties;
 - 1.1.4 All services to be rendered to the public and to District personnel in support of the services rendered to the public; the nature, methods, quality, quantity, frequency and standards of service, and the personnel, facilities, vendors, supplies, materials, vehicles, equipment and tools to be used in connection with such services; the subcontracting of services to be rendered and functions to be performed, including educational, support, construction, maintenance and repair services;
 - 1.1.5 The utilization of personnel not covered by this Agreement, including but not limited to substitutes, casual, provisional personnel, consultants, and supervisory or managerial personnel, to do work which is normally done by unit members covered hereby, and the methods of selection and assignment of such personnel;
 - 1.1.6 The educational policies, procedures, objectives, goals and programs, including those relating to curriculum, course content, textbook selection, educational equipment and supplies, student admission, student attendance, student

ARTICLE IV - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

transfers, grade level advancement, student guidance, grading, student testing, student records, health and safety, student conduct, student discipline, transportation, food services, racial and ethnic balance, student extracurricular and co-curricular activities, and emergency situations, and the substantive and procedural rights and obligations of students, parents, teachers, other personnel and the public with respect to such matters;

- 1.1.7 The selection, classification, direction, promotion, demotion, discipline for just cause and termination of all personnel of the District; affirmative action and equal employment policies and programs to improve the District's utilization of women and minorities; the assignment of unit members to any location (subject only to the express terms of this Agreement regarding transfers), and also to any facilities, classrooms, functions, activities, academic subject matters, grade levels, departments, tasks or equipment; and the determination as to whether, when and where there is a job opening;
- 1.1.8 The job classifications and the content and qualifications thereof;
- 1.1.9 The duties and standards of performance for all unit members; and whether any unit member adequately performs such duties and meets such standards, subject only to the express terms of Article VI, Evaluation Procedures;
- 1.1.10 The dates, times and hours of operation of District facilities, functions, and activities, work schedules, and the school calendar;
- 1.1.11 Safety and security measures for students, the public, properties, facilities, vehicles, materials, supplies, and equipment, including the various rules and duties for all personnel with respect to such matters;
- 1.1.12 The retirement of unit members for age or disability as provided by law; and
- 1.1.13 The layoff of unit members as the result of the exercise of any of the rights enumerated above or as a result of the exercise of any of the rights of the District not limited by the clear and explicit language of this Agreement, or by law.

Section 2 - Discretionary Rights

2.1 In addition to its statutory reserved rights, the District also retains within its sole discretion all rights and powers not expressly limited by the clear and explicit language of this Agreement, including but not limited to the exclusive right and power to determine, implement, supplement, change, modify, or discontinue, in whole or in part, temporarily or permanently, any of the following:

ARTICLE IV - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

2021-2024

- 2.1.1 The rates of pay for any classification implemented during the term of this Agreement;
- 2.1.2 Security and safety measures and rules for unit members;
- 2.1.3 The transfer of unit members District-wide;
- 2.1.4 Staffing patterns, class sizes and teacher-student norms; and
- 2.1.5 The administration of all unit member health and benefit plans, including the selection of all carriers of health and benefit plans, and the manner and method of funding such plans.

Section 3 - Miscellaneous

- 3.1 All other rights of management not expressly limited by the clear and explicit language of this Agreement are also expressly reserved to the District even though not enumerated above, and the express provisions of this Agreement constitute the only contractual limitations upon the District's rights. The exercise of any right reserved to the District herein in a particular manner or the nonexercise of any such right shall not be deemed a waiver of the District's right or preclude the District from exercising the right in a different manner.
- 3.2 Any dispute arising out of or in any way connected with either the existence of or the exercise of any of the rights of the District set forth herein above, or any other rights of the District not expressly limited by the clear and explicit language of this Agreement, or arising out of or in any way connected with the effects of the exercise of any of such rights, is not subject to the grievance provisions set forth in Article V, except that discipline for just cause shall be subject to Article V.
- 3.3 The District agrees that nothing contained within this Article shall diminish, negate or abrogate any other Article or provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

2021-2024

Section 1 - Definitions

- 1.1 "Grievance" an allegation by a grievant that there has been a misinterpretation, a misapplication, or a violation of a specific provision of this Agreement.
- 1.2 "Grievant" an individual member in the bargaining unit covered by the terms of this Agreement who alleges a grievance, or a group of members similarly situated if the District, the Association, and the individual grievant all consent to such group grievance, or the Association when it is the injured party.
- 1.3 "Day" a day in which the central administrative office of the District is open for business.
- 1.4 "Immediate Supervisor" the supervising administrator having immediate jurisdiction over the grievant at the time of the alleged infraction.

Section 2 - General Provisions

- 2.1 No unit member shall suffer reprisals or reduction in status solely as a result of having presented a grievance, or having presented evidence in a grievance.
- 2.2 Should a grievant choose to pursue a grievance without the intervention of the exclusive representative, then, prior to any final resolution of the grievance at any level, the District shall convey a copy of the grievance, and its proposed resolution to the Association and shall allow the Association seven (7) days to comment thereon. In such cases time limits will be extended appropriately.
- 2.3 Forms for filing grievances, serving notices, taking appeals, making reports and recommendations, and other necessary documents will be prepared jointly and given appropriate distribution by the District. The cost of preparing such forms shall be borne by the District.
- 2.4 All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance will be filed in a separate grievance file and will not be kept in the personnel file of any of the participants.
- 2.5 Any grievance should be treated as confidential information by all parties concerned until the final decision is made.
- 2.6 The grievant or his/her representative shall have access to any documents and school district records not privileged under law which are necessary to the resolution of the grievance.

ARTICLE V - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

2021-2024

- 2.7 The time limits specified at each level should be considered maximums and every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, in each of Levels One and Two, either party may request, in writing, an extension of time for extenuating circumstances. It is the intent of the parties that such requests shall be granted.
- 2.8 Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limits, shall permit the grievant to proceed to the next step.
- 2.9 Failure at any step of the procedure to appeal a grievance to the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed as acceptance of the decision as rendered.
- 2.10 A unit member may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by himself/herself or, at his/her option, by an Association representative, or by both.
- 2.11 All communications (other than decisions rendered), notices and papers required to be in writing shall be served personally, by certified United States mail, by facsimile or electronic mail, as agreed to by the parties.
- 2.12 Decisions rendered at all levels of the grievance procedure will be in writing setting forth the decision and the reasons therefore and will be transmitted promptly to the grievant and to the Association (by regular mail). Time limits for appeal provided in each level shall begin the school day following receipt of the written decision by the interested parties.
- 2.13 The filing of a grievance shall in no way interfere with the right of the District to carry out its management responsibilities, subject to the final decision of the grievance. In the event the alleged grievance involves an order, requirement, or other directive, the grievant shall fulfill or carry out such order, requirement or other directive, pending the final decision of the grievance.
- 2.14 The Grievance Procedure shall not be used to challenge or change policies, regulations, or procedures of the District which are not included in this Agreement; nor shall the Grievance Procedure be used for other matters for which specific methods of review are provided by law, or by district policies, rules, or regulations.
- 2.15 When it is necessary for a grievant or representative designated by the Association to attend a grievance meeting or hearing during the school day, he/she will be released without loss of pay in order to permit participation in the foregoing activities. Any unit member who is required to appear in such meetings or hearings as a witness will be accorded the same right. Advance arrangements for participation of witnesses and representatives shall be made by the President of the Association with the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, or designee.
- 2.16 In the event that the Association is the grievant, the grievance shall be initiated at Level Two.

Section 3 - Procedures

3.1 Informal Level

- 3.1.1 Within twenty (20) days after the grievant knows or should have known that he/she has a grievance, he/she must first discuss the matter with the immediate supervisor in an effort to resolve the problem informally. The grievant and the immediate supervisor should make every attempt to resolve the difference in this manner. The unit member must identify the conference as an informal level conference in the supervisor's office.
- 3.1.2 If an informal settlement is not effected, the grievant may proceed immediately to the formal level.

3.2 Formal Level One

- 3.2.1 Within five (5) days after the informal conference, the grievant may present his/her grievance on the prescribed form to his/her immediate supervisor. The form shall include statements indicating:
 - 3.2.1.1 nature of the grievance;
 - 3.2.1.2 the specific provision(s) of the contract allegedly violated;
 - 3.2.1.3 the specific remedy sought to resolve the grievance.
- 3.2.2 The immediate supervisor shall communicate his/her decision in writing within seven (7) days after receiving the grievance. If the administrator does not respond within the time limits, the grievant may appeal to the next level.
- 3.2.3 A conference shall be held within the above time limits at the request of either the grievant or the immediate supervisor.

3.3 Formal Level Two

- 3.3.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level One, he/she may appeal the decision on the appropriate form to the Superintendent or Superintendent's designee within seven (7) days after the receipt of the decision. This statement shall include a copy of the original grievance and appeal, the decisions rendered, and a clear, concise statement of the reasons for the appeal.
- 3.3.2 The Superintendent or designee shall communicate his/her decision to the grievant in writing seven (7) days after receiving the grievance. If the Superintendent or designee does not respond within the time limit provided, the grievant may appeal to the next level.

2021-2024

3.3.3 A conference shall be held within the above time limits at the request of either the grievant, Superintendent, or designee.

3.4 Formal Level Three

- 3.4.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level Two, he/she may request in writing that the Association submit his/her grievance to arbitration within ten (10) days after the receipt of the decision.
- 3.4.2 The Association by written notice to the Superintendent within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the request from the grievant may submit the grievance to arbitration or appeal the grievance to the Board of Trustees. If the Board determines to hear the matter, the Board shall hear and decide the matter within thirty (30) working days of the appeal unless otherwise mutually agreed to. In the event that the Board decides the matter, its decision shall be final and binding. If the Board of Trustees decides not to hear the grievance, it shall notify the Association in writing within twenty (20) working days from receipt of the request for appeal and the Association may proceed through the regular Level Three procedures.
- 3.4.3 Submission to arbitration shall be made to the American Arbitration Association (AAA). The parties will then be bound by the rules and procedures of the AAA in the selection of an arbitrator and the arbitrator shall proceed under the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules of the AAA.
- 3.4.4 The arbitrator's decision will be in writing and will set forth his/her findings of fact, reasoning, and conclusions on the issues submitted.
- 3.4.5 The arbitrator will be without power or authority to make any decisions which require the commission of an act prohibited by law or which is in violation of the terms of this Agreement. However, it is agreed that the arbitrator is empowered to include in any award such financial reimbursements or other remedies as he/she judges to be proper.

The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, amend, change, add to, or subtract from any of the terms of this Agreement, but shall determine only whether or not there has been a violation of this Agreement as complained of by the grievant. The decision of the arbitrator shall be based solely upon the evidence and arguments presented to him/her by the respective parties in the presence of each other, and upon post-hearing briefs of the parties.

This Agreement constitutes a contract between the parties which shall be interpreted and applied by the parties and by the arbitrator in the same manner as any other contract under the laws of the State of California. The function and purpose of the arbitrator is to determine disputed interpretation of terms actually

ARTICLE V - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

found in the Agreement, or to determine disputed facts upon which the application of the Agreement depends. The arbitrator shall therefore not have authority, nor shall he/she consider it his/her function to decide any issue not submitted, or to so interpret or apply the Agreement as to change what can fairly be said to have been the intent of the parties as determined by generally accepted rules of contract construction. Past practice of the parties in interpreting or applying terms of this Agreement may be relevant evidence, but shall not be used so as to justify, or result in, what is in effect a modification (whether by addition or detraction) of the written terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall not render any decision or award, or fail to render any decision or award, merely because in his/her opinion such decision or award is fair or equitable.

No decision rendered by the arbitrator shall be retroactive beyond the beginning of the term of the Agreement.

If a grievance is not processed by the grievant and Association in accordance with the time limit set forth in this article, it shall not be subject to arbitration and shall be considered settled on the basis of the decision last made by the District. If the District fails to respond to the grievance in a timely manner at any step, the grievant may proceed to the next step.

Processing and discussing the merits of an asserted grievance shall not constitute a waiver by the District of a defense that the dispute is not grievable.

The arbitrator may hear and determine only one grievance at a time unless the District expressly agrees otherwise. However, both parties will in good faith endeavor to handle in an expeditious and convenient manner cases which involve the same or similar facts and issues.

The arbitrator shall submit his/her findings and recommendations in writing to the District, the grievant, and the Association. The arbitrator's recommendations made thereafter shall be final and binding upon the grievant, the Association, and the District, except that the findings and recommendation of the arbitrator shall not be binding upon the District or its governing body if said recommendation requires any appropriation of funds which exceed ten percent (10%) of the unrestricted contingency at the filing of Formal Level One grievance or Formal Level Two if the Association files the grievance.

If, within ten (10) working days, the District or Governing Board does not implement such an award, that exceeds the aforementioned contingency figures, the Association may enforce the provisions of this contract in a court of competent jurisdiction or in other legal bodies such as PERB.

ARTICLE V - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

2021-2024

3.4.6 The costs for the services of the arbitrator, including per diem expenses, if any, and his/her travel and subsistence expenses and the cost of any hearing room will be borne by the parties equally. All other costs will be borne by the party incurring them.

Section 4 - Court Procedure

- 4.1 Since this contract is binding on both parties, each party has the right to enforce provisions of this Agreement in a Court of Competent Jurisdiction.
- 4.2 The Association may elect to use court procedures and forego the Arbitration Procedures.

Section 1 - Certificated Evaluation Procedures

1.1 Formal Evaluation

- 1.1.1 Evaluations shall be conducted by the evaluatee's immediate supervisor or designee. An evaluatee will be notified by October 1 if the evaluator is other than the immediate supervisor. An evaluatee may submit a request for a change of evaluator to the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources.
- 1.1.2 All provisional, temporary and probationary contract unit members shall be formally evaluated once every year. This evaluation shall be completed by February 28. All unit members on categorical contracts shall be evaluated on the same schedule as probationary employees for the first two (2) years of employment. Starting year three (3), the evaluations will occur on the same schedule as permanent unit members.
- 1.1.3 All permanent unit members shall be formally evaluated every other year. Permanent unit member evaluations shall be completed not later than thirty (30) days before the end of the school year and shall be discussed with the evaluatee at that time. If an evaluatee's performance does not meet one or more of the three standards being evaluated, the evaluation will take place annually on those specific standards until the performance meets standards. If an evaluatee's overall performance does not meet standards, the entire evaluation will take place annually until the overall performance meets standards. The District may require an evaluatee receiving a does not meets standards evaluation to participate in a program to improve the evaluatee's performance. Such a program shall take place during release time within the work day. Special Services employees (psychologists, speech and language pathologists, school nurses, and counselors) will continue to utilize the P-12 evaluation form.
 - 1.1.3.1 If the evaluatee and the evaluator agree, the two year evaluation cycle set forth in 1.1.3 may be extended by three (3) additional years, to a five (5) year cycle, for permanent unit members who have been employed by the District at least ten (10) years, are Highly Qualified as defined in 20 U.S.C. Section 7801 and whose previous evaluation met standards. The unit member or evaluator may withdraw consent for this evaluation cycle at any time. The determination to extend or withdraw consent by the District shall be at the sole discretion of the evaluator. During the non-evaluation years, the unit member will complete the Goal Setting form identified in 1.3.8.

Last Evaluation	Next Evaluation in
	1.1.3.1
2013-2014	2018-2019
2014-2015	2019-2020
2015-2016	2020-2021
2016-2017	2021-2022

ARTICLE VI - EVALUATION

- 1.1.4 An evaluatee's formal evaluation will be discussed with him/her at a conference and a written copy of it given to the unit member at that time. If an evaluator has made reasonable attempts to schedule the conference in a timely manner and the evaluatee is unable to meet with the evaluator prior to the deadline for the formal evaluation due to absences or other circumstances, a copy of the evaluation will be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the last known address, and a conference will be held as soon thereafter as reasonably possible. The evaluatee may write a response to the evaluation which will be placed in his/her personnel file.
- 1.1.5 A unit member transferred to a new and different job classification shall be evaluated in that new classification in that year, if he/she has no previous experience in that area within the last seven (7) years, even though the person was evaluated the previous year. (Classification teacher, nurse, psychologist, counselor, speech and language pathologist.)

1.2 Criteria

All unit members will be evaluated on three of the following criteria as they relate to their specific positions. The Superintendent and/or designee shall choose one standard each year on which all unit members shall be evaluated, the evaluator shall choose a second standard, and the evaluatee shall choose a third standard.

- 1.2.1 CSTP Standard 1: Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning
- 1.2.2 CSTP Standard 2: Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments for Student Learning
- 1.2.3 CSTP Standard 3: Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter for Student Learning
- 1.2.4 CSTP Standard 4: Planning Instruction and Designing Learning Experiences for All Students
- 1.2.5 CSTP Standard 5: Assessing Student Learning
- 1.2.6 CSTP Standard 6: Developing as a Professional Educator

1.3 Initial Conference

1.3.1 No later than October 31 of each year, an initial conference shall be held between the unit member who is being evaluated and the evaluator. For those unit members employed after the start of the school year, the initial conference shall take place within the first six (6) weeks of employment.

If a unit member is unable to meet during the initial conference period due to an extended absence, the initial conference will be completed within three (3) weeks of the unit member's return to work.

1.3.2 Prior to the initial conference, the evaluator will:

- 1.3.2.1 Ensure the unit member being evaluated has copies of the California Standards for the Teaching Profession, Board-adopted goals and objectives, relevant District standards of expected student achievement, school identified goals and objectives, and appropriate unit member job descriptions.
- 1.3.2.2 Review the evaluation criteria and process.
- 1.3.3 At the initial conference, the following will be mutually agreed upon in writing on the Initial Conference Agreement form for those participating in the evaluation process:

1.3.3.1	Class Profile
1.3.3.2	Learning Environment
1.3.3.3	Goals for the Year
1.3.3.4	Evaluation Areas
1.3.3.5	Support Needed

- 1.3.4 An Initial Conference Agreement form will be completed, co-signed, and a copy given to the unit member. The evaluator will retain a copy. At the initial evaluation conference for unit members other than teachers, mutually agreed upon goals and objectives for performance relative to the unit member's major duties and responsibilities will be determined.
- 1.3.5 If mutual agreement on the Initial Conference Agreement form cannot occur, and an item is added without mutual agreement, it should be labeled "included at the evaluator's request" or "included at the evaluatee's request." Evaluation on such items is at the discretion of the evaluator. If the evaluatee wishes, he/she may attach a rebuttal sheet to the Initial Conference Agreement form.
- 1.3.6 During the initial conference, if there are any areas of concern that the supervisor is aware of at that time that may result in a does not meet standards performance rating, they will be discussed and included on the Initial Conference Agreement form. Notification of these areas of concern shall be made to the unit member in a timely manner prior to the initial conference period in the fall if the supervisor is aware of them prior to that time.
- 1.3.7 The Initial Conference Agreement form may be modified by mutual consent at any time during the year.
- 1.3.8 Unit members who are not in their evaluation year shall complete the Goal Setting form as described in the evaluation process by the end of the first trimester.

1.4 Assessment

- 1.4.1 Evaluation should be conducted with mutual respect and confidence.
- 1.4.2 Evaluation will be based on objective data compiled by the evaluatee and the evaluator on the attainment of student standards, first-hand observation, visitations, and professional judgments by the evaluator after consultation with the evaluatee.
- 1.4.3 The evaluatee shall be observed by the evaluator at least two (2) times prior to the final evaluation. Prior to each formal observation, the Teacher Pre-Observation form will be completed by the evaluatee. Upon mutual agreement between the evaluatee and evaluator, a lesson plan can be provided in addition to or in lieu of the Teacher Pre-Observation form. Formal observations shall take place at times mutually agreed to between the evaluatee and the evaluator. Informal observations may occur at any time without prior agreement. All observations may be used in the evaluation process.
- 1.4.4 A conference between the evaluatee and the evaluator will be scheduled within one week of the evaluator's formal observation of the evaluatee's classroom. During this conference the Teacher Post Observation Reflective Questions Guide can be used to elicit a discussion of the evaluator's observation of the classroom lesson and the evaluatee's reflection on the lesson he/she delivered.
 - Any concerns on the part of the evaluator should be identified and addressed at this time and an additional observation can be scheduled through mutual agreement as appropriate. Any concerns that may result in a potential evaluation rating of "Does Not Meet Standards" on the final evaluation should be addressed through a Performance Improvement Plan developed by the evaluator and evaluatee.
- 1.4.5 An evaluatee shall be given notice within a reasonable time of any action or inaction on the part of the evaluatee which may adversely affect an evaluation. Such notice shall be based on reliable information. The information and its source shall be disclosed in the notice. Concrete ways to improve substandard performances shall be included in the notice.

See Appendix for all evaluation related forms.

Section 2 - Change of Job Descriptions

2.1 If and when changed job descriptions are in a semi-final form, but prior to forwarding to the Board, the Superintendent, or designee, shall send the descriptions to the Association and, upon the Association's request, meet with representatives and discuss the descriptions with the representatives and obtain their suggestions and input. If there is a dispute on the changes, both management and the Association will have an opportunity to present the issues, in writing, to the Board of Trustees which shall make the final decision.

ARTICLE VI - EVALUATION

Section 3 - Unit Members' Personnel File

- 3.1 Materials in personnel files of unit members which may serve as a basis for affecting the status of their employment shall be made available for the inspection of the person involved.
- 3.2 Every unit member shall have the right to inspect ratings, reports, records and all other materials placed in his/her official personnel file which may serve as a basis for affecting the status of his/her employment, except as follows:
 - 3.2.1 Materials such as ratings, reports, or records which were obtained prior to the first date of district service;
 - 3.2.2 Materials prepared by identifiable examination committee members;
 - 3.2.3 Materials which were obtained in connection with a promotional examination.
- 3.3 Every unit member shall have the right to inspect such materials upon request, provided that the inspection is made at a time when such person is not actually required to render services to the District.
- 3.4 A unit member shall be provided any derogatory material or complaint before it is placed in his/her personnel file. He/she shall also be given an opportunity during normal business hours during non-student-contact time, and with released time to review the material and to prepare a written response to such material. The written response shall be attached to the material.

Section 4 - Complaints

4.1 In order to promote fair and constructive communication, the following procedure shall govern the resolution of complaints as they might relate to a unit member's evaluation. Every effort should be made to resolve a complaint at the earliest possible stage. Parents, guardians, unit members, and other school personnel are encouraged to orally resolve concerns with the unit member personally.

Supervisors shall request complainants to make direct contact with the unit member when it has not occurred prior to the supervisor being asked by a complainant to resolve a complaint. The steps listed below shall be followed in circumstances where the complainant initiates contact with a unit member's supervisor in order to notify the supervisor that in his/her opinion informal attempts by the parties to resolve a complaint have not been successful or the complainant is unwilling to initiate direct contact with the unit member.

2021-2024

- 4.2 No complaint shall be used in the evaluation of a unit member nor placed in the personnel file unless it has been documented and signed and the following process has been followed:
 - 4.2.1 The unit member's supervisor shall discuss the complaint with the unit member. The discussion will include both the nature and source of the complaint by name.
 - 4.2.2 The supervisor will investigate the complaint.
 - 4.2.3 Whenever possible, the supervisor will attempt to informally resolve the complaint.
 - 4.2.4 When informal attempts to resolve the complaint have failed, the complainant will be requested to put the complaint in writing and sign the complaint. If the complainant refuses, it will be so noted. At this time, the unit member's supervisor shall notify the unit member as to what steps will be taken next, if any. Information regarding the complaint shall be put in writing (the nature and source of the complaint shall be noted or a copy of the complainant's written complaint shall be included as an attachment) by the unit member's supervisor and given to the unit member if the complaint will be used in the unit member's evaluation or put in the unit member's personnel file.
 - 4.2.5 The unit member will be given an opportunity to attach a response to the complaint.

<u>Section 5 - Aides and Home/Hospital/Intervention Teachers</u>

5.1 Performance of an aide or home/hospital/intervention teacher will not affect the unit member's evaluation, insofar as such performance is within the control of the unit member.

Section 6 - Grievances

6.1 The evaluator's judgments and ratings are not subject to the grievance procedure. Failure only to follow procedures incorporated in Article VI is subject to the grievance procedure.

Section 7 – California Standards for Teaching Profession

7.1 In the event changes are needed, the District and Association shall convene a joint committee composed of up to four representatives each to review the evaluation process and evaluation forms aligned with the California Standards for the Teaching Profession (CSTP), and consistent with the Stull Act provisions contained in Education Code Section 44662. The District and Association shall establish a joint committee composed of up to four representatives each to develop a pilot evaluation instrument for special services employees (psychologist, speech and language pathologist, nurse, and counselor) and present recommendations to the District and Association bargaining teams for review and approval by February 1.

ARTICLE VII – TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS

Section 1 – Definitions

- 1.1 Transfer: A transfer refers to any District action resulting in the movement of a member of the unit from one position to another position. The term "from one position to another position" for the purposes of this Article only, shall be defined as follows: "The movement of a classroom teacher from one school site to another site within his/her credential(s)."
- 1.2 Intra-School Reassignment: A reassignment is a change in a teacher's assignment within a school site.
- 1.3 Intra-Departmental Reassignment: A reassignment of a non-classroom unit member (i.e. School Counselor, School Psychologist, Speech and Language Pathologist, School Nurse, Student Services TOSA), from one school/program assignment to another school/program assignment.
- 1.4 Specialized Programs: Specialized programs are positions that require a specialized credential or are assigned to a particular program. Examples of current positions are Teachers on Special Assignment, Elementary Visual and Performing Arts teachers, Physical Education and Dual Language Program teachers.

<u>Section 2 - Unit-Member Initiated Transfer</u> will be considered a Level 3 Transfer under Section 3 of this article and refers to a transfer which occurs as a result of a unit member's request.

- 2.1 Any unit member may apply for posted vacancies at Level 3 provided he/she is credentialed and qualified for the position.
- 2.2 A unit member shall first notify and upon request discuss the possible transfer with his/her immediate supervisor.
- 2.3 Any unit member applying for a transfer under this section who is appropriately credentialed is guaranteed an interview for the open position(s).
 - 2.3.1 Prior to the deadline for applying, the unit member may request a copy of their District seniority within the seniority list of the school to which they may wish to transfer. The seniority list will include seniority dates of the unit members already assigned to the school.
- 2.4 The filing of a request for a unit-member initiated transfer does not jeopardize the employee's current position, but reflects only a desire for professional growth.
- 2.5 The Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, or designee, shall grant the unit member one (1) day without instructional duties or equivalent sub pay to effect such transfer if the transfer occurs during the school year. An additional day may be granted if needed.

2021-2024

ARTICLE VII - TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS

<u>Section 3 - A District-Initiated Transfer</u> refers to any District action resulting in movement of a unit member from one school site to another because of increasing enrollment, declining enrollment, school openings, school closures, the need to balance staff and the need to displace unit members due to lay-off or restructure of programs.

- 3.1 An administrator shall use District seniority under this section when instituting a transfer unless compelling reason(s), such as specific and defensible needs of students, staff and/or educational programs, exist to override such use.
- 3.2 Prior to any staff notification, the immediate supervisor shall first meet and discuss the possible transfer with any considered unit member(s).
- 3.3 When compelling reason(s) override District seniority, the immediate supervisor shall meet with the unit member and provide in writing the compelling reason(s).
- 3.4 A unit member shall not be transferred more often than once every two (2) consecutive years under this section.
- 3.5 Every effort shall be made to notify a unit member by June 1 if he/she is to be transferred under this section.
- 3.6 All unit members transferred under a District-initiated transfer may apply for and shall be placed in non-specialized positions before any other unit members can apply for posted vacancies. Prior to the placement of probationary/permanent unit members transferred under this provision, the unit member may apply for open specialized positions.
 - 3.6.1 Unit members interested in vacant positions that exist in specialized programs must apply for the posted vacant position and will be granted an interview provided he/she is credentialed and qualified for the position. The District shall open vacant positions that exist in specialized programs to all unit members who may be interested in applying. Positions within specialized programs in the District are positions assigned to a particular department/program and not to the school in which the program may be located.
- 3.7 A unit member selected for a District-initiated transfer due to decreasing enrollment shall be given the opportunity to interview for posted specialized vacancies and/or notify the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, in writing of his/her top three priority choices for non-specialized placement. Every effort will be made to try to assign the unit member to one of his/her priorities. If the unit member is not assigned to one of his/her top priorities, the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, and the unit member will meet to explore options and mutually agree to an assignment. If no mutual agreement is reached, the unit member may continue to apply for posted positions until selected or administratively assigned.

ARTICLE VII - TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS

3.7.1 Unit members who must move from one school site to another due to increasing enrollment, declining enrollment, school openings, school closures, the need to balance staff and the need to move unit members due to lay-off or restructure of programs are considered to be "displaced." For the purposes of this section, all positions filled by temporary teachers during the school year, including those initially filled by temporary teachers who were then converted to probationary status after the beginning of the school year, shall be considered open and vacant when they continue to exist in the following school year. Such teachers shall be transferred after level two prior to level three.

Level One (District Initiated) - All open and vacant non-specialized classroom/program positions known to the District shall first be made available to displaced Probationary and Permanent unit members at the site level. Placement in the open and vacant positions shall be based on District seniority. If two or more unit members share the same district seniority date and have requested the same position, the tie shall be broken by the drawing of names. The drawing will be conducted by the immediate supervisor and with the presence of a WTA representative if requested by any of the involved unit members at the site. A displaced unit member who does not want to be placed in any of the open or vacant non-specialized classroom/program positions at his/her school site may pass on accepting any of these site positions and move on to Level Two or Three instead.

Level Two (District Initiated) - Following the conclusion of the Level One process at all school sites, all remaining open and vacant positions left unfilled from Level One and any new open and vacant non-specialized classroom/program positions known to the District shall be advertised only to the remaining displaced teachers from throughout the District. The District shall first seek volunteers for transfers at the school site where the displacement is taking place under this section. volunteers will be accepted unless it would be detrimental to the education program. When a teacher at the same site volunteers and is accepted in lieu of another teacher at the same site who is being displaced, this teacher is afforded the same rights and privileges as the person who is being displaced under this section. A displaced unit member who does not want to be placed in any of the open or vacant non-specialized classroom/program positions available at Level Two may pass on accepting any of the positions available during the Level Two process and move on to Level Three instead. All displaced teachers under this section will be provided with information from the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, which indicates where they fall in seniority rank among the existing staff at prospective sites where open and vacant non-specialized classroom/program positions are available at Level Two. Displaced teachers interested in placement in a vacant nonspecialized classroom/program position at Level Two shall submit their first through third assignment preferences to the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources. District seniority shall apply if two or more candidates want the same position.

ARTICLE VII – TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS

If two or more unit members share the same district seniority date and have requested the same position, the tie shall be broken by the drawing of names. The drawing will be conducted by the immediate supervisor and with the presence of a WTA representative if requested by any of the involved unit members at the site. The District shall make every effort to assign a displaced teacher under this section one of his/her three (3) preferences by June 1. If a teacher cannot be assigned to one of his/her three (3) preferences, the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, and the teacher shall meet to explore options and mutually agree to an assignment. If no mutual agreement is reached, the teacher may continue to apply for posted positions until selected or administratively assigned.

Level Three (Unit Member Initiated) - At the conclusion of Level One and Level Two, all open and vacant positions shall be posted for all unit members who did not participate in Level One and Level Two placement, all unit members returning full time from a shared contract, and all unit members returning from a leave of absence. When a job share breaks up, if both unit members came from the same site, or both unit members came from a different site, District seniority shall apply and the unit member with the most seniority has the first option of remaining at the same site and the unit member with the least seniority may participate in Level three placements. If one unit member came from a different site and one unit member was already at the job share site, the unit member who came from a different site may participate in Level three placements. All open and vacant positions shall be posted District-wide. Displaced unit members are not guaranteed priority consideration or placement at this Level.

- 3.8 The Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, or designee, shall grant the unit member two (2) days without instructional duties to effect such transfer or equivalent sub pay to effect the transfer should the unit member choose to perform those tasks on a non-workday mutually agreed upon between the unit member and the immediate supervisor. One additional day may be granted if needed.
- 3.9 Administrative assignment shall mean the placement of a certificated employee in a vacant position by the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, when he/she has been transferred by a District-initiated transfer or administrative transfer or returning from a leave of absence and has chosen not to screen for vacancies or has not been placed in a position by the first working day.
- 3.10 A probationary/permanent unit member displaced under this section shall retain the right of return to the site from which the unit member was displaced should there be an opening during the school year for which the displacement was necessitated. In the event that multiple displacements took place at that site for that same school year, unit members shall be offered the position in District seniority order. Passing on such an opening waives the unit member's right of return should there be further openings.

ARTICLE VII - TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS

<u>Section 4 - An Administrative Transfer</u> refers to any District action resulting in the movement of a unit member from one position to another position, excluding sections two and three above, for just cause.

- 4.1 The immediate supervisor shall first discuss the possible transfer with the unit member.
- 4.2 Upon request by the unit member, the immediate supervisor shall place in writing the reason(s) for the transfer.
- 4.3 Every effort shall be made to notify a unit member by June 1 if he/she is to be transferred under this section.
- 4.4 A unit member may appeal a transfer under this section to the Superintendent who shall make the final determination which is subject only to any rights the unit member may have under the grievance procedure.
- 4.5 A unit member may be granted, upon request to the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, two (2) days without instructional duties or equivalent sub pay to effect such transfer if the transfer occurs during the school year. One additional day may be granted if needed.

<u>Section 5 - Mutual Exchange of Position</u> refers to transfer which occurs as a result of two (2) unit members mutually agreeing to exchange positions.

- 5.1 Exchange transfers may only occur with the mutual concurrence of each unit member's respective supervisor.
- 5.2 Exchange transfers may occur only if the unit members in question hold the appropriate credentials.
- 5.3 Transfers under this section shall be coordinated by the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, and shall be for a period of one (1) full year.
- 5.4 At the conclusion of the one-year exchange, each unit member will automatically return to his/her previous assignment unless all parties involved agree to make the exchange permanent.

Section 6 - Intra-School or Intra-Departmental Reassignment

- 6.1 An immediate supervisor may make reassignments of existing staff without advertising and screening.
- 6.2 When reassignments are necessary, the immediate supervisor shall first meet and gather input regarding the possible reassignment with any considered unit member.

ARTICLE VII - TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS

- 6.3 In making this decision, the immediate supervisor shall consider the following (not listed in priority order) when reassigning staff: District Seniority, teacher preference, needs of the students, needs of the educational program, needs of the staff, and prior number of times a unit member has been transferred and/or reassigned.
- 6.4 Once the decision has been made, the immediate supervisor shall meet to notify each unit member being reassigned.
 - 6.4.1 Every effort shall be made to notify all teachers by June 1 if he/she is to be reassigned under this section.
 - 6.4.2 Every effort shall be made to notify Itinerant Support Staff by June 1 but no later than 30 days prior to the first day of school.
- 6.5 Upon request by the unit member, the immediate supervisor shall place in writing the reason(s) for the reassignments in the Intra-School/Intra-Departmental Form (appendix page 131).
- 6.6 At the beginning of each school year, teachers at a site shall be given the opportunity to complete Assignment Preference Form notifying their immediate supervisor of the position(s) they would like to be considered for should they become vacant at any time during the school year. Before a site vacancy is filled, the immediate supervisor shall announce to the staff in writing the vacancy for two (2) working days. In the spring, teachers at a site shall fill out the Assignment Preference Form for reassignment to desired positions in the fall or should positions become vacant during summer recess. It is understood that teachers may revise their forms at any time during the year. Before a vacancy is posted, the immediate supervisor shall give consideration to these written requests for reassignment from the teachers at that site and conference with the teacher during the school year. A reasonable effort will be made to conference with the teacher at other times.

At the beginning of the school year but no later than October 1, Itinerant Support Staff shall complete the Assignment Preference Form (appendix page 127-google form) notifying their immediate supervisor of the assignments they would like to be considered for should said reassignments become available at any time during the school year. Additionally, by March 1 of each school year, Itinerant Support Staff shall complete the Assignment Preference Form notifying their immediate supervisor of the assignments they would like to be considered for the ensuing school year. It is understood that Itinerant Support Staff may revise their form at any time during the year. A reasonable effort will be made to conference with Itinerant Support Staff at other times.

6.7 Reassignment provisions shall not apply once a site opening has been posted as a District vacancy.

ARTICLE VII – TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS

Section 7 - Announcement of Vacancies

- 7.1 The Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, is responsible for advertising vacancies, coordinating the screening process with the principals or administrators, and for making recommendations to the Superintendent for all assignments.
- 7.2 Announcement of vacancies shall include, when known, but not be limited to, site location, position, grade level, subject matter, required qualifications, desired qualifications, and the closing date for filing. Job descriptions shall be available in the office of Certificated Human Resources.
- 7.3 Announcement of vacancies shall be sent to all schools, departments, unit members and the Association office via @wsdk8.us email.
- 7.4 Announcement of vacancies shall be posted for no less than seven (7) days.
- 7.5 A unit member may apply for posted vacancies by notifying the Human Resources Office in writing.
- 7.6 An applicant shall not be considered for a vacancy unless he/she meets the qualifications on the posted vacancy (e.g., credential). An applicant with an emergency credential shall not be selected over a candidate with a credential.
- 7.7 Unit member(s) not qualified or not selected for a position shall be notified in writing within seven (7) days following the screening period.
- 7.8 The District shall notify all unit members via @WSDK8.US email during the summer recess of posted vacancies which may occur during that period of time.

Section 8 - Screening Process

The District shall use the following process for filling vacancies:

- 8.1 The District shall screen outside applicants in a manner it deems appropriate and forward to the school or program the names of unit member applicants and those outside applicants whom the District deems qualified. The names of applicants forwarded shall not be ranked.
- 8.2 An interview panel shall be utilized at the school level or at the program level. The interview panel shall interview all applicants who have been screened in this process for the vacancy. A WTA unit member from the site/program will serve on the interview panel, and when possible a WTA site representative is preferred.
- 8.3 At the conclusion of the interviews, the interview panel shall recommend to the immediate supervisor an applicant to fill each vacancy. The interview panel may recommend more than one applicant.

Section 1 - Illness or Injury Leave

1.1 Every unit member employed five (5) days a week shall be entitled to ten (10) days of absence for injury or illness. A unit member employed for less than five (5) school days a week shall be entitled, for a school year of service, to that proportion of ten (10) days leave of absence for illness or injury as the number of days he/she is employed per week bears to five (5).

- 1.2 In addition, full-time unit members shall be entitled to one (1) additional day of illness or injury leave per year. Part-time unit members shall receive the proportion of the additional day that relates to the number of hours actually worked.
 - A full-time unit member who does not use the full amount of illness or injury leave allowed in any school year shall be given cumulative credit for unused time up to a maximum of ten (10) days. Part-time unit members may accumulate only the amount that would have been due them without the additional partial day. Credit for the annual allotment of illness or injury leave need not be accrued prior to taking a leave and the leave may be taken at any time during the school year.
- 1.3 In a school year, a bargaining unit employee may use up to twenty (20) days accrued and available sick leave to attend to an ill child, parent, spouse, or a member of the immediate family of the bargaining unit member. The District may require the same types of illness verification as set forth in Article VIII, Section 1.8. "Child" or "parent" shall include biological, foster, adoptive, step relationships as well as the relationship with legal guardian/ward and in loco parentis. This is in addition to the ten (10) personal necessity days.
- 1.4 The District shall notify each unit member at the beginning of each school year of the number of accumulated unused illness or injury leave days credited to the member.
- 1.5 Unit members who transfer from one district to another shall have their unused illness or injury leave transferred pursuant to the appropriate provisions of state law.
- 1.6 Unit members who retire with illness or injury leave balances credited to them shall be entitled to convert the leave to the State Teachers' Retirement System pursuant to the appropriate provisions of state law.
- 1.7 During each school year, when a unit member has exhausted all available sick leave under Section 1.1 and 1.2 and continues to be absent from his or her duties on account of illness or accident for an additional period of five school months, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of the employment of the employee, the amount deducted from the salary due him or her for any of the additional five months in which the absence occurs shall not exceed the sum that is actually paid a substitute employee employed to fill his or her position during his or her absence, or if no substitute employee was employed, the amount that would have been paid to the substitute had he or she been employed.

The school district shall make every reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute employee. For the purposes of this provision the sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and the five-month period shall run consecutively and an employee shall not be provided more than one five-month period per illness or accident. However, if a school year terminates before the five-month period is exhausted, the employee may take the balance of the five-month period in a subsequent school year.

- 1.8 Upon return from absence for illness, the unit member shall complete a statement verifying that the absence was due to illness. If the used leave exceeds five (5) consecutive work days and the District has good cause to believe that the absence was not due to illness or that the unit member may not be fit to return to work, the District may require a verification of illness or statement that the unit member is fit to return to work from the unit member's physician or family health advisor. The District will reimburse the unit member for actual out-of-pocket payment to the physician, if any, for such verification only.
- 1.9 The District reserves the right to require for good cause an examination by a physician of the District's own choosing at District expense without regard to the length of absence.
- 1.10 Absences for portions of a day shall be accounted for in one (1) hour increments.
- 1.11 The District shall have the right to retain a unit member who becomes ill for a reasonable time, generally until substitute supervision is obtained.
- 1.12 The District agrees to WTA continuing to implement the established sick leave bank for its unit members which is in compliance with appropriate legal provisions. It is the parties' intent that this section is consistent with the terms and conditions set forth in Ed. Code section 44043.5.
- 1.13 A half day of leave of absence for a full time unit member is 3.75 hours and a full day is 7.5 hours.

Section 2 - Bereavement Leave

- 2.1 When death occurs in the immediate family of any unit member, the unit member shall be entitled to up to five (5) days leave of absence with pay for bereavement.
- 2.2 "Immediate family" as used in this section, shall consist of mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, or a grandchild of the unit member or of the spouse of the unit member, and the spouse, son, daughter, brother, sister, aunt, uncle or current son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, stepparent or stepchild of the unit member, or any relative, or any other person living in the immediate household of the unit member.

Section 3 - Personal Leaves

3.1 Personal Leaves for Full Year(s)

A unit member shall be granted a personal leave of absence without pay under the following conditions:

- 3.1.1 The unit member requesting the leave has completed no less than five (5) years as an employee of the District;
- 3.1.2 That there shall be no cost incurred by the District;
- 3.1.3 That no leave under this provision shall exceed one (1) year, unless the unit member applies for and receives in advance approval for a second year. Approval for the second year is within the discretion of the District. In no event shall the leave exceed two (2) years;
- 3.1.4 That the unit member on leave shall not be granted credit for experience or salary advancement upon returning to full time employment other than his/her entitlement at the end of the year prior to the leave, except:
 - 3.1.4.1 College or university units earned during the leave shall be used to calculate the individual salary position upon returning from leave;
 - 3.1.4.2 Foreign teaching service shall be granted as experience credit;
 - 3.1.4.3 National voluntary service that is teaching related shall be granted as experience credit;
 - 3.1.4.4 That a leave under this policy shall be for one (1) complete school year (September through June);
 - 3.1.4.5 That all requests for a full year's leave under this section shall be submitted to the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, prior to March 1 of each year;
 - 3.1.4.6 That a unit member requesting a leave under this section shall be working full time for the District and completing a full school year of service.

3.2 Personal Leave for a Partial Year

A unit member may be granted a personal leave, including a leave for health or child care not covered by Section 3.3 below, for a partial year without pay at the discretion of the District under the following conditions:

- 3.2.1 Except in unusual circumstances, that application be made to the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the requested commencement date of the leave;
- 3.2.2 That there be no cost to the District:
- 3.2.3 That the unit member on leave shall not be granted credit for experience or salary advancement unless the member serves seventy-five percent (75%) of the school year.
- 3.2.4 That a unit member requesting leave under this section be working within a full time position for the District.

3.3 Personal Leave for Health and Child Care

A unit member shall, upon submission of supporting information, be granted a personal leave without pay for health or child care. Such leave shall be subject to the following conditions:

- 3.3.1 There shall be no cost incurred by the District;
- 3.3.2 That no leave under this policy shall exceed the end of the school year during which the leave begins unless the unit member applies for and receives in advance approval for the next school year. Approval for the next school year is within the discretion of the District. In no event shall the leave exceed two (2) years;
- 3.3.3 That a request for leave under this section shall be submitted to the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, as soon as the unit member is aware of the need for the leave;
- 3.3.4 That a unit member requesting a leave under this section be working full time for the District.
- 3.4 A unit member who has been granted a leave of absence pursuant to this section shall, before April 1 of the school year prior to his/her scheduled return, confirm his/her return to the District, in writing by certified mail. In lieu of certified mail, a unit member may personally bring the letter to the Human Resources Office.

If the April 1 deadline is not met, the unit member's position will be considered vacant and reinstatement may not be possible. However, if an opening occurs, the unit member shall be entitled to a position.

Section 4 - Pregnancy Disability Leave

- 4.1 The District shall provide for an unpaid leave of absence from duty for any unit member who is disabled from working because of pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, or recovery thereafter.
- 4.2 The length of absence, including the date on which leave shall commence and the date on which the unit member shall resume duties, shall be determined by the unit member and the unit member's physician. Requests for a pregnancy disability leave must be accompanied by a statement from the physician verifying the pregnancy and stating the expected date of return. Notification must be given to the District thirty (30) calendar days prior to the last scheduled day of work.
- 4.3 Any unit member who is absent from her duties for disabilities connected or resulting from pregnancy shall be allowed to use her available illness/injury leave and/or extended illness leave for the duration of the disability as determined by the unit member's physician.
- 4.4 Up to four (4) months of pregnancy disability leave under this section will run concurrently with the unit member's entitlement to leave under Government Code section 12945. This leave commences on the first day the unit member is disabled from working by pregnancy or a related condition.

Section 5 – Parental Bonding Leave

- 5.1 When the unit member is no longer disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or related conditions as determined by her health care provider and is not eligible for bonding leave under the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), the unit member shall be entitled to up to 30 days of his/her available full paid sick leave to bond with the newborn child.
- 5.2 A unit member who is eligible for bonding leave under the California Family Rights Act (CFRA) may use up to 12 weeks of leave for this purpose, compensated at the differential pay rate. The 12 week period or portion thereof to which the unit member is entitled under CFRA shall be reduced by up to 30 days of full paid sick leave used by the unit member during this period.
- 5.3 A unit member who is an adoptive parent and is not eligible for bonding leave under the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), shall be entitled to up to 30 days of available full paid sick leave to care for a newly-adopted child.

5.4 A unit member who is an adoptive parent and is eligible for bonding leave under the California Family Rights Act (CFRA) may use up to 12 weeks of leave for this purpose, compensated at the differential pay rate. The 12 week period or portion thereof to which the unit member is entitled under CFRA shall be reduced by up to 30 days of full paid sick leave used by the unit member during this period.

5.5 If both parents of a newborn or newly adopted child work for the District, both parents would be able to split the 12 weeks of parental bonding leave related to the birth or placement of a child, but would not each have a separate 12 week leave regardless of the marital status of the parents. ((Under CFRA regulations 2 CCR section 11088 (c)).

Section 6 - Unpaid Family Leave

- 6.1 A unit member who has worked for the District for more than one year and has worked at least 1,250 hours in the 12 month period before the date of the commencement of the leave, is eligible for up to 12 weeks of family leave within a 12 month period. Family leave may be used for the birth of a child, care of a child, placement of a child for adoption or foster care with the employee, care of the employee's spouse, child or parent (if such person has a serious health condition), or for a serious health condition which renders the employee unable to perform the functions of his/her position. For child bonding purposes, unpaid family leave under this section runs concurrently with CFRA bonding leave described in Section 5.
- Ouring the period of family leave, the unit member shall be entitled to the employee's existing health care coverage at District expense for a period not to exceed 12 weeks in any 12 month period, beginning with each school year. The unit member must continue to pay any employee contributions applicable to the coverage. Thereafter, the unit member may continue health care coverage at his/her own expense. If the unit member does not return to work following unpaid family leave for a reason other than: (1) the continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health condition which would entitle the unit member to the leave; or (2) other circumstances beyond his/her control, the unit member may be required to reimburse the District for its share of health care premiums paid on his/her behalf during the leave.
- 6.3 Upon request of the District, the unit member may be required to submit a doctor's statement of the health condition of himself/herself or the family member, certifying the date that the condition commenced, the probable duration of the condition, and estimate of the amount of leave needed, and including a statement that the condition warrants the unit member's presence to provide treatment or supervision.
- The unit member shall give the District at least 30 days advance notice of the need for taking leave, except in emergency situations, in which case the unit member shall give the District as much notice as is reasonably possible. Every effort shall be made to coordinate the leave with the beginning and/or end of an academic term, and the District may require the employee to continue his/her leave until the end of a term, to the extent permitted by law.

6.5 Leave status under this provision shall not constitute a break in service for purposes of longevity, seniority or District benefit plans. A unit member returning from family leave shall be entitled to the same or equivalent position, and shall be assigned in accordance with Article VII of this Agreement.

6.6 Any leave taken pursuant to this provision shall run consecutively with any other leave(s) provided for in this Article, except sick leave/CFRA leave used for bonding with a newborn or newly placed child.

Section 7 - Public Office Leave

- 7.1 A unit member who is elected to full-time public office shall be granted an unpaid leave of absence from his/her duties during the term of the elected office.
- 7.2 Within six (6) months after the term of office expires, the unit member shall be entitled to return to the same or similar position held at the time of the election, at the salary to which the unit member would have been entitled had the unit member not been absent from the service of the District.

Section 8 - Association Leave

- 8.1 A leave of absence without pay shall be granted to a unit member elected to serve for his/her state or national association at the executive level for a maximum of two (2) terms.
- 8.2 At the beginning of the next semester after completion of the leave, the unit member shall be entitled to return to a certificated position within the scope of his/her credential(s), and shall resume on the salary schedule on the next step from the last position.

Section 9 - Witness/Jury Duty Leave

- 9.1 If a unit member, who is not a litigant in a case, is necessarily absent because of his/her appearance before a grand jury or in court as a witness in response to a subpoena duly served, in a matter related to the unit member's District employment, his/her full salary shall be paid during the period of such absence. Leave to appear as a witness, other than as a litigant, in any matter not related to the unit member's District employment shall be deducted from the unit member's Personal Necessity leave.
- 9.2 Each date of necessary attendance in court or before a grand jury, other than the date specified in the subpoena, shall be certified by the clerk or other authorized office of such court or grand jury. In any case in which a witness fee for jury duty is payable, such fee shall be collected by the unit member and remitted to the District.
- 9.3 Evidence of the subpoena is to be given to the immediate supervisor. The subpoena must be attached to the absence form submitted to the attendance clerk.

9.4 Leave of absence shall be granted to a unit member who is regularly called for jury service in the manner prescribed by law. Such leave shall be with pay not to exceed ten (10) days. Those unit members who are able to postpone jury duty from the regular school year to a time outside the work year, shall receive current substitute daily rate of pay for each day of such jury service. This option is at the unit member's discretion.

Section 10 - Personal Necessity Leave

- 10.1 All full-time unit members may use sick leave benefits, not to exceed ten (10) days in any school year, in cases of personal necessity, including any of the following:
 - 10.1.1 Unit members desiring to use available sick leave for the purposes of personal necessity shall notify their immediate supervisor 48 hours in advance of taking such leave, unless an emergency makes such notice impossible. In such case, the unit member shall notify their immediate supervisor as soon as practicable.
 - 10.1.2 Personal necessity shall be used for personal business responsibilities which require the unit member's presence during working hours and no other arrangements can be made. Use of sick leave days for personal necessity reasons must not be used for purposes of personal convenience or for the extension of a holiday or vacation period, recreational activities, association activities or for matters which can be taken care of outside the work hours.

An employee shall not be required to disclose the specific reason(s) for use of personal necessity days, but shall certify in writing that said leave was taken in compliance with this article.

- 10.1.3 Approval of personal necessity days in excess of ten (10) may be granted by the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources when extenuating circumstances exist. The unit member shall make an advance request in writing, include the specific reason for the request, and have accrued sick leave to utilize for the absence.
- 10.2 "Immediate family" as used in this section shall consist of mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, or a grandchild of the unit member or of the spouse of the unit member, and the spouse, son, daughter, brother, sister, aunt, uncle or current son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, stepparent or stepchild of the unit member, or any relative, or any other person living in the immediate household of the unit member.
- 10.3 Personal necessity leave does not accumulate from year to year.
- 10.4 Personal necessity leave may not be claimed if a unit member engages in a work slowdown, walkout or strike.

10.5 Personal necessity leave for part-time unit members shall be pro-rated.

Section 11 - Industrial Accident and Illness Leave

- 11.1 A unit member who has completed six (6) months of employment in the District shall be entitled to an industrial accident or illness leave of absence not to exceed sixty (60) working days in any one (1) fiscal year for the same accident.
- 11.2 When a unit member incurs an industrial accident or illness, he/she shall report it to his/her immediate supervisor before the close of the working day in which the accident or illness occurs. A Workers' Compensation form shall be filed with the District Human Resources Office within forty-eight (48) hours from the time such accident or illness occurs, or when the member can reasonably be expected to file.
- 11.3 The following governs industrial accident or illness leaves of absence:
 - 11.3.1 Allowable leave shall be for not more than sixty (60) working days in any one (1) fiscal year for the same accident;
 - 11.3.2 Allowable leave shall not be accumulated from year to year;
 - 11.3.3 Industrial accident or illness leave shall commence on the first day of absence;
 - When a unit member is absent from his/her duties on account of an industrial accident or illness, he/she shall be paid such portion of the salary due him/her for any month in which the absence occurs as when added to his/her temporary disability indemnity under Division 4 or Division 4.5 of the Labor Code, will result in a payment to him/her of not more than his/her full salary;
 - 11.3.5 Industrial accident or illness leave shall be reduced by one (1) day for each day of authorized absence regardless of a temporary disability indemnity award;
 - 11.3.6 When an industrial accident or illness leave overlaps into the next fiscal year, the unit member shall be entitled to only the amount of unused leave due him/her for the same illness or injury.
- 11.4 During any paid leave of absence, the unit member shall endorse to the District any temporary disability indemnity checks received on account of his/her industrial accident or illness. The District, in turn, shall issue the unit member appropriate salary warrants for payment of the member's salary and shall deduct normal retirement and other authorized contributions.

Section 12 - Sabbatical Leave

12.1 Purpose

The purpose of sabbatical leave is improvement of the unit member, which will ultimately inure to the benefit of pupils and the District.

12.2 Eligibility

An applicant for sabbatical leave must have rendered service in the District for at least seven (7) consecutive years immediately preceding the sabbatical leave. Not more than one (1) school year's leave, or its equivalent, shall be granted in each seven (7) year period.

Credit for one (1) year is earned when a unit member has been employed seventy-five percent (75%) of the number of days that school is in session.

12.3 Leaves Granted

Sabbatical leave for full-time study and/or approved travel may be granted to any unit member at the discretion of the District for the following purposes:

12.3.1 Additional Professional Study

- 12.3.1.1 An applicant who submits a detailed program of study for a sabbatical leave of absence shall undertake a full load of at least fifteen (15) hours of upper division work per semester or twelve (12) hours of graduate work, or the equivalent thereof. Admission to an accredited college or university is a prerequisite for the granting of a leave. A tentative program of study must be submitted to the District.
- 12.3.2 Independent Research
- 12.3.3 The Writing of a Doctoral Dissertation
- 12.3.4 Acceptable Travel
 - 12.3.4.1 An applicant who desires to travel must submit a detailed statement of the proposed itinerary. Travel must be related to the school work of the unit member.

12.3.5 A combination of travel and study may be allowed. The program or statement submitted shall include plans to increase the unit member's knowledge in all or part of the following general areas.

- 12.3.6 Increased knowledge of the unit member's subject areas;
- 12.3.7 Improvement in teaching techniques;
- 12.3.8 Increased understanding of educational psychology;
- 12.3.9 Attainment of better understanding and appreciation of many cultures.

12.4 Length of Leave

A sabbatical leave may be granted for not less than one (1) full semester nor more than one (1) full school year.

12.5 Deadline for Applications

Applications for sabbatical leave for the following school year must be filed with the Human Resources Office on or before March 15th for leaves to commence the fall semester and on/or before November 1st for the spring semester.

Applications shall be made by a Letter of Request through the immediate supervisor to the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, and shall include a full statement of the purpose and plans for use of such a leave.

In unusual circumstances, the Board of Trustees may authorize acceptance of applications at other times.

12.6 Review Process

A sabbatical leave committee consisting of three (3) association representatives and three (3) District representatives shall study and evaluate applications for sabbatical leave. The criteria shall include: program proposed for sabbatical leave, value to be received by pupils and district from leave, number of years of service in Westminster School District, professional attitude and record of performance in school district. Upon request of the Superintendent or designee, the committee shall establish an order of priority for those reported by the committee as worthy of consideration. The committee shall submit its recommendation to the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall forward the committee's recommendations to the Board of Trustees, together with his/her own recommendation. It shall also be the responsibility of the sabbatical leave committee to evaluate the sabbatical report after the unit member returns to the District. This evaluation shall be based upon fulfillment of agreement indicated in the application.

All activities for which leaves are granted must be planned in consultation with the sabbatical leave committee. Any changes in such plans must be approved in advance by the Board of Trustees.

12.7 Final Approval

Only the Board of Trustees can approve a request for a sabbatical leave of absence.

12.8 Limitations

The District does not give assurance that any sabbatical leaves will be granted. However, it is the intent of the District to grant sabbatical leaves that the Board deems meet the criteria wherever possible. Not more than one and one-half percent (1½%) of the total number of unit members employed in the District will be granted a sabbatical leave by the Board during any one school year.

12.9 Rate of Compensation

Compensation for unit members on sabbatical leave shall be one-half (½) of the salary which the unit member would have received had he/she remained in active service. College credits earned during sabbatical leave may be utilized to meet the requirements for class reassignment on the salary schedule. The unit member's salary upon return to service will be that of the next higher step from that received prior to taking the leave. Retirement annuity contributions shall be collected. The District's contribution for health and welfare benefits shall be continued for the duration of the sabbatical leave.

12.10 Reporting Activities

Each unit member returning from leave shall file with the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, within thirty (30) days after he/she returns to duty, a transcript of work taken and grades earned, or summary of the trip together with a statement of the educational growth believed to be obtained, and any other evidence that he/she has met the objectives stated in the application.

12.11 Return to Position

At the expiration of sabbatical leave, the unit member shall be reinstated in the position held by him/her at the time of the granting of the leave, or an equal position, unless a change of assignment is mutually agreed upon.

Unit members returning from a sabbatical leave shall not be guaranteed reinstatement in the exact grade level/subject, area/school which existed at the time the sabbatical was granted.

12.12 Posting of Bond

12.12.1 Each unit member who is granted a sabbatical leave is required to post a bond guaranteeing service to the District for a period of two (2) years following the leave.

- 12.12.2 Cost of the bond is borne by the unit member.
- 12.12.3 The unit member shall be required to post bond equal to the total salary to be paid during the leave.
- 12.12.4 Failure of a unit member to return and render service or to complete the scheduled program of study or travel shall result in a forfeiture of the bond except when such failure is due to death, or certification by a physician that failure was due to physical or mental disability.

12.13 General

- 12.13.1 The compensation shall be paid the unit member while on the leave of absence in the same manner as if the unit member were performing services in the District.
- 12.13.2 No sick leave shall be granted to a unit member on sabbatical leave.
- 12.13.3 Sabbatical leaves will not be granted for the purpose of studying for a trade or other profession.
- 12.13.4 Unit members on sabbatical leave will not be employed to do any work for the school system. Other employment related to the purposes for which the leave is granted, or part-time employment not exceeding twenty (20) hours per week which does not interfere with the accomplishment of such purposes, shall not be prohibited.
- 12.13.5 In all matters not herein mentioned, the Education Code shall govern sabbatical leave.

12.14 Interruption of Program

In cases of serious injury or illness of the unit member during the sabbatical leave which prevents completion of the objectives of the leave, the sabbatical leave will be terminated and all provisions for sick leave will apply to the unit member. These provisions will take effect on the first day of the next pay period following notification of said injury or illness to the Superintendent or designee, verified by a medical doctor's report. Upon release by a medical doctor, the unit member will return to regular duty for the remainder of the school year to be assigned as needed in a certificated position at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee. The subsequent year he/she will be reassigned as if he/she had completed the sabbatical leave.

Both the Governing Board of the District and the District shall be freed from any liability for the payment of any compensation of damages provided by law for the death or injury of any unit member of the District employed in a position requiring certification qualifications, when the death or injury occurs while the unit member is on any leave of absence granted under the provisions of the Education Code.

Section 13 - Temporary Military Leave of Absence

- 13.1 Unit members who are members of the reserve corps of the United States or of the National Guard or the Naval Militia shall be entitled to a temporary military leave of absence. Such leave of absence shall only be while the unit member is engaged in military duty ordered for purposes of military training, drills, encampment, naval cruises, special exercises or like activity. The period of ordered duty may not exceed one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days including time in going to and returning from such duty.
- 13.2 If the unit member has been in the service of the District for one (1) year or more, the leave shall be with pay up to a maximum of thirty (30) days. Pay shall not exceed thirty (30) days in any one fiscal year. The method of payment shall be one-tenth (1/10) of the unit member's annual salary if the maximum of thirty (30) days is used. In the event less than thirty (30) days are needed, the method of payment shall be a pro rata share of one-tenth (1/10) of the unit member's annual salary.

Section 14 - General

- 14.1 Any unit member on an unpaid leave of absence shall be eligible to participate in any health, dental, or insurance program available generally to bargaining unit members. Participation is at the unit member's total cost and is conditioned upon a willingness of any carrier to extend such coverage.
- 14.2 A unit member returning from leave shall be guaranteed a full-time certificated position within the scope of his/her credential(s), except that a unit member will not be placed in a preschool position without his/her consent.
- 14.3 Except in unusual circumstances, the unit member shall notify the District by 6:45 A.M. that he/she will be absent from work.
- 14.4 Support personnel may request a substitute when the support person is absent.

ARTICLE IX - CLASS SIZE

Section 1 - Class Size

1.1 Beginning the 2017-2018 school year, Grades TK/K will be staffed at a ratio of 26:1 regular teacher, and Grades 1-3 will be staffed at a ratio 28:1 regular teacher. Elementary schools will be staffed at a ratio of 30:1 regular teacher in grades 4-6. Intermediate Middle Schools will be staffed at a ratio of 28.5:1 regular teacher.

Beginning the 2018-2019 school year, Grades TK – 3 will be staffed a ratio of 28:1 regular teacher, Grades 4-6 will be staffed at a ratio of 30:1 regular teacher, and Intermediate Middle Schools will be staffed at a ratio of 29.5:1 regular teacher.

- 1.2 Staffing adjustments will be made in accordance to the negotiated ratios as outlined in 1.1 and 1.7. Staffing will be increased/decreased on a school site basis when enrollment exceeds/falls below the staffing factor by 75%. The timing of any necessary adjustments will be mutually discussed with the District, Site Principal, and Association by November 1.
- 1.3 The District will provide WTA with Enrollment Reports, as requested, at anytime during the year in a timely manner.

1.4 Special Education Classes

Special education classes, except in unusual temporary circumstances or when a waiver from the State Department of Education has been granted, shall not exceed the State mandated maximums.

1.5 Instructional Assistants/Paraeducators

Instructional Assistants/Paraeducators shall not be used to reduce the District-wide class size average for purposes of this article.

1.6 Staffing Combination (multi-grade level, self-contained) Classes at Elementary Sites

For purposes of staffing combination (multi-grade level, self-contained) classes, principals shall first ask for volunteers. If there are no volunteers, the site principal shall make the assignment. No teacher shall be assigned a combination class for two (2) or more consecutive school years unless he/she volunteers to do so. The site administrator shall make every effort to rotate combination class assignments among the teachers at the affected grade levels.

- 1.6.1 The unit member and principal shall mutually determine accommodations to help support the unit member with the added workload. Such accommodations may include but are not limited to:
 - Aide time
 - Release from duties

ARTICLE IX - CLASS SIZE

2021-2024

- Release time (substitute) to prepare for classes
- Students who are independent workers
- Smaller class sizes

The mutually agreed upon accommodations shall be submitted in writing and signed by the site principal and teacher and kept in files at the school site.

ARTICLE X - SAFETY 2021-2024

Section 1 - General

1.1 The District is responsible for providing safe working conditions for unit members within the fiscal capabilities of the District to provide administrative monitoring of working conditions and correction of unsafe conditions.

- 1.2 The school site administrator or central office administrator shall investigate conditions which are reported to be unsafe, hazardous, or potentially dangerous, and shall take steps to have unsafe conditions remedied. The report shall be filed by the unit member on forms which shall be in a readily accessible location at the unit member's work site. In an emergency, the administrator shall institute such emergency safety precautions as necessary. (Appendix Page No. 102)
- 1.3 Whenever any unit member is attacked, assaulted, or menaced at the school site, the unit member shall immediately report the incident to the proper law enforcement agency and to his/her immediate supervisor, or designee, who shall also immediately report the incident to the proper law enforcement agency and notify the Superintendent. The District shall appoint an administrator as liaison between the unit member, the law enforcement agency, and the court.
- 1.4 To promote safety, the District shall require all persons who are not employees or officials of the District to report to the school office to receive authorization to visit the work station of the unit member. Prior to granting authorization, the administrator (or his/her designee) shall notify the unit member involved.
- 1.5 If the unit member feels that he/she is in imminent danger at the school site, the immediate supervisor shall meet with the unit member in an effort to resolve the problem.
- 1.6 Except when the safety of pupils is involved or as required by law, unit members shall not be required to work under hazardous conditions or to perform tasks if such work or performance poses a serious threat to the unit member's safety.
- 1.7 A unit member may take reasonable action to protect his/her physical safety to the extent consistent with existing law.
- 1.8 Teachers will be notified when a student is transferred into their class from another school in the District for disciplinary reasons related to safety.
 - 1.8.1 Administrators will notify teachers pursuant to Education Code 49079 of any students enrolled in their class that meet Educational Code 49079 criteria as having a history of school related infractions. This shall be done annually at the first staff meeting of the year or as soon as the school becomes aware of this information during the school year. The information provided to the teacher shall be based upon any records that the District maintains in its ordinary course of business or receives from a law enforcement agency. District will meet and confer with WTA when operational procedures are being developed and edited regarding Education Code 49079.

ARTICLE XI - HOURS/WORK YEAR

Section 1 - Certificated Unit Members' Hours

- 1.1 The work day of a full-time unit member shall be seven and one-half (7-1/2) hours. The work day of a double session State Preschool unit member shall be seven and one-half (7-1/2) hours except for SDC Preschool teachers whose work day shall be as set forth in Section 1.12. Within that time the District shall provide a duty-free lunch period for unit members. The teacher lunch period shall coincide with the student lunch period. However, in an emergency, the unit member may be asked to assume some lunch time supervision as required in California Code of Regulations Title V, 5552.
- 1.2 The work day schedule shall be determined by the immediate supervisor in accordance with District and State policies.
- 1.3 In addition, unit members shall, under the direction of their immediate supervisor, be required to render additional hours of service each school year for Back to School Night, Open House, parent conferences as needed, graduation activities of middle school staffs only, and staff meetings. All unit members are required to attend staff meetings and/or PLC meetings on scheduled Wednesdays. Unit members are encouraged to volunteer for additional service including, but not limited to, district inservice, staff inservice, community organization meetings, school fund raisers, and student body activities.
 - 1.3.1 The time between the arrival of the unit member on the site and the beginning of the instructional day shall be considered preparation time for unit members unless the member is on duty schedule, there is inclement weather or an emergency exists requiring staff assistance.
- 1.4 Unit members shall have the freedom to leave the work site during the lunch period. Unit members shall have the right to leave the work site at other times for work-related purposes with mutual agreement of the immediate supervisor or designee.
- 1.5 Unit members will not be required to designate their exact time of arrival at and departure time from the work site; except, however, in cases of observed chronic lateness of arrival or early departure such unit member can be required to indicate to the site administrator the exact time of arrival at and departure from the work site.
- 1.6 Each unit member shall be provided with adequate relief periods which may coincide with student recesses unless the unit member is on duty at that time.
- 1.7 Those seventh and eighth grade unit member positions which were provided with preparation time during the 1978-79 school year shall continue to have equivalent preparation time. All 6th grade teachers assigned to a Middle School staff shall have the same preparation time as the 7th and 8th grade teachers at that site. Such preparation time is not to result in additional cost to the District or reduction in student contact (instructional) time.

ARTICLE XI - HOURS/WORK YEAR

- 1.8 In establishing the master schedule for the 7th and 8th grades, the site supervisor shall consider the number of preparations required of each classroom teacher and shall attempt, without additional staffing, to adjust the class assignment distribution so that no more than three (3) preparations shall be required for any one classroom teacher.
- 1.9 The work day of a kindergarten teacher shall be seven and one-half (7-1/2) hours, inclusive of: a duty-free lunch period of at least thirty (30) minutes, as per State Education Code; at least twenty (20) minutes of recess; and a maximum average daily student contact time of three hundred (300) minutes. The teacher lunch period shall coincide with the student lunch period.
- 1.10 State Preschool teachers will be provided two (2) substitute release days for the school year for flexible individual planning time. This time can be used in full or half day increments provided that the classes (AM/PM) are equally impacted.
 - General Education Preschool: The work day of General Education State Preschool teachers shall be seven and one-half (7-1/2) hours with a maximum student contact time of 6 hours. Within the work day, the District shall provide a duty-free lunch period of 30 minutes and shall ensure 30 minutes of preparation time for each three hours taught.
- 1.11 It is understood that Preschool teachers may need to attend to exigent personal necessities such as restroom breaks while teaching.
- 1.12 SDC Preschool: The workday for SDC Preschool Teachers shall be based on the following continuum:
 - 1.12.1 <u>Autism SDC</u>: M, T, Th, and F 8:30 a.m. to 1:15 p.m. / W 8:30 a.m. to 11:45 a.m. Best practice staffing goal: 12 students per class.
 - 1.12.2 Moderate-to-Severe SDC: M, T, Th, and F 8:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. / W 8:30 a.m. to 11:45 a.m. Best practice staffing goal: 12 students per class. At the 14th student, a discussion shall take place between the teacher and Special Ed. Administrator/principal.
 - 1.12.3 <u>Mild-to-moderate SDC:</u> M, T, W, and Th a.m. session 8:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. and p.m. session 11:45 a.m. to 2:45 p.m. Best practice staffing goal: 10 students per session.

Section 2 - Work Year

The teacher work year for the school year will be 186 days which will include two non-instructional prep days prior to the first day of the school year, a non-instructional prep day scheduled at the end of the first trimester, and three non-instructional staff development days.

ARTICLE XI - HOURS/WORK YEAR

- 2.1 The work year for unit members on the psychologist salary schedule shall be one hundred eighty-six (186) days. The work year for unit members on the Speech and Language Pathologist salary schedule shall be one hundred eighty-six (186) days with a 7 hour 45 minute workday. The work year for the State Preschool unit members on the State Preschool Salary Schedule shall be one hundred eighty-six (186) days. The work year shall include one hundred seventy-eight (178) student contact days, three (3) preschool days, one (1) preparation day (fall), one (1) professional/preparation day (spring), and three (3) staff development days.
- 2.2 The last day for students each year shall be the minimum amount of time necessary to qualify for ADA.
- 2.3 A unit member may leave the work site on the last required work day when he/she has completed his/her closing responsibilities.
- 2.4 Each school parent conference day shall be a modified day. Spring parent conferences shall only be required for at risk (not yet proficient at grade level standards) students, as determined by the classroom teacher using multiple measures.
- 2.5 The non-teaching preparation day set aside prior to the fall grade reporting period for unit members is for the purpose of preparing parent reports and otherwise organizing materials.
- 2.6 Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA) positions shall be opened for application/ selection every three (3) years. The unit member currently assigned to the position may reapply if they so choose.

Section 3 - Minimum/Modified Planning Days

- 3.1 The District and the Association recognize the importance of maintaining professional skills and preparing a quality educational program for students. Exclusive of September, the first Wednesday of the month will be designated as a staff meeting (SM)/PLC which will not exceed 2 hours (9 per year). Exclusive of September, at least one hour per month will be dedicated to PLC. The third Wednesday of the month will be designated as (PD)/staff meeting and will not exceed 1.5 hours (6 per year). The second and fourth Wednesdays will be designated as individual planning time (IP) for teachers. After students have been dismissed and student supervision is completed, unit members may participate in the following activities including but not limited to: flexible individual planning time, IEP meetings, district business, committee participation, grade level/team planning meetings, and PLC time all of which shall be conducted on District property.
- 3.1.1 Any variances to scheduling Wednesdays identified as PLC, PD, SM, or IP will be reviewed and agreed to by the Association president and/or designee and the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources and/or designee.

ARTICLE XI - HOURS/WORK YEAR

- 3.2 In order to reduce the number of conference modified days throughout the school year, additional conference modified days will be four (4) days for goal setting conferences in the fall and two (2) days for at-risk conferences in the spring. For the purpose of spring conferences, "at-risk" shall be defined as a student who is at risk of retention in the elementary grades or who has less than a 2.0 GPA in middle schools.
 - Once parents of these students have been scheduled for a conference, the remaining conference time shall be used as outlined in the Guidelines for Spring At-Risk Conferences (Appendix).
- 3.3 Two (2) modified days for report cards, not including a Wednesday modified day, shall be added onto the two (2) days for at-risk conferences in the spring.

Section 4 - School Calendar

4.1 A copy of the current school calendar is included in the Appendix. The parties agree to meet to mutually develop subsequent school calendars. The parties agree to reopen to discuss the calendar should unforeseen events occur.

Section 5 - Substitution for Absent Unit Members

- 5.1 At the elementary schools, except in emergencies (examples: unit members become ill during the work day, have a personal emergency, or fail to call in their absence in a timely manner), regular classroom, SDC and RSP teachers shall not be required to substitute (have additional students placed in their class and/or cover another class). In instances of
 - an emergency (as defined above), when possible, volunteers shall be sought.
- 5.2 At the middle schools, before teachers are assigned to substitute during their preparation period, volunteers shall be sought. Teachers who are assigned or who volunteer shall, at their option, within fifteen (15) instructional days of substituting either 1) be compensated at an amount equivalent to \$35.00 per period, 2) have the preparation period restored with at least a three (3) day notification, or 3) be allowed to leave at the end of one (1) regular student instructional day, or 45 minutes early on one (1) Wednesday modified day, provided the teacher is not involved in some required after-school activity.

Option 1) will be implemented unless the unit member notifies the principal in writing within two (2) days of the substitute service or his/her choice or Option 2 or 3. If Option 3) is selected, the unit member must notify the principal of the day of early departure on or before the date selected.

Principals will work to distribute the period of coverage to reduce the probability that a teacher will not have more than 15 times per school year. If the teacher is assigned to sub more than 15 times per year, the teacher will be paid \$35.00 per period.

ARTICLE XI - HOURS/WORK YEAR

Section 6 - Contract Waiver Process

- When a school site proposes to implement changes, policies, and/or programs that are in conflict with the collective bargaining agreement between the District and Association, a representative from the school site and the principal or designee will inform the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources and the President for the Association of the proposal in writing.
 - The proposal seeking a contract waiver shall be submitted to the District and Association by April 30 for implementation for the following school year.
- 6.2 If the District and Association have no objections to the proposal, then the District and the Association will prepare a confidential ballot for all bargaining unit members who work at least 50% of their contracted time at the affected site to express their opinion on the proposal. If there are objections, then a conference will be held to attempt to resolve the issue(s).
- 6.3 The confidential ballot will contain the following information:
 - a. Applicable Agreement section(s)
 - b. Rationale for the proposal
 - c. A specific time period for the proposal
- The District and the Association shall be jointly responsible for formulating the questions. The Association shall conduct the balloting by June 1, with provisions made that "job share" bargaining unit members have the opportunity to participate in voting, and for conducting the ballots. The proposal must be approved by 2/3 of the bargaining unit members who actually vote.
- 6.5 When a school site and the principal desire to renew the waiver, the District and the Association should be notified by April 30. A confidential ballot vote will be conducted to approve the renewal in accordance with sections 6.2-6.4.

Section 7 - Job Sharing

- 7.1 Subject to the approval of the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, and the immediate supervisors, two employees who have each been employed full-time in the District for at least three (3) years, may enter into a written agreement with the District to share a single position by each working a percentage of the position as agreed.
- 7.2 Each employee shall receive a pro-rata share of the salary of the position and each employee shall receive a pro-rata share of the health and welfare benefits of the position. The two employees may agree that one of the employees shall receive all of the paid health and welfare benefits.

ARTICLE XI - HOURS/WORK YEAR

- 7.3 As part of the agreement each employee shall pay the remaining pro-rata share of the total cost of a health and welfare package for the employee and authorize the District to withhold such.
- 7.4 The agreement shall be for one year only, and each employee shall have the option to return to a full-time position the following year. The employees shall notify the district by March 1 if they are requesting a job share or renewal. The agreement may be renewed upon the mutual consent of all parties concerned (See 7.1).
- 7.5 Step advancement on the salary schedule for those employees job sharing shall not occur until the cumulative time reaches the equivalent of a full year
- 7.6 In the event one of the two employees fails to fulfill any of the terms of the agreement or resigns, the District may, upon ten (10) days written notice, require the other employee to begin working full-time.
- 7.7 In no event shall the number of positions being shared exceed five percent (5%) of the bargaining unit.

Section 8 - CalSTRS Reduced Workload Program

8.0 For the details of the CalSTRS Reduced Workload Program (a.k.a. Willie Brown Act), please refer to Article XII, Section III for the details of this program.

ARTICLE XII - HEALTH AND WELFARE

Section 1 - General Provisions

- 1.1 The District will maintain a 4-tier benefits model for each unit member employed fifty-one (51%) or more. The actual amount of the District's contribution will depend upon the unit member's selection of carrier based upon the medical benefits tier selected by the employee (Employee Only [\$10,514], Employee + Child/Children [\$10,661], Employee + Spouse [\$15,692], and Employee + Family [\$18,879]. Should an employee change benefit tiers, the District shall contribute up to the maximum cap based upon the new benefit tier selected by the employee.
 - 1.1.1 The negotiated \$1,090,050 benefits cap increase for the 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 school years will be adjusted prior to each year's benefit's cycle.
- 1.2 The District shall not be required to enter into any insurance related agreement which would cause the District to incur liabilities in excess of the amounts provided in Section 1.1. The Association shall indemnify and hold the District harmless for any and all costs incurred for coverage over and above the contributions specified in Section 1.1.
- 1.3 The health and welfare benefit contribution shall be applied only to the following: medical, dental, and vision through an entity selected by WTA.
- 1.4 The District's liability shall be limited to making the contribution specified in Section 1.1. Any additional cost for selected programs shall be the responsibility of the individual unit member and shall, if necessary, be deducted from the unit member's salary.
- 1.5 Unit members on approved unpaid leave of absence as specified in Article VIII, shall have the option of remaining on the active unit members' medical and dental insurance plans, at the unit member's expense, and if permitted by the carrier. Such unit members employed less than fifty-one percent (51%) shall have the option to purchase any and all applicable coverage. In no event shall the percentage of unit members employed for less than fifty-one percent (51%) each year exceed three percent (3%) of the bargaining unit.
- 1.6 Unit members on paid leave as specified in Article VIII shall continue to receive the health and welfare benefits provided for in this Article.
- 1.7 Retired Unit members not otherwise eligible for retirement benefits under section 2 shall have the option of remaining on the active unit members' medical and dental insurance plans, at the retiree's expense and rate, and if permitted by the carrier, until the retiree reaches the age of 65 or is eligible for Medicare, whichever occurs first. The rate will be based on the rates charged by the carrier for retirees as a class.
- 1.8 All bargaining unit members shall be provided with \$20,000 of District-paid life insurance.

ARTICLE XII - HEALTH AND WELFARE

2021-2024

1.9 WTA members shall be allowed to opt out of dental and/or vision coverage; unless the insurance provider requires employees/members to carry that particular form of the health and welfare benefit plan options. If a member opts out he/she must provide evidence of a qualifying event to re-enroll outside of the open enrollment period.

Section 2 - Retirement Health Benefits

- 2.1 Unit members retiring from the District under State Teachers Retirement System who have reached their fifty-fifth (55th) birthday shall be provided with the following retiree health benefits:
 - 2.1.1 Unit members retiring with 20 years full-time service in the District immediately prior to retirement shall be provided with one hundred percent (100%) of the then current unit member District maximum contribution toward the District's standard medical, dental, and vision plans.
 - 2.1.2 Unit members retiring with 15 years full-time service in the District immediately prior to retirement shall be provided with seventy-five (75%) of the then current unit member District maximum contribution toward the District's standard medical, dental, and vision plans.
 - 2.1.3 Unit members retiring with 10 years full-time service in the District immediately prior to retirement shall be provided with fifty percent (50%) of the then current unit member District maximum contribution toward the District's standard medical, dental, and vision plans.
- 2.2 In each of the above sub-sections, retirees shall be required to pay for the cost of their plan choices in excess of their percentage allocation of the District contribution for unit members for the District standard medical, dental, and vision plans. For eligible retirees who retired prior to October 1, 2016 the District contribution shall be up to a maximum of \$10,412.80 regardless of the benefit tier selected. For eligible retirees who retire on, or after October 1, 2016 the actual amount of the District's contribution will depend upon the unit member's selection of carrier based upon the medical benefits tier selected by the retiree, Employee Only [\$10,514], Employee + 1 [\$15,692], Employee + Child/Children [\$10,661] and Employee + Family [\$18,879]. Should a retiree change benefit tiers, the District shall contribute up to the maximum cap based upon the new benefit tier selected by the employee. The District shall continue the coverage until the retiree reaches the age of 65 or is eligible for Medicare, whichever occurs first; or on the date the retiree determines to discontinue the coverage prior to age 65.

ARTICLE XII - HEALTH AND WELFARE

Section 3 - Reduced Workload Program (a.k.a. Willie Brown Act)

- 3.1 In accordance with Education Code section 22713, the Board of Trustees may allow an employee to reduce his or her workload from full-time to part-time duties. The employee will receive the service credit he or she would have received if the employee had been employed on a full-time basis and have his or her retirement allowance, as well as any other retirement benefits he or she is entitled to, be based, in part, on the final compensation he or she would have been entitled to if he or she had been employed on a full-time basis.
- 3.2 The option to reduce a unit member's workload from full-time to part-time duties shall be exercised at the request of the unit member if all of the following conditions are met:
 - 3.2.1 The unit member is employed by the District.
 - 3.2.2 The unit member has at least 10 years of credited service in the STRS Defined Benefit Program prior to the start of the school term of the first school year of the agreement to reduce the unit member's workload.
 - 3.2.3 The unit member must have been employed on a full-time basis to perform creditable service under the Defined Benefit Program for each of the five school years immediately preceding the first school year in which the unit member's workload is reduced, without having a break in service as defined in Education Code 22713.
 - 3.2.3.1 Employer-approved leaves of absence, and unpaid absences from the performance of creditable service for personal reasons from full-time employment do not constitute a break in service.
 - 3.2.3.2 Creditable service that was performed for a school year in which a member reduced his or her workload pursuant to this section shall be treated as full-time, provided that the agreement to reduce the member's workload was not terminated during that year pursuant to Section 3.7 below.
 - 3.3.2.3 The period of time during which a member is retired for service shall constitute a break in service.
 - 3.2.4 The unit member is at least 55 years or age or older prior to the start of the school term of the first school year of the agreement for which the unit member's workload is reduced.
- 3.3 The option to reduce a unit member's workload from full-time to part-time duties must be memorialized in a written agreement between the unit member and District. The written agreement must be in effect prior to the start of the school term of the first school year for which the agreement applies and must include the following requirements:
 - 3.3.1 The period of the reduced workload shall not exceed 10 years or as permitted by law.

ARTICLE XII - HEALTH AND WELFARE

- 3.3.2 The reduced workload shall be equal to at least one-half of the number of days of service required for full-time in the unit member's position.
- 3.3.3 The unit member shall be paid a salary that is a pro rata share of the salary he or she would have earned had he or she not elected to exercise the option to reduce his or her workload to part-time duties.
- 3.3.4 The unit member and District shall make the contribution required of full-time members of the State Teachers' Retirement System. The contributions shall be based on the amount that the unit member would have earned had he or she been employed on a full-time basis.
- 3.4 The unit member shall receive health benefits in the same manner as if he or she had been employed on a full-time basis.
- 3.5 Prior to the reduction of the unit member's workload to part-time duties, the District, in conjunction with the State Teachers' Retirement System, shall certify the unit member's eligibility using the Reduced Workload Program Eligibility Certification Application form (CALSTRS Form ES 1161).
- 3.6 The unit member must submit to the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources Form ES 1161, and the Westminster School District "Request to Participate in the Reduced Workload Program" (Appendix) no later than March 1, of the current year for participation in the program for the ensuing year.
- 3.7 The unit member must submit to the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources the Request to Withdraw from the Reduced Workload Program no later than March 1 of the current year to return to full time status for the ensuing year.
- The agreement between the unit member and District shall automatically terminate if (a) the unit member's employment terminates prior to the end of the school term (i.e., the agreement terminates if the unit member retires, resigns, or dies); (b) the unit member performs less than one-half of the number of days of service required for full-time in the unit member's position; or (c) the unit member and District mutually agree to terminate participation in contributions as outlined in Section 3.3.4 above.
- 3.9 If the agreement between the unit member and District terminates for any reason listed in section 3.8, the unit member shall not receive full-time service credit; rather, the unit member shall receive service credit in amount equal to the service he or she performed.
- 3.10 The provisions set forth above do not preclude the Board of Trustees from entering into any other part-time employment contract with a unit member of the District.
- 3.11 This Section covers the Part-Time Employment with Full Time Credit Reduced Work Year, pursuant to Education Codes 44922 and 22713. This section is not associated with Article XI, Section 7, Job Sharing, of this Collective Bargaining Agreement.

ARTICLE XII - HEALTH AND WELFARE

Section 4 - Enrollment

4.1 The District shall hold at least one (1) meeting at times and locations convenient to unit members, no later than one (1) week prior to the deadline for enrolling in health and welfare benefit plans for the purpose of presenting and explaining the insurance coverages and other health and welfare benefit options. In addition, the District shall send to unit members brochures and/or written explanations of available plans.

Section 5 - TB Tests

5.1 Required TB tests shall be provided at District expense through an exclusive provider. In the event a unit member selects a different provider, the District will pay the expense up to the maximum payable to the exclusive provider. The District shall provide released time after the student day for this purpose.

Section 6 - Property Damage or Loss

6.1 The District shall reimburse or provide for reimbursement for reported loss, damage or destruction of personal property suffered at the work site as a result of vandalism, burglary, fire or natural disaster in accordance with and subject to limitations of District policy. The District shall annually inform unit members of the contents and procedures of such policy prior to November 1st of each year of the Agreement.

Section 1 - Salary

1.1 All unit members shall receive their pro-rated daily rate of pay for each additional day/hours of service to the District beyond the established work year/work day. However, the Board may approve voluntary employment beyond the regular work year/work for professional growth activities which will be compensated as follows:

- Pro-rated daily rate of pay creating publication(s) or providing staff development requested by the District for district-wide implementation (ex. Trainer of trainers, developing common district curriculum, textbook adoption)
- \$50.00 per hour attending workshops and sharing lessons with grade level or department colleagues (GLAD unit sharing/on-line lessons).

The level of pay will be delineated in writing to the unit member prior to attendance. The president of the Association will be notified of conference attendance that offers compensation to unit members. In the event the Association president objects to the rate of pay assigned to the professional growth opportunity, he/she shall meet with the District administrator responsible. Notwithstanding, however the district may offer voluntary professional growth activities at no compensation.

- 1.2 Advancement on the salary schedule shall be at the rate of one (1) step for each year of certificated experience, foreign teaching or national voluntary service that is teachingrelated.
- 1.3 Unit members participating in the Academic Attendance Recovery Coordinated Program (Saturday School) shall be paid \$30.00 per hour and compensated for 5 hours for each Saturday School session, of which four hours are for instruction and one hour for preparation time.
- 1.4 As part of a three-year contract from July 1, 2021 June 30, 2024, compensation shall consist of the following elements:

2020-2021: 1% on the salary schedule retro to July 1, 2020 2021-2022: 4.25% on the salary schedule retro to July 1, 2021 and

PD hourly rate of pay \$50.00/hour upon tentative agreement ratification/Board approval 2022-2023*: 7.5% on the salary schedule and 1% off schedule retro to July 1, 2022

*The District and WTA recognize that the budget contingencies will be necessary for the future.

In addition to the compensation described in Article XIII, Section 1.4 of this agreement, the District and Association agree to a contingency clause designed to help ensure that the District expends unrestricted monies from the 2021-2022 school year. Per this agreement, if the District ends the 2021-2022 budget with an ending fund balance that is greater than the beginning fund balance, the additional balance that is less than or equal to a 2% salary increase for the 2021-2022 school year shall be distributed to unit members as a one-time payment. In order to determine the amount, if any, of unrestricted carryover funds, Section E, NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4), in the Unrestricted (A) cell of the 2021-2022 Form 01 Unaudited Actuals Report shall be used. All unit members sharing a contract Article XI, Section 7, shall receive one share of the payment proportional to the percentage of the contract the unit member is working. Unit members working less

ARTICLE XIII - WAGES 2021-2024

than the full 2021-2022 school year will receive a prorated amount based on the percent of the school year worked.

Section 2 - Mileage and Conference Reimbursement

- 2.1 The use of personal vehicles for authorized school business shall be compensated at the rate currently allowed by the Internal Revenue Service. Mileage is to be the IRS Standard in effect on the date mileage driven.
- 2.2 The unit member shall be reimbursed for all expenses incurred in authorized conference attendance in accordance with District policy.
- 2.3 District policy on conferences is included in the Appendix, page 107.

Section 3 - Student Teacher/Intern Programs

- 3.1 The supervising unit member of student teacher or intern shall receive a stipend equal to the amount remitted by the training institution. Upon receipt of the list of supervising unit members, the payroll department shall include the appropriate dollar amount on the next possible paycheck of the supervising unit member.
- 3.2 In addition, a supervising unit member shall receive one (1) unit of credit toward placement on the salary schedule.

Section 4 - Method of Payment

- 4.1 A unit member shall receive his/her salary on a ten (10) month basis.
- 4.2 Privacy of the certificated employee shall be respected in the delivery of paychecks.

Section 5 - Other Provisions

5.1 Placement on Salary Schedule

Unit members whose salary is determined by the salary schedules shall be placed on the appropriate salary schedule according to their experience and qualifications.

5.1.1 Qualifications

Unit members shall be placed on the salary schedule according to qualifications irrespective of the field in which work was completed.

5.1.2 Eligibility for Yearly Increment

Unit members without credentials hired after the ratification of the 2003-2004 Collective Bargaining Agreement shall be frozen on Column B-1 of the Teacher's Salary Schedule until they earn a credential. After earning a credential, unit members shall continue to advance on the salary schedule according to the remaining provisions of Article XIII.

Unit members must serve seventy-five percent (75%) of the actual work days in a school year or the equivalent, calculated in hours, in order to be eligible for the yearly increment. Days of used earned sick leave do not count against the seventy-five percent (75%).

Effective November 1, 2002, part-time employees who serve the hourly equivalent of fifty (50%) to seventy-four (74%) percent of the actual work days in a school year shall be eligible for the yearly increment every two years. Employees hired prior to this date will continue to earn yearly increments based on the contract language and practice in place during the 2001-2002 school year.

5.1.3 **Promotion**

When a unit member changes classification as a result of a promotion to a higher status, he/she shall be placed on the salary schedule in his/her qualified column on the step which shall yield him/her an increase of salary (on a per diem basis) which will be greater than the salary he/she would have received had he/she maintained his/her former position.

5.1.4 No Decrease

No unit member may suffer a decrease in salary because of any change in the total salary schedule, unless the total schedule is decreased.

If any part of a salary schedule is deleted, this action will not adversely affect any unit member who is on any class or step of the schedule which has been deleted.

The unit member who is on any class and step which has been deleted, would automatically be frozen on their last salary class and step until they have attained sufficient educational units to change their salary classification to another class column and step that has not been deleted. It may be necessary for that person

to move back in steps to the last eligible step for their newly attained classification. A person who is frozen will remain at that present salary until the last step in his/her column exceeds his/her existing salary.

5.1.5 Initial Placement or Advancement on Salary Schedule

Employment contracts shall be written only on the basis of college units verified by transcripts to the Human Resources Office. Movement to another class will be made on either September 1st or February 1st of each year. Notification to Human Resources of completion of college units must be made by September 1st or February 1st of each year.

Unit members are responsible for supplying proper transcripts to receive full credit on the salary schedule. In the event of work completed too late during the summer for an official transcript to be available, grade cards with units or a signed and dated letter from the college registrar or an instructor verifying the satisfactory completion of a course with number of units and grades will be accepted pending receipt of the transcript. Deadline for grade cards and/or letters under this provision is September 1st or February 1st respectively.

Deadline for submitting official transcripts under all conditions is October 10th or March 10th respectively.

Grade cards or transcripts must indicate whether semester or quarter units are granted.

Unit members are not excused from pre-school week activities to attend post-summer sessions.

5.1.6 Units Above Bachelors Degree

Only college units taken from an accredited college or university after the requirement for the Bachelors Degree has been officially fulfilled can be counted toward changing of salary classification (whether the actual graduation ceremony is at that time or the following June due to the college's "one graduation ceremony per year" policy). Two-thirds (2/3) of all units submitted to advance from one classification to another on the teachers' and psychologists' salary schedules shall be upper-division or graduate work. Beginning July 1, 2000, this stipulation will not apply to unit members on Columns A or B on the state preschool salary schedule.

Units in excess of graduation requirements taken simultaneously with units necessary for the Bachelors Degree will not be counted.

Transcripts submitted must indicate a key or some other designation as to whether or not a course is lower division, upper division, or graduate division standing. If not shown on the transcript, the unit member must provide a college catalog or other 60 means to clarify the standing of the units. If no

clarification is provided, units submitted will be considered lower division until proved otherwise.

5.1.7 Former Employees

Former employees returning to the employ of the District shall retain their status on the salary schedule held before leaving the District.

Former employees on tenure retain all sick leave benefits and rights of a permanent unit member if reemployed within thirty-nine (39) months of their resignation.

Westminster School District retired teachers returning to the employ of the District under the State Class Size Reduction STRS earning limitation exemption shall be placed on the salary column they were on at the time of retirement. Teachers rehired under this provision will be given credit for no more than seven (7) years prior experience.

5.1.8 Semester Hours

Units to be taken above degrees refer to semester hours. Quarter hour credit shall be granted at the ratio of two-thirds (2/3rds) per unit.

5.1.9 Prior Experience

All unit members shall be given credit for similar experience year for year. Substitute teaching may not be counted except in situations where a unit member was previously laid off and served in a preferential substitute position for 75% or more of the school year. For a year to count, the unit member must have worked seventy-five percent (75%) of the actual teaching days in a school year.

Former unit members returning to the employment of the District are to be given credit for interim experience up to this maximum. Former unit members with no interim experience shall retain their status on the salary schedule held before leaving the District. In any case, no unit member may receive more than the maximum years outside credit indicated above. All experience credit must be based on seventy-five percent (75%) work year.

5.1.10.1 Nurses

The school nurse shall fall on the Teachers' Salary Schedule according to his/her qualifications. One year credit for each year of registered nursing experience and/or one year experience for each year's experience as a school nurse shall be granted. Experience credit will be based on a seventy-five (75%) work year.

5.1.10.2 Speech Language Pathologist

The work year for Speech and Language Pathologist shall be 186 days. The Speech and Language Pathologists' salary schedule shall be reviewed annually based on the District's ability to recruit and retain qualified candidates. Any needed adjustments shall not adversely impact current Speech and Language Pathologists.

5.1.11 Step Increments

- 5.1.11.1 Steps 20, 25, 27, and 30 are not anniversary increments and experience outside the District counts towards all step increments.
- 5.1.11.2 The same rule that governs salary advancement will prevail in determining what constitutes a work year. A unit member must work seventy-five percent (75%) of the teaching year in order for that experience to be counted toward an anniversary increment.
- 5.1.11.3 If a unit member moves from one salary column to another, the new increment rate will prevail.

Section 6 – Stipends

- 6.1 Positions under this section will be opened by application at the 1st staff meeting prior to the 1st day of instruction unless the needs of that position necessitate earlier. Unit members will be allowed 7 days to return their completed application to their immediate supervisor.
- 6.2 To be initially eligible, unit members must hold appropriate credentials, have earned an overall satisfactory evaluation in the prior evaluation cycle, and have probationary or permanent status.
- 6.3 If after 7 days no permanent or probationary applications have been submitted for a position, temporary unit member applications will be considered. Positions will stay open until the position is filled.
- In the event there is more than one staff member who applies for the position, an interview process will take place and will include the immediate supervisor and WTA teacher representatives. The immediate supervisor shall take input from teacher representatives on the interview panel prior to the immediate supervisor making the final selection.
- 6.5 When making a selection, the immediate supervisor shall take into consideration preference to a teacher who has not earned additional pay in the prior year unless reason(s) such as prior experience, number of stipend positions held, seniority, needs of students and staff, and/or educational programs exist to override such consideration.
- 6.6 Upon request by the unit member, the immediate supervisor shall meet with the unit member to discuss the reasons they were not selected for the stipend position.
- 6.7 Newly created or adopted stipends will be brought forward to the district stipend committee for consideration before introduction and discussion in negotiations.
- 6.8 Please refer to Appendices for all stipend information

ARTICLE XIV - SUMMER SCHOOL AND EXTENDED SCHOOL YEAR (ESY) 2021-2024

Section 1 - Wages

1.1 The salary for summer school and ESY unit members shall be the unit member's pro-rated per diem rate.

Section 2 - Miscellaneous

- 2.1 Summer School and ESY teachers shall be paid only for time worked. In the event that a unit member is ill, they may use the equivalent number of hours of banked sick time for up to a maximum of one day of summer school pay.
- 2.2 Unit members may apply for any category of Summer School and/or ESY for which they are qualified.
- 2.3 Summer School Employee Selection: Employee selection will be made by the District in accordance with appropriate and clear credential, experience, and strengths related to the subjects offered. Employees selected will be placed utilizing a rotational system whereby those who have not taught summer school in either of the preceding two years shall be placed first.
- 2.4 ESY Employee Selection: When selecting employees for the ESY program, maintaining teacher assignments with their current students/caseloads will be the highest priority.
- 2.5 Existing permanent and probationary unit members who meet the criteria as outlined in 2.3 shall be placed before consideration is given to temporary teachers and outside applicants.
- 2.6 The Association will be given a roster of summer school unit members showing assignments and locations prior to the first day of the summer school/ESY program, including any summer school/ESY vacancy.
- 2.7 Specially Funded Summer Schools
 - 2.7.1 Summer schools established at a school site shall have a rotation system amongst the unit members at the site in accordance with appropriate and clear credentials, experience, and strengths related to the subjects offered.
 - 2.7.2 When more positions are available than site applicants, then the rotation shall revert to 2.3 above.
 - 2.7.3 The length of the student and unit member work day shall be determined by the site.

ARTICLE XIV - SUMMER SCHOOL AND EXTENDED SCHOOL YEAR (ESY)

2021-2024

- 2.7.4 Summer school pay shall be pro-rated based on hours worked using the criteria in 1.1.
- 2.7.5 When practicable, Site Administration will provide an application to all certificated unit members at the site within thirty calendar days prior to the summer school program, in order to make the summer school assignment opportunities available to all members at the site.

2.8 ESY Planning Time

For ESY Staff, the District will provide one full 7.5 hour day of Planning time that takes place prior to the start of the ESY program. This planning day is for the purpose of preparing curriculum, meeting with ESY administrator and other ESY staff, setting up ESY classrooms, materials and supplies, reviewing IEP goals, etc. In addition, for ESY staff, the District will provide 30 minutes before the instructional day with students and 30 minutes after the instructional day with students to conduct required duties such as, but not limited to, transporting students to and from class, supervision of students, attend to required health needs of students, meet with ESY administrator, instructional assistants and other staff, etc.

ARTICLE XV - LAYOFF AND REHIRING

Section 1 - Procedures

The District and the Association agree that all Education Code procedural requirements and provisions for layoff and rehire of unit members shall be observed if the District determines that Reduction-in-Force is necessary. During the Education Code reemployment period following layoff, the procedures used by the District to rehire laid off teachers shall not be arbitrary or capricious.

- 1.1 Prior to the issuance of any layoff notices to bargaining unit members, the District shall have prepared the following:
 - 1.1.1 The number and names of unit members involved.
 - 1.1.2 The number of classified and management members involved.
 - 1.1.3 A list of all bargaining unit members ordered by seniority (with credentials held of those unit members to be given a layoff notice).
 - 1.1.4 A list of all temporary employees performing bargaining unit work, ordered by seniority.
 - 1.1.5 A list of all long-term substitute, part-time, and other employees performing bargaining unit work, including the number of hours per week worked by each employee.
 - 1.1.6 The most recent financial projection covering conditions giving rise to the need for the layoff.
 - 1.1.7 A class size report comparing current status with projected impact resulting from the anticipated layoffs.
 - 1.1.8 A list of all program and curriculum changes anticipated as a result of the anticipated layoff.
 - 1.1.9 If the District is unable to provide the information within the time limit, the District shall notify the Association and specify the reasons for the inability to comply and shall prepare the information and submit it to the Association as soon as possible.
- 1.2 Within five (5) days of the notification to the Association of the contemplated layoffs, the District shall meet with Association representatives to determine possible ways to avoid layoffs or lessening the effect on employees involved.
- 1.3 All layoff notices shall conform to the revisions of Education Code Sections 44949, 44955, and this Article. Copies of this Article shall be furnished concurrently with any layoff notice.

ARTICLE XV - LAYOFF AND REHIRING

1.4 The District shall publish tie-breaking criteria for the same date of hire by the end of the first quarter of the school year. Seniority of same date of hire for unit members who are otherwise equal according to established criteria shall be determined by lot at the time of the layoff.

Section 2 - Substitute Service

The District shall compensate permanent teachers laid off in accordance with a Reduction-in-Force action at their daily rate of pay should they be utilized as a substitute teacher. The work day shall be the same as a regular teacher. These teachers will be utilized in the same manner as regular substitutes. Probationary laid off teachers who substitute shall receive the District's regular substitute rate of pay.

Section 3 - Health and Welfare Benefits

Article XII shall provide health and welfare benefits coverage through September 30 for those unit members working a full school year, including all unit members given a layoff notice as a result of a Reduction-in-Force action by the Board. If the laid off teacher serves as a substitute for 75% of the school year, the District will reimburse the laid off teacher for the cost of the mandated health and welfare benefits chosen.

Section 4 - Class Size

The provisions of Article IX, Class Size, shall not be negatively impacted as a result of Reduction-in-Force.

Section 5 - Transfers

All reassignments of personnel as a result of Reduction-in-Force shall be done in accordance with Article VII, Transfers, Section 3.

Section 6 - Recall Rights

If any vacancy or open position, including but not limited to temporary and substitute positions, occurs, the District shall notify the most senior laid off unit member with a credential allowing him/her to perform the service required by the open or vacant position. Such notification shall be by registered letter to the laid off unit member's current mailing address on file with the District. Laid off unit members shall have the right to reject any job offer without waiver of any recall rights for not more than one school year.

Section 7 - Former Status

In order to lessen the negative impact on those unit members laid off as a result of the Reduction-in-Force, the District shall make every effort to restore those affected to their former status, probationary or permanent, as soon as possible.

ARTICLE XV - LAYOFF AND REHIRING

Section 8 - Grievances

The District and the Association agree that any alleged violation of this Article by a laid off unit member, shall be reviewable through the grievance procedure (Article V), except that any alleged violation of the Education Code provisions shall be reviewable through existing legal procedures in lieu of the provisions of Article V.

ARTICLE XVI - PEER ASSISTANCE REVIEW AND BEGINNING TEACHER SUPPORT PROGRAM 2021-2024

Section 1 - Intent

1.1 It is the intent of the parties to establish a teacher Peer Assistance and Review program (PAR) as a critical feedback mechanism that allows exemplary teachers to assist veteran teachers for needed development in subject matter knowledge, teaching strategies and/or both. In addition, the parties wish to provide a system of support for beginning teachers to assist them in acquiring the necessary skills and abilities as required for successful performance as long-term teachers.

Section 2 - Definitions

- 2.1 "Teacher Participant" means one of the following:
 - 2.1.1 A permanent teacher who has been referred and received written notification for participation in PAR by his/her immediate supervisor due to unsatisfactory performance in designated areas (Referred Teacher Participant).
 - 2.1.2 A beginning teacher assigned to a classroom teaching position who has less than two (2) years of fully-credentialed teaching experience (Beginning Teacher).
 - 2.1.3 A permanent teacher who has volunteered to participate in PAR (Voluntary Teacher Participant).
- 2.2 "Consulting Teacher" means a credentialed classroom teacher with permanent status in the District who has substantial recent experience as a classroom teacher and has demonstrated exemplary teaching ability, as indicated by, among other things, effective communication skills, subject matter knowledge, and mastery of a range of teaching strategies necessary to meet the needs of pupils in various contexts.
- 2.3 "Joint Committee" means a joint teacher/administrator review panel formed to select Consulting Teachers and to perform annual evaluations of PAR for the purpose of improving PAR.
- 2.4 "Unsatisfactory Rating" means an unsatisfactory rating on a teacher's evaluation with respect to maintenance of a suitable learning environment, attaining standards of expected student progress, instructional techniques and strategies, and/or adherence to curricular objectives.

Section 3 - The Joint Committee

3.1 The Joint Committee shall consist of seven members including four certificated classroom teachers selected by WTA and three administrators appointed by the District.

ARTICLE XVI - PEER ASSISTANCE REVIEW AND BEGINNING TEACHER SUPPORT PROGRAM 2021-2024

The Joint Committee shall select and assign Consulting Teachers, review Peer Review Logs prepared by Consulting Teachers, and complete an annual evaluation of PAR and submit recommendations to the District governing board and WTA regarding improvements to the Program. The annual report to the Board shall include the names of individuals who have been unable to demonstrate satisfactory improvement after sustained assistance.

- 3.2 All decisions of the Committee shall be by majority vote of its total membership. A majority of those present must be teachers.
- All meetings and training of the Joint Committee will generally be held during working hours, and teacher members of the Committee shall be provided release time. Committee members will be paid at their hourly rate for meetings outside of the work day or work year. The WTA president shall designate one of the certificated members of the Joint Committee as the lead contact. The lead contact shall receive a \$1,000 stipend.
- The Joint Committee shall be responsible for establishing and recommending to the Board and adhering to a budget based upon expenditures which shall not exceed income to the District as provided by Education Code Sections 44505 through 44507. The budget shall include five percent for administrative and overhead expenses to the District; payment for substitutes and other costs incurred as a result of release time for Joint Committee members, Consulting Teachers and Teacher Participants; training for Joint Committee, Consulting Teachers and Teacher Participants; payment of Consulting Teachers; and all other expenses incurred by Joint Committee, Consulting Teachers and Teacher Participants as approved by the Joint Committee. This stipend will be increased each year by an amount equal to the state allocated cost of living increase to the program.
- 3.5 Teacher Participants shall be assigned to available Consulting Teachers on the following priority basis: Referred Teacher Participants, Beginning Teachers, starting with most recent hires and Voluntary Teacher Participants.
- 3.6 Other responsibilities of the Joint Committee shall include:
 - 3.6.1 Adopting operating Rules and Procedures for effectuating the provisions of this article. Said rules and procedures will be consistent with the provisions of this agreement, the law, and to the extent that there is an inconsistency, the agreement will prevail.
 - 3.6.2 Distributing the list of Consulting Teachers to the Referred Teacher Participants and Beginning Teachers.
 - 3.6.3 Distributing the adopted operating Joint Committee Rules and Procedures to all bargaining unit members and District certificated administrators.
 - 3.6.4 Establishing a Consulting Teacher application procedure.

ARTICLE XVI - PEER ASSISTANCE REVIEW AND BEGINNING TEACHER SUPPORT PROGRAM 2021-2024

Section 4 - Consulting Teachers

- 4.1 The Joint Committee shall appoint a sufficient number of Consulting Teachers to meet the needs of the District. Each Consulting Teacher shall meet the following minimum qualifications: permanent status within the District, valid California teaching credential, satisfactory evaluations, eight years District experience in the classroom at the K-8 level for working with Peer Assistance Review (PAR) teachers and six years District experience in the classroom at the K-8 level for working with beginning teachers, spend 60% of his/her time in direct instruction of pupils and demonstration of exemplary teaching abilities as indicated by, among other things, effective communication skills, subject matter knowledge, and mastery of a range of teaching strategies necessary to meet the needs of pupils in various contexts. In the event that there are insufficient numbers of Consulting Teachers to meet program needs, teachers who have retired from the District within the past two years and have been trained as Consulting Teachers may be appointed.
- 4.2 If mandatory training is not provided on release time the Consulting Teacher(s) shall be paid his/her hourly rate of pay. The stipends will be increased each year by an amount to the state allocated cost of living increase to the program.
- 4.3 A Consulting Teacher shall be paid \$3,497 for each Referred Teacher Participant, and \$1,900 for each Beginning Teacher or Voluntary Teacher Participant assigned. No Consulting Teacher shall work with more than one Referred Teacher Participant, or two Beginning Teachers or Voluntary Teacher Participants at any time, unless otherwise approved by the Joint Committee with concurrence of the Consulting Teacher in exceptional circumstances. The stipends will be increased each year by an amount equal to the state allocated cost of living increase to the program.
- 4.4 The Consulting Teacher and Referred Teacher Participant shall meet with the immediate supervisor for the purpose of developing an understanding of the deficiencies or needs of the Referred Teacher Participant.
- 4.5 The Consulting Teacher shall meet with each Referred Teacher Participant and, with input from the Teacher Participant, shall:
 - 4.5.1 Develop goals for the Referred Teacher Participant;
 - 4.5.2 Develop an assistance plan which shall include multiple classroom observations and participation in designated staff development activities;
 - 4.5.3 Develop a budget which shall include the costs of release time for both the Consulting Teacher and participating teacher and staff development activities for the participating teacher. The budget shall be submitted to the Joint Committee for review and approval.

ARTICLE XVI - PEER ASSISTANCE REVIEW AND BEGINNIG TEACHER SUPPORT PROGRAM 2021-2024

- 4.5.3 Develop a budget which shall include the costs of release time for both the Consulting Teacher and participating teacher and staff development activities for the participating teacher. The budget shall be submitted to the Joint Committee for review and approval.
- 4.5.4 Provide a written log of each Referred Teacher participant's PAR participation to the Joint Committee. A copy of the Consulting Teacher's log shall be submitted to and discussed with the Referred Teacher Participant to receive his/her signature by March 15 before it is submitted to the Joint Committee. The Referred Teacher Participant's signing of the log does not necessarily mean agreement, but rather that he/she has received a copy of the log. The Consulting Teacher shall submit the log to the Joint Committee by the first week in April. The Referred Teacher Participant shall have the right to submit a written response, within twenty (20) days, and have it attached to the log. The Referred Teacher Participant shall also have the right to request a meeting with the Joint Committee, and to be represented at this meeting by the Association Representative of his/her choice.
- 4.5.5 Provide assistance to the Referred Teacher Participant until he/she concludes that the teaching performance of the Referred Teacher Participant is satisfactory, or that further assistance will not be productive. In no event shall such assistance extend beyond one (1) school year unless expressly authorized by the Joint Committee.
- 4.5.6 The term of the Consulting Teacher shall be two (2) years unless a shorter term is mutually agreed to by the Joint Committee and the Consulting Teacher. A teacher may not serve in the position for more than two (2) consecutive terms.

Section 5 - Miscellaneous Provisions

- 5.1 Members of the Joint Committee and Consulting Teachers shall be defended and indemnified by the District to the maximum extent permitted by the California Government Code.
- 5.2 It is expressly understood that PAR shall in no way interfere with the District's rights or obligations with respect to employee evaluations or discipline. It is expressly understood that the work of the Consulting Teacher and the Joint Committee shall not be used by the District or a Teacher Participant in any subsequent disciplinary proceeding, with the sole exception of noting that the employee had participated in PAR to the extent required by law.
- 5.3 The participation in PAR by bargaining unit members either as Consulting Teachers or as members of the Joint Committee shall not constitute either management or supervisory functions as defined by subdivisions (g) and (m) of Section 3540.1 of the California Government Code.

ARTICLE XVI - PEER ASSISTANCE REVIEW AND BEGINNING TEACHER SUPPORT PROGRAM 2021-2024

- 5.4 Records relating to PAR which in any way identify an individual teacher shall be considered personnel records and not available for public disclosure.
- 5.5 All proceedings and materials related to evaluations, reports and other personnel matters shall be strictly confidential. Therefore, Joint Committee members and Consulting Teachers may disclose such information only as necessary to administer this Article.
- 5.6 A Referred Teacher Participant, after consulting with the Joint Committee, will be assigned to a Consulting Teacher from another site unless he/she chooses to have one assigned from his/her site. The Referred Teacher Participant may petition the Joint Committee for a different Consulting Teacher. The Referred Teacher Participant shall have the right to present reasons why a specific Consulting Teacher should be replaced and another Consulting Teacher substituted and to have those reasons considered. The Referred Teacher Participant shall be granted release time to implement this section of the Article.
- 5.7 The Referred Participating Teacher has the right to be represented at any Joint Committee meeting or any meeting with administrators throughout these procedures by an authorized Association representative.
- The Referred Participating Teacher shall have the right to timely reports of progress being made. The Referred Participating Teacher shall be entitled to review all reports generated by the Consulting Teacher prior to their submission to the Joint Committee and to have affixed thereto his/her comments. To effectuate this right, the Consulting Teacher shall provide the Referred Participating Teacher with copies of such reports at least five (5) working days prior to any such submission.
- 5.9 A copy of the PAR log shall be made available for placement in the personnel file of the teacher receiving assistance pursuant to Education Code 44500b.(7).
- 5.10 Unexpended program funds shall be carried over annually as allowed by State law in the PAR/BTSA account. Expenditure of such funds shall be at the discretion of the Joint Committee in compliance with the provisions of this Article.
- 5.11 Failure to participate in PAR prior to an unsatisfactory evaluation shall not have a negative impact on the unit member's evaluation.
- 5.12 This Article or any portion thereof may be reopened at any time by either party.
- 5.13 As compensation for attending monthly BTSA meetings, participating BTSA teachers shall be allocated an amount equivalent to the cost of two (2) substitute days for release time and/or for the purchase of BTSA related materials.
- 5.14 As compensation for attending monthly BTSA meetings, the Consulting Teachers will be provided one (1) paid release day per school year.

2021-2024

ARTICLE XVII - PROFESSIONAL GROWTH

Professional Growth Committee

WSD and WTA shall convene a Professional Development Committee which shall operate by consensus. The committee shall be composed of a minimum of a five (5) representatives from the district and five (5) representatives from WTA. The committee shall provide recommendations for the content, calendar, range of offerings, and scope of work for professional growth programs. The committee shall ensure that teacher expertise is incorporated into modified day professional growth sessions. The team may also identify visiting experts to support professional growth opportunities.

2021-2024

ARTICLE XVIII - PERSONAL & ACADEMIC FREEDOM

- 1.1 This Article is intended to provide clarification of the unit member's personal and academic rights and responsibilities as set forth in current Board policies.
- 1.2 Teachers are expected to follow the adopted curriculum of the District. Teachers shall have the right and responsibility to present material concerning facts and concepts relating to this curriculum as long as the material is approached in an impartial and unprejudiced manner and in accordance with District policies and administrative regulations.
- 1.3 In performing teaching functions, unit members may express opinions on all matters relevant to the course content, in an objective manner. A unit member, however, shall not utilize his/her position to indoctrinate students with his/her own personal, political and/or religious views.

ARTICLE XIX - SPECIAL EDUCATION

2021-2024

Section 1

- 1.1 Teachers who are assigned full inclusion special education students to their regular classrooms shall be given release time for staff development and other related activities as well as additional classroom assistance as delineated in the students' I.E.P.
- 1.2 The District and Association agree to form an on-going special education committee that will explore the needs of students with individual education plans (IEPs) who may or may not require special programs, to explore professional growth opportunities, classroom support and to problem solve matters that impact staff and students.

2021-2024

ARTICLE XX - CONCERTED ACTIVITIES

Section 1

Apart from and in addition to existing legal restrictions upon and remedies for work stoppages, the Association hereby agrees that during the term of this Agreement neither it nor its members, or agents, or representatives, or the unit members, or persons acting in concert with any of them, shall incite, encourage, or participate in any strike, walkout, slowdown, or other work stoppage of any nature against the District whatsoever or wheresoever located, including but not limited to disputes which are subject to the grievance provisions of this Agreement; disputes which are specifically not subject to the grievance provisions of this Agreement, disputes concerning matters not mentioned in this Agreement; disputes between the district and other employee organizations, persons or employers; or jurisdictional disputes. In the event of any strike, walkout, slowdown or work stoppage or threat thereof against the District, the Association and its officers will take all steps reasonably within their control to end or avert the same.

Section 2

Unit members will not authorize, engage in, encourage, sanction, recognize or assist in any strike, slowdown or work stoppage against the District, or picket in furtherance thereof, or participate in unlawful concerted interference in violation of this Article or refuse to perform duly assigned services in violation of this Article. It is understood that unit members found in violation of this Article may be subject to discipline or termination as determined by the Board of Trustees. Disputes arising under this particular paragraph are to be handled according to appropriate legal proceedings rather than the grievance process of this Agreement.

Section 3

It is understood that in the event this Article is violated, the district shall be entitled to withdraw any rights, privileges or services provided for in this Agreement or District policy from any unit member and/or the Association when the Association is the violator.

Section 4

The District agrees that it shall not utilize the lockout.

Section 5

All provisions of this Article shall be suspended during any reopeners.

ARTICLE XXI - STATUTORY CHANGES, SEPARABILITY & SAVINGS

2021-2024

Section 1 - General

- 1.1 If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid by operation of law (i.e., legislative changes, court decisions, etc.) or by any court of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any provision should be restrained by such court pending a final determination as to its validity, the remainder of this agreement or the application of such Article or section as to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it has been held invalid or as to which compliance with or enforcement of has been restrained, shall not be affected thereby.
- 1.2 In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held invalid as noted above, the District agrees to meet and negotiate upon demand on the subject matter of the invalid provision to the extent permitted by law.

2021-2024

ARTICLE XXII - NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES

Section 1 - Submission

- 1.1 The parties agree to reopen the contract on any State provided compensation for certificated employees related to academic performance at the demand of either party.
- 1.2 The parties agree to enter into negotiations for a successor agreement prior to the expiration of the current agreement.

Section 2 - Designation

The Association shall designate no more than seven (7) representatives who shall each receive reasonable release time without loss of compensation to attend negotiations and impasse proceedings. The number of representatives will not exceed seven (7) total members which may or may not include a CTA advisor.

Section 3 - Interest Based Bargaining

The parties are committed to Interest Based Bargaining. Changes to Interest Based Bargaining would require the parties to bargain an alternative process.

Section 4 - Negotiations Sessions

Following any public notice requirements, the initial session shall be held within ten (10) days of written request by either party, and successive sessions shall be scheduled and conducted in a good faith effort to reach agreement. Sessions shall be held at a location mutually acceptable to the parties.

Section 5 - Ratification

The representatives appointed by each party shall have power to negotiate for that party and to make tentative agreements. However, final agreement shall be contingent upon ratification by the Board and the Association. Upon tentative agreement between the parties, all items of agreement shall be reduced to writing and submitted to the Board and the Association for ratification.

Section 6 - Signatures

Upon ratification by the parties, a written agreement shall be signed by the Board and/or designee(s) and the President and/or representative(s) of the Association. Said agreement shall then be binding upon the parties for its duration.

2021-2024

ARTICLE XXIII - COMPLETION OF MEET AND NEGOTIATE

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties and concludes meet and negotiate on any item, for the term of this Agreement except that:

- 1.1 The Association and the District may amend the contract by mutual written agreement only.
- 1.2 The parties agree that this concludes negotiations for the 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 school years, as part of a three-year successor agreement, expiring June 30, 2024. For the 2022-2023 school year, the parties may choose to reopen (1) Article 12: Health and Welfare, (2) Article 13: Wages, and one other Article per party. For the 2021-2022 school year, the parties agree that they may reopen Article 13: Wages, only should the state of California approve a budget that provides greater than full on-going funding for LCFF, increased projected COLA, additional one-time funding, or, in the alternative, does not fully fund LCFF or the projected COLA.

During the period of this contract, should PERB rule that certain items are included within the scope of negotiations, or should the State of California adopt a law that changes any item within the scope of negotiations, as defined in Section 3543.2 of the Government Code, or should the Federal Government adopt a law that affects any provision of this agreement, the District and the Association shall reopen negotiations, at the request of either party, on those items only.

This agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations, or practices of the Board which are contrary to or inconsistent with its terms.

AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2021, except as otherwise indicated, and shall remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2024.

The signatures which follow indicate this Agreement has been adopted by the employer and ratified by the exclusive bargaining unit.

Dr. Victor M. Torres

Assistant Superintendent

Human Resources

Kim Búi

President

Westminster Teachers Association

Greg Branch

Bargaining Chair

Westminster Teachers Association

APPENDIX

SCHOOL CALENDAR	82
GRIEVANCE FORMS	
Formal Level One (Grievant)	
Formal Level One (Supervisor)	84
Formal Level Two (Grievant)	
Formal Level Two (Superintendent/Designee)	86
EVALUATION FORMS	
Initial Conference Agreement (Teachers)	
Initial Conference Agreement (Psychologist, Special Services Personnel)	
Modification Agreement	
Pre-Observation (Teacher)	
Observation (Teacher)	
Post-Observation Reflective Question Guide (Teacher)	
Final Evaluation (Teacher)	
Formal Evaluation (Psychologist, Special Services Personnel)	
Goal Setting Non-Evaluation Year	104
EMPLOYEE ABSENCE REPORT FORM	106
HEALTH/SAFETY HAZARD	107
SALARY SCHEDULES	108
CONFERENCE GUIDELINES	
REQUEST TO ATTEND CONFERENCE FORM	114
INTRA-SCHOOL TRANSFER REQUEST FORMS (Replaced by Assignment Preference google form page	127) 115
HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING	116
BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE	117
GUIDELINES FOR SPRING AT-RISK CONFERENCES	118
STIPEND INFORMATION/FORMS	
Stipend Table	120
Stipend Application	121
Stipend Descriptions	
ASSIGNMENT PREFERNCE FORM (GOOGLE FORM)	127
INTRA-SCHOOL/INTRA DEPARTMENTAL FORM	131

WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT School/Staff Calendar for 2021-2022 (Unless modified by mutual agreement)

Board Approved: May 14, 2020

FLOATING TEACHER PREP DAY (1 DAY)	Monday-Friday	August 19-26, 2021
STAFF DEVELOPMENT DAY	Friday	August 27, 2021
STAFF DEVELOPMENT DAY	Monday	August 30, 2021
TEACHER PREPARATION DAY	Tuesday	August 31, 2021
FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL	Wednesday	September 1, 2021
TEACHER PREPARATION DAY	Monday	November 29, 2021
STAFF DEVELOPMENT DAY	Monday	April 18, 2022

	Independence Day (observed)	Monday	July 5, 2021	
	Labor Day	Monday	September 6, 2021	
	Veterans Day	Thursday	November 11, 2021	
	Thanksgiving Recess	5 Days	November 22 – 26, 2021	
CTMING		(Classes reconvene Tuesday, November 30, 2021)		
	Thanksgiving Holiday	3 Days	November 24 – 26, 2021	
	(District closed)			
11/3	Winter Recess	10 Days	December 20 - 31, 2021	
0		(Classes r	reconvene Monday, January 3, 2022)	
EST. 1872	Winter Holiday	7 Days	December 23 – 31, 2021	
OL DIST	(District closed)			
	Martin Luther King Day	Monday	January 17, 2022	
DISTRICT	Lincoln's Birthday	Monday	February 14, 2022	
HOLIDAYS	President's Day	Monday	February 21, 2022	
HOLIBITIO	Spring Recess	5 Days	April 11 – 15, 2022	
		(Classes reconvene Tuesday, April 19, 2022)		
25-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11	Spring Holiday	Friday	April 15, 2022	
	Memorial Day	Monday	May 30, 2022	
LAST DAY OF SCHOOL	: For pupils and teachers N	INIMUM DAY	Y Friday, June 17, 2022	

TRIMESTERS	DAYS
September 1 – November 19	56
November 30 – March 11	61
March 14 – June 17	63

MODIFIED DAYS
(Early Dismissal for Students)
DATES:
October 18 – 22, 2021
March 21 - 25, 2022
June 13 – 16, 2022

PARENT/TEACHER CONFERENCES (Modified Days)		
Trimester #1	October 18 – 22, 2021	
Trimester #2	March 21 - 25, 2022 for "At Risk Students"	

⁺ Two weeks of Winter Recess and one week of Spring Recess excluded in counting 20-days school month for attendance accounting (Education Code Section 37201)

* All holidays are in accordance with Education Code Section 37220

WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT School/Staff Calendar for 2022-2023

(Unless modified by mutual agreement)

Board Approved: September 9, 2021 Board Revision: April 21, 2022

FLOATING TEACHER PREP (DAY 1)	Monday - Friday	August 17 – 24, 2022
STAFF DEVELOPMENT DAY	Thursday	August 25, 2022
STAFF DEVELOPMENT DAY	Friday	August 26, 2022
TEACHER PREPARATION DAY	Monday	August 29, 2022
FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL	Tuesday	August 30, 2022
TEACHER PREPARATION DAY	Monday	November 28, 2022
STAFF DEVELOPMENT DAY	Monday	April 17, 2023

	Independence Day	Monday	July 4, 2022		
	Labor Day	Monday	September 5, 2022		
	Veterans Day	Friday	November 11, 2022		
	Thanksgiving Recess	5 Days	November 21 – 25, 2022		
CTMINO		(Classes reconvene Tuesday, November 29, 2022)			
	Thanksgiving Holiday	2 Days	November 24 – 25, 2022		
	(District closed)				
11/3	Winter Recess	11 Days	Dec. 23, 2022 - Jan. 6, 2023		
0		(Classes reconvene Monday, January 9, 2023)			
EST. 1872	Winter Holiday	8 Days	Dec. 23, 2022 - Jan. 3, 2023		
OL DIST	(District closed)				
	Martin Luther King Day	Monday	January 16, 2023		
DISTRICT	Lincoln's Birthday Obs.	Monday	February 13, 2023		
HOLIDAYS	President's Day	Monday	February 20, 2023		
HOLIDATO	Spring Recess	5 Days	April 10 – 14, 2023		
		(Classe	s reconvene Tuesday, April 18, 2023)		
	Spring Holiday	Monday	April 10, 2023		
	Memorial Day	Monday	May 29, 2023		
LAST DAY OF SCHOOL	: For pupils and teachers	LAST DAY OF SCHOOL: For pupils and teachers MINIMUM DAY Friday, June 16, 2023			

TRIMESTERS	DAYS
August 30 – November 18	57
November 29 – March 10	60
March 13 – June 16	63

MODIFIED DAYS
(Early Dismissal for Students)
DATES:
October 17 – 21, 2022
March 20 - 24, 2023
June 12 – 16, 2023

PARENT/TEACHER CONFERENCES (Modified Days)		
Trimester #1	October 17 – 21, 2022	
Trimester #2	March 20 - 24, 2023 for "At Risk Students"	

⁺ Two weeks of Winter Recess and one week of Spring Recess excluded in counting 20-days school month for attendance accounting (Education Code Section 37201)

accounting (Education Code Section 37201)

* All holidays are in accordance with Education Code Section 37220

GRIEVANCE FORM

Formal Level One

Submission of	<u>Grievance:</u> This form must be com	npleted in full and signed by the Grievant.	
Grievant's Nam	ne:	Work Location:	
Date alleged gr	ievance occurred		
Date of Confere	ence – Informal Level		
I.	Statement of Grievance: Give a contract Specific provision(s) of the contract	concise statement of the problem, citing t act allegedly violated.	he
II.	Remedy: Specify the action soug	ght to remedy the alleged problem.	
	Grievant's Signature	Date Submit	tted
	mmediate Supervisor pe retained by Grievant	Received by supervisor:	
1 000, 10 2	o rotalited by Chotain	Date	Time

GRIEVANCE FORM

Formal Level One

Immediate Supervisor's Response to:

Grie	evant
Supervisor's Signature	Date
Distribution: 1 copy to Grievant 1 copy to be retained by Immediate Supervisor	Date Grievance was received by supervisor:
1 copy to the Association	Date response was submitted to Grievant:

GRIEVANCE FORM

Formal Level Two

(Attach copy of Formal Level One Grievance and Response)

I.	Why is grievance being appealed to Formal Lev	vel Two?	
II.	Remedy sought:		
	•		
	Grievant's Signature	Date Submi	tted
<u> </u>	_		
1 c	oution: opy to Superintendent opy to Immediate Supervisor	Received by supervisor:	
1 0	opy to be retained by Grievant	Date	Time

GRIEVANCE FORM

Formal Level Two

Superintendent's (or Designee's) response to:	
	Grievant
Superintendent or Designee	Date
Distribution:	Date Grievance was received by Superintendent:
1 copy to Grievant	
1 copy to Immediate Supervisor 1 copy to be retained by Superintendent	
or Designee	Date response was submitted to Grievant:
1 copy to Association	
' '	



WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT **TEACHER INITIAL CONFERENCE AGREEMENT**

valuat	tee:	Date:
Evaluat	tor:	Grade(s)/Subject(s):
Aı be	n initial conference shall be held no later th	Probationary 1Probationary 2Permanent han October 31 of each year between the unit member who is eement may be modified by mutual consent at any time during
1.	have a 504 plan, who are Gifted a Learners along with their English	of students in your class(es) who have an IEP, who and Talented, the number of students who are English Language Proficiency levels, and each student's level—anguage Arts and Math. (You may attach a report ver.)
II.	environment. Include your expec	sh a working philosophy for a suitable learning ctations for student achievement, classroom r-student interaction, and physical surroundings. behavior expectations.)

III. Goals for the year:

A. What California Standards for the Teaching Profession (CSTP) element(s) would you like to address this year? (If you change or add to your goals during the year, update this section, include the date it was modified, and discuss with your evaluator.)

B. What is your specific goal for this CSTP element?	
C. How will your CSTP goal impact student learning?	
D. What are the action steps you plan to take to achieve your CSTP goal?	
E. What forms of professional development and/or support will you seek to assist you with creating a personal action plan to achieve your CSTP goal(s)? (e.g. observe peers, additional collaboration time, read research, action research, or attend formal professional development sessions)	
IV. Evaluation Areas: Specify standards to be addressed during this evaluation cycle as outlined in the collective bargaining agreement.	
A. District CSTP: Standard 6	
B. Evaluatee CSTP:	
C. Evaluator CSTP:	
V. Support Needed: List any support you need from your administrator to assist you in helping your students reach their maximum growth for the year. Some suggested areas: instructional strategies, classroom management, or learning environment.	
Page 2 of 3 Rev. 8/19/	

Parts VI and VII are to be completed during the initial conference by the evaluator.

VI. List ways the evaluator will support the teach helping students achieve their maximum groups of the students achieve the s	
VII. The evaluator should list any areas of conc Standards for one or more CSTP element.	ern which may result in a Does Not Meet
Evaluatee Signature:	Date:
Evaluator Signature:	Date:

INITIAL CONFERENCE AGREEMENT PSYCHOLOGISTS, SPECIAL SERVICES PERSONNEL

	Name	Date
	Grade Level and/or Subject Area _ Temporary _ Probationary – Year 1, 2 _ Permanent	Position
Ī.	Goals and objectives for supportive services relati student standards and maintenance of a suitable l	
II.	Measuring devices to be used:	
Ш.	Objectives for other major responsibilities:	

(over)

gned:	Teacher	Date	
ab			
gned:	Evaluator	Date	

MODIFICATION AGREEMENT

Date	
Position	
ial Conference Agreement:	
	Position

Evaluator

Evaluatee



WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER PRE-OBSERVATION

Evaluate	e:	Date:	
observa can be p below.	tion. Upon mutua provided in additio	eed to your evaluator within two school days of the formal I agreement between the evaluatee and evaluator, a less on to or in lieu of this form as long as it addresses the que y be requested by either the evaluatee or evaluator for	son plan
1. V	Vhat do you expe	ct your students to learn from this lesson (learning goal)?	>
2. H	low will you set y	our students up for success?	
3. H	low will you know	when your students have achieved the learning goal you	ı set?
	low will you respo tudents do and o	ond when students don't achieve the learning goal? Wha thers do not?	t if some
	low will you meet re preparing to te	the needs of the student who "already knows" the mater each?	ial you
6. (On which three CS	STPs are you being formally evaluated?	
[☐ Standard 1	☐ Standard 4	
[☐ Standard 2	☐ Standard 5	
Г	Standard 3	X Standard 6 (district standard)	



WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER OBSERVATION

Evaluatee:	Date:
Evaluator: Grade(s)/Subject(s):	
Standard 1 – ENGAGING AND SU 1.1 Uses knowledge of students to eng	PPORTING ALL STUDENTS IN LEARNING gage them in learning.
	or knowledge, backgrounds, life experiences, and interests.
1.4 Uses a variety of instructional stra	ategies, resources, and technologies to meet students' diverse learning needs.
1.5 Promotes critical thinking through1.6 Monitors student learning and adjusted	n inquiry, problem-solving, and reflection. usts instruction while teaching.
	Does Not Meet Standards
EVIDENCE OBSERVED:	
COMMENTS:	
SUGGESTED AREAS OF GROWT	rH:
	INTAINING EFFECTIVE ENVIRONMENTS FOR STUDENT LEARNING responsibility within a caring community where each student is treated fairly and
	g environments that promote student learning, reflects diversity, and encourages actions among students.
	g environments that are physically, intellectually, and emotionally safe. In ment with high expectations and appropriate support for all students.
2.5 Develops, communicates, and mai	intains high standards for individual and group behavior.
2.6 Employs classroom routines, proc can learn.	redures, norms, and supports for positive behavior to ensure a climate in which all students
2.7 Uses instructional time to optimize	
	Does Not Meet Standards
EVIDENCE OBSERVED:	
COMMENTS:	
SUGGESTED AREAS OF GROWT	ГН:



WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER OBSERVATION

Standard 3 - UNDERSTANDING AND ORGANIZING SUBJECT MATTER FOR STUDENT LEARNING 3.1 Demonstrates knowledge of subject matter, academic content standards, and curriculum for current frameworks. 3.2 Applies knowledge of student development and proficiencies to ensure student understanding of subject matter. 3.3 Organizes curriculum to facilitate student understanding of the subject matter. 3.4 Utilizes instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter. 3.5 Uses and adapts resources, technologies, and standards-aligned instructional materials, including adopted materials, to make subject matter accessible to all students. 3.6 Addresses the needs of English learners and students with special needs to provide equitable access to the content. Does Not Meet Standards **EVIDENCE OBSERVED: COMMENTS:** SUGGESTED AREAS OF GROWTH: Standard 4 – PLANNING INSTRUCTION AND DESIGNING LEARNING EXPERIENCES FOR ALL STUDENTS 4.1 Uses knowledge of students' academic readiness, language proficiency, cultural background, and individual development to plan instruction. 4.2 Establishes and articulates goals for student learning. 4.3 Develops and sequences long-term and short-term instructional plans to support student learning. 4.4 Plans instruction that incorporates appropriate strategies to meet the learning needs of all students. 4.5 Adapts instructional plans and curricular materials to meet the assessed learning needs of all students. Does Not Meet Standards **EVIDENCE OBSERVED: COMMENTS:** SUGGESTED AREAS OF GROWTH:



WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER OBSERVATION

Standard 5 – ASSESSING STUDENT LEARNING 5.1 Applies knowledge of the purposes, characteristics, and uses of different types of assessments. 5.2 Collects and analyzes assessment data from a variety of sources to inform instruction. 5.3 Reviews data, both individually and with colleagues, to monitor student learning. 5.4 Uses assessment data to establish learning goals and to plan, differentiate, and modify instruction. 5.5 Involves all students in self-assessment, goal setting, and monitoring progress. 5.6 Uses available technologies to assist in assessment, analysis, and communication of student learning. 5.7 Uses assessment information to share timely and comprehensible feedback with students and their families. Does Not Meet Standards		
EVIDENCE OBSERVED:		
COMMENTS:		
SUGGESTED AREAS OF GROWTH:		
Standard 6 – DEVELOPING AS A PROFESSIONAL EDUCE 6.1 Reflects on teaching practices in support of student learning 6.2 Establishes professional goals and engages in continuous an 6.3 Collaborates with colleagues and the broader professional co 6.4 Works with families to support student learning. 6.5 Engages local communities in support of the instructional professional responsibilities to maintain motivation. 6.7 Demonstrates professional responsibility, integrity, and ethic	d purposeful professional growth and development. community to support teacher and student learning. cogram. n and commitment to all students.	
EVIDENCE OBSERVED:		
COMMENTS:		
SUGGESTED AREAS OF GROWTH:		
Evaluator Signature:	Date:	
Evaluatee Signature:	Date:	

W.S

WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER POST-OBSERVATION REFLECTIVE QUESTIONS GUIDE

Evalua	tee: Date:
during	e questions can be used to guide the discussion between the teacher and evaluato g the post-observation conference. This conference will be scheduled within one of the evaluator's formal observation.
1.	Do you feel you met the objectives of your lesson?
2.	What do the student results tell you about the instructional strategies you used?
3.	What additional interventions might you provide to students who were unable to meet the objective of your lesson? What additional enrichment will you provide for those students who exceeded the objective of your lesson?
4.	What went well in the lesson?
5.	What, if anything, would you modify before you presented the lesson again?
100	

COMMENTS:



WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER FINAL EVALUATION

Evaluatee:	I	Date:	
Evaluator:		Grade(s)/Subject(s):	
Dates of Observations:			
Status of Evaluatee:Temporar	yProbationary	1Probationary 2 _	Permanent
Standard 1 – ENGAGING AND SUPPORT 1.1 Uses knowledge of students to engage 1.2 Connects learning to students' prior kn 1.3 Connects subject matter to meaningful, 1.4 Uses a variety of instructional strategie 1.5 Promotes critical thinking through inqual 1.6 Monitors student learning and adjusts in	them in learning. owledge, backgrounds, life real-life contexts. s, resources, and technolog iry, problem-solving, and	e experiences, and interests.	ning needs.
Exceeds StandardsPartially Meets StandardsNot a Focus Standard	Meets Standards Does Not Meet Stand	lards	
EVIDENCE:			
COMMENTS:			
Standard 2 CDEATING AND N	AAINTAINING EEE	ECTIVE ENVIDANMENT	rs ead student
Standard 2 – CREATING AND N LEARNING 2.1 Promotes social development and responsible to the social development an	onsibility within a caring corronments that promotes statents. ironments that are physical at with high expectations and shigh standards for individuals, norms, and supports for	community where each student is treatudent learning, reflects diversity, and intellectually, and emotionally and appropriate support for all studed dual and group behavior.	eated fairly and respectfully. and encourages constructive safe. ents.
Exceeds StandardsPartially Meets StandardsNot a Focus Standard	Meets Standards Does Not Meet Stand	dards	
EVIDENCE:			
COMMENTS:			



WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER FINAL EVALUATION

Standard 3 – UNDERSTANDING AND ORGANIZING SUBJECT MATTER FOR STUDENT LEARNING				
3.1 Demonstrates knowledge of subject matter, academic content standards, and curriculum for current frameworks.				
3.2 Applies knowledge of student development and proficiencies to ensure student understanding of subject matter.				
3.3 Organizes curriculum to facilitate student understanding of the				
subject matter.				
3.4 Utilizes instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter.				
3.5 Uses and adapts resources, technologies, and standards-aligned instructional materials, including adopted materials, to make				
subject matter accessible to all students.				
3.6 Addresses the needs of English learners and students with special needs to provide equitable access to the content.				
Exceeds Standards Meets Standards				
Partially Meets Standards Does Not Meet Standards				
Not a Focus Standard				
EVIDENCE:				
DIDENCE.				
COMMENTS:				
C				
Standard 4 – PLANNING INSTRUCTION AND DESIGNING LEARNING EXPERIENCES FOR ALL STUDENTS				
4.1 Uses knowledge of students' academic readiness, language proficiency, cultural background, and individual development to plan				
instruction. 4.2 Establishes and articulates goals for student learning.				
4.2 Establishes and articulates goals for student learning. 4.3 Develops and sequences long-term and short-term instructional plans to support student learning.				
4.4 Plans instruction that incorporates appropriate strategies to meet the learning needs of all students.				
4.5 Adapts instructional plans and curricular materials to meet the assessed learning needs of all students.				
F				
Exceeds StandardsMeets Standards				
Partially Meets StandardsDoes Not Meet Standards				
Not a Focus Standard				
EVIDENCE:				
COMMENTS:				



WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER FINAL EVALUATION

 Standard 5 – ASSESSING STUDENT LEARNING 5.1 Applies knowledge of the purposes, characteristics, and uses of different types of assessments. 5.2 Collects and analyzes assessment data from a variety of sources to inform instruction. 5.3 Reviews data, both individually and with colleagues, to monitor student learning. 5.4 Uses assessment data to establish learning goals and to plan, differentiate, and modify Instruction. 5.5 Involves all students in self-assessment, goal setting, and monitoring progress. 5.6 Uses available technologies to assist in assessment, analysis, and communication of student learning. 5.7 Uses assessment information to share timely and comprehensible feedback with students and their families.
Exceeds StandardsMeets StandardsDoes Not Meet StandardsDoes
EVIDENCE:
COMMENTS:
Standard 6 – DEVELOPING AS A PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR 6.1 Reflects on teaching practices in support of student learning. 6.2 Establishes professional goals and engages in continuous and purposeful professional growth and development. 6.3 Collaborates with colleagues and the broader professional community to support teacher and student learning. 6.4 Works with families to support student learning. 6.5 Engages local communities in support of the instructional program. 6.6 Manages professional responsibilities to maintain motivation and commitment to all students. 6.7 Demonstrates professional responsibility, integrity, and ethical conduct.
Exceeds StandardsMeets StandardsNot a Focus StandardDoes Not Meet StandardsNot a Focus Standard
EVIDENCE:
COMMENTS:



WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER FINAL EVALUATION

OVERALL PERFORMANCE:Meets Standards		Does Not Meet Standards	
OVERALL COMMENTS:			
Evaluatee Signature:		Date:	
Evaluator Signature:		Date:	

FORMAL EVALUATION PSYCHOLOGISTS, SPECIAL SERVICES PERSONNEL

-		Name	Date	
	☐ Temporary	Position Probationary – Year 1, 2	 ☐ Permanent	
				(Please Check One)
	PERFORMANCE IN THE MAINTENANCE OF A SUITABLE LE ENVIRONMENT REGARDING PHYSICAL SURROUNDINGS, STUDENT INTERACTION, PROPER CONTROL:			☐ SATISFACTORY
			DINGS, TEACHER-	☐ UNSATISFACTORY
11.		I THE ATTAINMENT OF PREDETE STUDENT PROGRESS:	RMINED	☐ SATISFACTORY
	OBJECTIVES FOR	UNSATISFACTORY		
III.	WORKING STAFF	RELATIONSHIPS:		SATISFACTORY
				UNSATISFACTORY
IV.	PROFESSIONAL C	UALITIES (RELIABILITY AND DISC	CRETION):	SATISFACTORY
				UNSATISFACTORY
V.		TECHNIQUES AND STRATEGIES L	JSED BY THE	☐ SATISFACTORY
	EMPLOYEE:			UNSATISFACTORY
VI.	EMPLOYEE'S ADH	ERENCE TO CURRICULAR OBJEC	CTIVES	☐ SATISFACTORY☐ UNSATISFACTORY
				UNSATISTACIORI

VII. SPECIFIC SUGGESTIONS FOR ANY IMPROVEMENT WHICH MAY BE NEEDED, AND ASSISTANCE OFFERED:	☐ SATISFACTORY
VIII. OVERALL TEACHER EVALUATION:	SATISFACTORY UNSATISFACTORY
I HAVE READ THIS EVALUATION AND DISCUSSED IT WITH MY EVA	ALUATOR.
Signed: Evaluatee	Date
Signed: Evaluator	Date



WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER GOAL SETTING NON-EVALUATION YEAR

Evaluatee:		Date:
School:		Grade(s)/Subject(s):
	Teachers who are not being evaluated in Article VI – Evaluation 1.3.8 by the end of	n the current year shall complete this form as described in the first trimester.
I.	plan, who are Gifted and Talented, th with their English Language Proficien	dents in your class(es) who have an IEP, who have a 504 e number of students who are English Learners along cy levels, and each student's level on standardized tests (You may attach a report from an approved WSD data
II.	Goals for the Year: A. What California Standards for like to address this year?	the Teaching Profession (CSTP) element(s) would you
	B. What is your specific goal for t	this CSTP element?

	C.	How will your CSTP goal impact student learning?
	D.	What are the action steps you plan to take to achieve your CSTP goal?
	E.	What forms of professional development and/or support will you seek to assist you with creating a personal action plan to achieve your CSTP goal(s)? (e.g. observe peers, additional collaboration time, read research, action research, or attend formal professional development sessions)
III.	This	f-Year Teacher Reflection: section is for reflective use by the teacher. A final copy should be shared with the inistrator. As a result of this goal setting inquiry, what was the impact on your instructional/classroom practices and/or student achievement?
	В.	Describe how you will apply what you learned in pursuing your goal to future practice.

MONTHLY ATTENDANCE REPORT

District: 060 WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT

HUMAN RESOURCES CERTIFICATED

060tholloway 060 * 12/3/2010

Printed At: 2:44:28PM Page No.: 2

CERTIFICATED HUMAN RESOURCES

Page No. : 2 Printed By User ID: 060tholloway

LAST NAME, FIRST NAME

600000xxxx

CERTIFICATED

			* November 2000		il o to griffe solo (e.g.).	
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Frl	Sat
	01	02	03	04	81: 7:30 hours 05	08
07	08	09	10	[Prog Class] 11	Prog Close) 12 F: 7:30 hours	13
14	15	PN: 7:30 hours 16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	[Prog Close] 24	(Prog Close) 25	[Prog Close] 26	27
28	29	30				

I have reviewed and hereby approve the employee's monthly attendance report.

I certify that my monthly attendance report is true and correct.

Supervisor's Signature	Date	Emp	loyee's Signature		
Vacation and Sick Leave Balances	BEGINNING	EARNED	TAKEN	ENDING	
SICK LEAVE	663:00	0:00	15:00	648:00	
VACATION	0:00	0:00	0:00	0:00	
COMP TIME	0:00	0:00	0:00	0:00	
Other Balances				4.	
FURLOUGH	7:3	o			

HEALTH/SAFETY HAZARD NOTICE

Date:	Location:	Supervisor:	
			_
Observer:	Work Place:	Date:	
Observer: Submit white and yellow cople	es to Supervisor; pink copy to Director of Main	ntenance, Operations and Transportation.	
Supervisor:	Work Place:	Date:	
Supervisor: Send white copy to Director	of Maintenance, Operations and Transportati	on after completion.	

B-19

		ਮ	A Including MA	\$67,176	\$71,155	\$75,136	\$79,115	\$83,096	\$87,074	\$91,057	\$95,035	\$99,016	\$102,996	\$106,976	\$106,976	\$110,957	\$110,957	\$114,939	\$114,939	\$114,939	\$114,939	\$114,939	\$118,920	\$118,920	\$122,903	\$122,903	\$122,903	\$131,194	\$131,194	\$131,194	\$131,194	\$131,194	\$131,194	19/23
		Ħ	BA + 45 OR MA	\$65,814	\$68,869	\$71,923	\$74,976	\$78,028	\$81,081	\$84,137	\$87,191	\$90,244	\$95,047	\$95,047	\$95,047	\$99,099	\$99,099	\$101,540	\$101,540	\$101,540	\$101,540	\$101,540	\$106,571	\$106,571	\$111,372	\$111,372	\$111,372	\$111,372	\$111,372	\$111,372	\$111,372	\$111,372	\$111,372	Board Approval 1/19/23
		D-2	BA + 30 With Credential	\$64,456	\$66,874	\$69,293	\$71,715	\$74,135	\$76,556	\$78,976	\$81,398	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$88,160	\$88,160	\$88,160	\$88,160	\$88,160	\$91,225	\$91,225	\$91,225	\$91,225	\$91,225	\$94,285	\$94,285	\$94,285	\$94,285	\$94,285	\$100,408	В
L DISTRICT CHEDULE		D-1	BA + 30 Without Credential	\$59,426	\$62,474	\$65,524	\$68,573	\$71,624	\$74,668	\$77,716	\$80,768	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	\$83,818	
WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE 2022-2023	100 DAIS	C-2	BA + 15 With Credential	\$63,093	\$64,778	\$66,466	\$68,154	\$69,842	\$71,525	\$73,212	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$78,917	\$78,917	\$78,917	\$78,917	\$78,917	\$81,695	\$81,695	\$81,695	\$81,695	\$81,695	\$84,480	\$84,480	\$84,480	\$84,480	\$84,480	\$90,040	y 1, 2022
WEST TEA		C-1	BA+15 Without Credential	\$55,550	\$58,312	\$61,080	\$63,844	\$66,608	\$69,374	\$72,138	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	\$74,901	rease effective Jul
		B-2	Bachelors Degree With Credential	\$61,730	\$62,535	\$63,339	\$64,142	\$64,947	\$65,750	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$70,243	\$70,243	\$70,243	\$70,243	\$70,243	\$72,732	\$72,732	\$72,732	\$72,732	\$72,732	\$75,223	\$75,223	\$75,223	\$75,223	\$75,223	\$80,209	2022-2023: 7.5% Increase effective July 1, 2022
		B-1	Bachelors Degree Without Credential	\$51,674	\$54,156	\$56,633	\$59,114	\$61,595	\$64,076	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	\$66,553	
			STEP	1	7	3	4	S	9	7	∞	6	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	

WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT STATE PRESCHOOL TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE	DOUBLE SESSION
--	----------------

2022-2023 186 DAYS

	V	B	0	a	o)
STEP	60-89 Units	90 or More Units Without BA	BA Without Credential	BA With Regular Elementary Credential	BA + 30 With Regular Elementary Credential
1	\$47,309	\$50,197	\$53,088	\$55,383	\$61,052
2	\$49,674	\$52,710	\$55,636	\$57.795	\$64,185
3	\$52,159	\$55,344	\$58,184	\$60,206	\$67,318
77	\$54,768	\$58,111	\$60,733	\$62,621	\$70,449
S	\$57,507	\$61,015	\$63,281	\$63,426	\$73,584
9	\$60,382	\$64.068	\$65,830	\$66,021	\$76,712
7	\$63,402	\$67,270	\$68,376	\$68,376	\$79,841
90	\$63,402	\$67,270	\$68,376	\$68,376	\$82,977
6	\$63,402	\$67,270	\$68,376	\$68,376	\$86,111
10	\$63,402	\$67,270	\$68,376	\$68,376	\$86,111
=	\$63,402	\$67,270	\$68,376	\$68,376	\$86,111
12	\$63,402	\$67,270	\$68,376	\$68,376	\$86,111
13	\$63,402	\$67,270	\$68,376	\$68,376	\$86,111
14	\$63,402	\$67,270	\$68,376	\$68,376	\$86,111
15	\$66,263	\$69,213	\$72,164	\$72.164	\$90.571
16	\$66,263	\$69,213	\$72,164	\$72,164	\$90,571
17	\$66,263	\$69,213	\$72,164	\$72,164	\$90,571
18	\$66,263	\$69,213	\$72,164	\$72,164	\$90,571
61	\$66,263	\$69,213	\$72,164	\$72,164	\$90,571
20	\$68,912	\$71,821	\$74,722	\$74,722	\$93,726
21	\$68,912	\$71,821	\$74,722	\$74,722	\$93,726
22	\$68,912	\$71,821	\$74,722	\$74,722	\$93,726
23	\$68,912	\$71,821	\$74,722	\$74,722	\$93,726
77	\$68,912	\$71,821	\$74,722	\$74,722	\$93,726
25	\$71,669	\$74,476	\$77,284	\$77,284	\$96,864
26	\$71,669	\$74,476	\$77,284	\$77,284	\$96,864
27	\$71,669	\$74,476	\$77,284	\$77,284	\$96,864
28	871,669	\$74,476	\$77,284	\$77,284	\$96,864
23	871,669	\$74,476	\$77,284	\$77,284	\$96,864
2.0	007 100	100.000	EUF COS	50V C83	NS1 2013

2022-2023: 7.5% Increase effective July 1, 2022

Board Approval Jan 19, 2023

WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT PSYCHOLOGIST SALARY SCHEDULE 2022-2023 186 DAYS

	D	E	F
STEP	BA + 30	BA + 45 or MA	MA +15 or BA + 60 Including MA
1	\$74,193	\$87,531	\$100,864
2	\$78,384	\$91,572	\$104,059
3	\$82,572	\$95,617	\$107,252
4	\$86,761	\$99,658	\$110,446
5	\$90,949	\$103,703	\$113,639
6	\$95,141	\$107,746	\$116,830
7	\$95,141	\$107,746	\$116,830
8	\$95,141	\$107,746	\$116,830
9	\$95,141	\$107,746	\$116,830
10	\$97,234	\$109,769	\$118,427
11	\$97,234	\$109,769	\$118,427
12	\$97,234	\$109,769	\$118,427
13	\$97,234	\$109,769	\$118,427
14	\$97,234	\$109,769	\$118,427
15	\$99,328	\$111,790	\$120,026
16	\$99,328	\$111,790	\$120,026
17	\$99,328	\$111,790	\$120,026
18	\$99,328	\$111,790	\$120,026
19	\$99,328	\$111,790	\$120,026
20	\$103,517	\$115,833	\$123,217
21	\$103,517	\$115,833	\$123,217
22	\$103,517	\$115,833	\$123,217
23	\$103,517	\$115,833	\$123,217
24	\$103,517	\$115,833	\$123,217
25	\$107,706	\$119,875	\$138,002
26	\$107,706	\$119,875	\$138,002
27	\$107,706	\$119,875	\$138,002
28	\$107,706	\$119,875	\$138,002
29	\$107,706	\$119,875	\$138,002
30	\$115,982	\$129,090	\$138,002
	2022-2023: 7.5% Increase eff	ective July 1, 2022	Board Appro Jan 19, 20

WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT SPEECH AND LANGUAGE PATHOLOGIST SALARY SCHEDULE 2022-2023

186 DAYS 7 hours 45 minutes

	D	E	F
STEP	BA + 30	BA + 45 or MA	MA +15 or BA + 60 Including MA
1	\$77,400	\$86,167	\$92,111
2	\$81,705	\$90,953	\$97,221
3	\$86,004	\$95,742	\$102,350
4	\$90,311	\$100,536	\$107,449
5	\$94,608	\$105,315	\$112,569
6	\$98,916	\$110,100	\$117,682
7	\$98,916	\$110,100	\$117,682
8	\$98,916	\$110,100	\$117,682
9	\$98,916	\$110,100	\$117,682
10	\$101,321	\$112,776	\$120,544
11	\$101,321	\$112,776	\$120,544
12	\$101,321	\$112,776	\$120,544
13	\$101,321	\$112,776	\$120,544
14	\$101,321	\$112,776	\$120,544
15	\$103,724	\$115,451	\$123,407
16	\$103,724	\$115,451	\$123,407
17	\$103,724	\$115,451	\$123,407
18	\$103,724	\$115,451	\$123,407
19	\$103,724	\$115,451	\$123,407
20	\$108,047	\$120,252	\$128,546
21	\$108,047	\$120,252	\$128,546
22	\$108,047	\$120,252	\$128,546
23	\$108,047	\$120,252	\$128,546
24	\$108,047	\$120,252	\$128,546
25	\$112,365	\$125,060	\$143,969
26	\$112,365	\$125,060	\$143,969
27	\$112,365	\$125,060	\$143,969
28	\$112,365	\$125,060	\$143,969
29	\$112,365	\$125,060	\$143,969
30	\$120,998	\$134,673	\$143,969
,	.022-2023: 7.5% Increase ε	offective July 1, 2022	Board Approv Jan 19, 20:

CHECKLIST

isted. By doing this you are acknowledging column that you have completed each item that you have completed each procedure Please read and check in the appropriate according to the appropriate guidelines.

- Purchase Requisition. Amount(s) not covered a. Advance paymentfor items not covered by a must exceed \$25.00.
- Check yes- after you have made all conference arrangements, i.e. transportation, lodging, substitute, registration. ó
- for registration to be paid by the district in <u>one</u> of the following methods. Checkyes- if a Purchase Requisition is attached
- If the vendor (who you make the check/PO Purchase Requisition #. The PO# and the Purchasing will ask for the vendor and the noted in the conference brochure or you Requisition). The Purchase Requisition may call the vendorto ask) with a PO# date are to be noted in the appropriate to) will accept registration (sometimes over the phone then you must call the must have the following information: Purchasing Department for a PO #. area (bottom left of the Purchase

Name of the conference four name

Date(s) of attendance

ocation

How you registered (phone, faxed, mail) Confirmation number if available Date you registered

To whom you spoke

The vendorwill only accept your registration with a hard copy of the PO or a check in advance of the conference. You will d

(provided within the conference brochure) and you will attach a completed registration form not call Purchasing for a PO # however, you will note this on the registration. In addition, a Purchase Requisition. The Purchase Requisition must have the following information.

Name of the conference Date(s) of attendance Your name Location please note on the Purchase Requisitionaccompany registration" or "per vendor a per vendor a hard copy of the PO must check must accompany registration-no PO's accepted" (which ever applies) Attach the completed registration form and completed Purchase through h. are self explanatory Requisition with all notations.

After attending the conference, you must advance—failure to do so may put future appropriate itemized receipts within 10 days even if you have requested an conference approvals/advances in submit an expense claim with the eopardy If further clarification of these procedures is necessary, please contact Educational Services, ext. 457 or 484

Quick Reference:

- All itemized receipts required
- Local conferences need only minimum paperwork
- Car pooling not required
- Oral/written reports not required
- Double occupancy for overnight lodging no longer required
 - Increased dinner amount
- Local conference mileage claimed on quarterly mileage log



onferen

uidelines

You do not need a "Request to Attend Conference" if you would like to attend a local conference, workshop, or training:

For which there is no cost to the district

You do need a "Request to Attend Conference" for any event which:

- Incurs a charge to the district excluding substitute and mileage
 - Over \$500.00
- Out of state

Note: A Purchase Requisition is required for all events that incur cost to the district If you are in doubt whether or not you should fill out "A Request to Attend..." please call Educational Services, ext. 457 or 484

In all cases- you are responsible for:

- Requesting approval from your Principal/Supervisor
 - Requesting your substitute
- Completing all necessary paperwork

P-30 Revised 12/03 Educational Services, ext. 457

ATTENDEE INFORMATION

- PRINTED NAME (one individual only) Print your name. Each 'Request to Attend Conference' is to be used for one individual only.
- SIGNATURE Sign your name.

κi

- DATE OF REQUEST Enter the date you complete this form.
- SITE Enter yourschool name, or the name of your department.
- JOB TITLE Enter your specific job title, i.e. Principal, Teacher, Paraeducator, Health Assistant etc.
- GRADE LEVEL If you teach a grade level, please enter here.

BUDGET INFORMATION

- BUDGET NUMBER List the entire budget. number on this line. Please ask your supervisor for the appropriate funding source.
- PROGRAM NAME List the entire name of the program.
- BUDGET APPROVAL (signature of Program Administrator) — After completion of your entire form and approval by your Supervisor, forward the original form and proper attachments to the Program Administrator in charge of the budget that is being charged.
- SUPERVISOR APPROVAL After completion of your entire form, submit to your Supervisor for approval.
- As you are completing this form and requesting approval, keep in mind these guidelines:
- a. Conferences that are local and for which
 your total expenses will be \$500 or less
 should be submitted to the Program
 Administrator responsible for the budget
 being charged at least 20 days before the
 date of the conference.

- b. Conferences over \$500 or out of state should be submitted to the Program Administrator responsible for the budget being charged at least four weeks before the next scheduled Board meeting. (Meetings are normally held on the first Thursday of each month.)
- When the form is completed and the necessary arrangements made forward your request to Educational Services.

CONFERENCE INFORMATION

- 11. FULL NAME OF CONFERENCE—
 Enter the entile name of the conference you will be attending exactly how it appears on the brochure. Acronyms are not acceptable. You must spell out the entire name.
- 12. LOCA TION (city/state) Enter the city and the state in which the conference is held. Any out of state conference must have prior approval by the Westminster School District Board of Trustees. If your conference is out of state, allow enough time for your paperwork to be processed after approval by the Board of Trustees. This is especially critical if conference registration is to be paid in advance (per vendor), or you are requesting an advance.
- 13. DATE(s) OF ATTENDANCE—Enter the actual date(s) of the conference, unless you will be traveling and have been approved by your supervisor to arrive the day before the conference begins. In that instance, enter the

day you will arrive at your place of lodging. In the event your conference is scheduled to last through a time when return transportation is not possible that same day, enter the day you are expected to return. This information will be verified by your supervisor and Educational Services based on the brochure that you attach to your "Request to Attend Conference".

- 14. CHECK <u>ALL</u> ESTIMATED

 EXPENSES YOU EXPECT TO

 INCUR- RECEIPTS ARE MANDATORY

 FOR ALL EXPENSES (except mileare)
- Registration-enter the total registration cost for the conference or meeting

æ

- b. Travel:
- miteage. you may be reimbursed for mileage from your site location or from your home, whichever is less. Mileage should be claimed on a quarterly mileage log.
- packing... allow for the total approximate cost of parking car. rental- allow for the total approximate cost of renting a
- shuttledaxi-enter the total approximate cost (ask driver for receipt)
- audate.complete and submit a
 "Purchase Requisition" to pay the
 travel agency or airline. If <u>you</u>
 pay for the ticket, you will be
 reimbursed when you submit

- your expense claim. The mailing of tickets will not be an allowable expense.
- c. Lodging-enter the total lodging expense.
 You will be reimbursed for pre-approved lodging expenses. The district will not pay in advance for lodging. You will be responsible formaking a deposit. Be sure you ask what the total will be including tax.
- d. Meals for local conferences, workshops, or trainings will no longer be compensated.
 Meals that have compensation will follow these guidelines:
- Enter the approximate cost of meals. You will not be reimbursed for alcohol. Allowable expenses <u>may not exceed</u>:
- breakfast-\$15.00 lunch-\$20.00 dinner-\$30.00
- If the conference provides a meal (including continental breakfast) you may not turn in a receipt for that meal, i.e., lunch is provided by the conference but you prefer to eat elsewhere... you may not turn in that receipt. Tips: 15% gratuity may be included (written amount acceptable) towayse, the total amount reimbursed may not exceed the amounts isted above.
- e. Other-special events not covered in the cost of the registration, i.e., short courses, special seminars, and workshops. A Purchase Order will not be given to purchase "materials/kits" at a conference. At the discretion of your supervisor you may make purchases and be reimbursed following the proper procedure (furning in the signed receipt along with a buy out).
- Substitute- if you require a substitute, please call Debi Watson, ext. 444. She will ask you for the funding source. Your Principal and/or Coordinating Teacher will provide this information to you.

Westminster School District

"REQUEST TO ATTEND CONFERENCE"

(Please refer to the "Conference Guidelines" for detailed information on filling out this form)

ATTENDEE INFORMATION

1.	2.					3.		
4.	PRINTED NAME (ONE INDIVIDUAL ONLY) SIGNAT	TURE				 6.	DATE OF	REQUEST
-T.	SITE JOB TI	TLE				_	GRADE I	EVEL
	BUDGET IN	FORMATION	V					
7.		8.						
• •	BUDGET NUMBER		GRAM N	AME	,			
9.		10.						
	BUDGET APPROVAL (Signature of Program Administrator)		ERVISOF	R APPRO	OVAL.		··· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	CONFERENCE	INFORMAT	ION					
11.		III VIMAI	1011					
1 1.	FULL NAME OF CONFERENCE						-	
12.			13.					
14.	LOCATION (City/State)			DATE(s)	OF ATTEND	ANCE		
				• • •			PO#	
			[APPROX	MATE		/C. USE
14.	CHECK ALL ESTIMATED EXPENSES YOU EXPECT TO INCUR	YE	5	NO	cos	T	ONLY	
+	14a. Registration (attach original or copy of brochure w/registration p	age)			\$		PR#	
+	14b. Travel (mileage, parking, car rental, shuttle, taxi, airfare)				\$	•		
+	14c. Lodging				\$		1	
+					\$		 	
т	14d. Meals (no reimbursement for attending local conferences) 14e. Other (Specify): short courses, seminars, materials necessary to	· · ·			Ψ			
+	attend conference, workshop, training				\$			-
	14f. Substitute (budget #:				\$			
	ECEIPTS MANDATORY FOR ALL EXPENSES				·			
(E	XCEPT MILEAGE)		T	JATC	\$			
	CHE	<u>CKLIST</u>					(please	check)
15.	The following items must also be completed before turning in this	s form:				Y	ES	NO
	I request advance payment for the items above not covered by a Purci \$25.00)		n. (minim	um adva	nce is			
15b	323.00) I have made my own conference arrangements including registration,	lodging, substitu	ute, etc.	4	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
	I have made my own conference registration arrangements by one of	the following me						
	1. Requested a PO# from Purchasing or Special Projects to pay regis	stration.						
	<u>Or</u>							
	Attached the completed registration form and completed a Purchar make my conference reservation. This is only done if vendor wi	se Requisition r II not take a P(equesting O # bv pl	j that the sone, fas	district t. or mail or			
	to avoid late charges.							
15d	 I have attached a brochure and two copies of the conference request, request if you expect a copy back with your confirmation otherwise-ju- 				onference		j	
15e	On the Purchase Requisition, I have noted the PO# (bottom left of Pur	chase Requisiti	on), meti	od of re	gistration	1		
	(phoned, faxed or mailed), to whom that information was confirmed, th	e date it was do	one and a	ttached	the			
4 E.F	registration form. I understand that my expenses are not to exceed the amount(s) reque	otad and that n	ov ovogo	na elaim	with encoloin			***************************************
IOI.	must be received by the district office within 10 days of the last date of							
45	jeopardize future conference approvals/advances.					-		<u>.</u>
159	 I understand that this completed request should be submitted for completed. 4 weeks prior to the board meeting if the conference is \$500.00 or) :					
	2. 20 days in advance if the conference is less than \$500.00			•		<u> </u>		
15h	 I understand that if any item on this form is incomplete, it will be return the processing of this request. 	ed to me, and p	ossibly c	leley or p	prevent			
•	FOR EDUCATIONAL SERVICES	AND ACCO	NTNUC	IG USE	ONLY:			
Boa	rd Approval Date: Recomm	ended:						
			Ass	sistant 8	Superintend	ent, Edi	ıcational	Services
	Vendor#:							

WESTMINSTER SCHOOL DISTRICT

INTRA-SCHOOL TRANSFER REQUEST FORM

Request for: Fall ~or~ Spring Semester

(please circle requested semester above)

Name	School	Date	
if vacancies occur.	level positions/subjects at this site f		
It is understood that teach	ners may revise these forms at any t	ime during the school year.	
Per the Collective Bargai District, the following pro-	ining Agreement between the Westrocedure will be followed:	ninster Teachers Association a	nd the Westminster School
reassignment fro	by is posted, the immediate supervise om the teachers at the site and confe ade to conference with the teacher a	rence with the teacher during t	hese written requests for he school year. A reasonable
NOTE: THIS MAY BE BE CONSIDERED FOR	YOUR ONLY OPPORTUNITY TO R A VACANCY, SHOULD ONE O	O NOTIFY YOUR PRINCIPA CCUR DURING THE NEXT	ALS THAT YOU WANT TO SEMESTER.
Received by:	(Principal's signature)	Date:	
	(Principal's signature)		
After Principal signs r	receipt of this form, a copy will be r	eturned to the requestor (teach	ner)
(Rev. 2/08)			

****THIS FORM HAS BEEN REPLACED BY ASSIGNMENT PREFERENCE FORM (GOOGLE FORM) SEE PAGE 127***********

Memorandum of Understanding

Westminster Teachers Association (WTA/Association) and
Westminster School District (WSD/District)
Health and Welfare Benefits

Westminster School District Health and Welfare Benefits Committee (Committee)

- 1. Purpose/Goal(s): The purpose of this Committee shall be to monitor and coordinate the District's health and welfare benefits/insurance program(s). The goal of the Committee is to maintain and/or improve the employees' benefits/insurance program, while at the same time remaining cognizant of and/or responsive to the cost of the program(s).
- 2. Composition: The voting membership of the Committee shall consist of three (3) representatives of the Certificated Bargaining Unit, two (2) representatives of the Classified Bargaining Unit and three (3) District representatives, two of who may be the District Risk Manager and the Chief Business Official.

Non-voting advisory members may be included on the Committee as deemed necessary by the voting members of the Committee.

3. Rules of Operation: It is the intent, whenever possible, that any and all alterations of the District's health and welfare benefits/insurance program(s) be reviewed by the Committee. Decisions/recommendations of the Committee are advisory only. Final decisions regarding health and welfare benefits/insurance program(s) shall be directed from and decided by the respective parties' negotiations teams.

The Committee shall meet at least quarterly, or more often, as determined by the Committee members.

Information that has been received from insurance carriers and/or service providers, including utilization, financial and market data, shall be shared among all parties and with all Committee members in order to promote open communication and further support the purpose and goals of the Committee.

The Committee shall adopt additional rules of operations, processes and procedures as it deems necessary to effectively and efficiently conduct its business.

Fiscal Rebates from Self Insured Schools of California (SISC)

The District and Association mutually agree that after having entered into a purchasing agreement with SISC, in the circumstance that a rebate of employee related health and welfare benefit/insurance dollars were to be returned to the District, these funds would be prorated among the respective active employee groups. The groups a part of this agreement include: certificated; classified; classified and certificated management; and confidential staff, as they exist at the time the rebate occurs. The funds shall be prorated proportionally based on the number of active employees in each group. The use of these one time funds/rebates would be limited to providing health and welfare benefits and would be subject to negotiations.

BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE

The WSD will convene a Budget Advisory Committee that will include representatives from WTA, CSEA, PTA, K-8 principals and at least one Board member. Meetings will be held quarterly commencing September, November, February, May and quarterly thereafter. The purpose of the committee is to ensure good communications and awareness among stakeholders regarding the WSD budget and the factors that impact its revenue and expenditures. The goal is to provide all district partners information and to encourage their input to explore long term district fiscal solvency and strength. (Date, times to be determined.)

A Revenue Generating/Cost Containment Committee will be composed on an equal number of District, and Association representatives to consider/explore ways to generate increased revenue/and reduce expenditures to the General Fund. The committee will provide advisory information to the Budget committee as its regularly-scheduled meetings.

Guidelines for Spring At-Risk Conferences

Elementary School

Spring conferences will be held on Thursday, March 29 and Friday, March 30, 2012 following each site's Wednesday schedule.

Teachers must meet with students with retention paperwork in progress.

In order to prioritize conference time, please follow the following criteria:

- 1. Students receiving a 1 in Reading, Writing and/or Math
- 2. Students receiving a 2 in Reading, Writing and/or Math
- 3. Students receiving a 1 in Science or H/SS

RSP teachers meet with students and families based on the child's grades and IEP goals. Please coordinate with colleagues for at-risk students.

Please use professional discretion in meeting with additional students in your classroom if time remains, consider:

- 4. Students receiving a 2 in Science or H/SS
- 5. Students who scored in the 25th percentile or lower on DIBELS
- 6. Students whose CELDT results remained the same or decreased one CELDT level

Guidelines for Spring At-Risk Conferences

Middle School

Spring conferences will be held on Thursday, March 29 and Friday, March 30, 2012 following each site's Wednesday schedule.

<u>Preparation for the Conference:</u>

- The school office will run a list of students with GPAs 2.0 and below.
- As in the fall, the homeroom teacher will lead the conference. Please invite students and their parents to join you.
- Teachers must meet with:
 - a. Students whose school wide GPA is 2.0 and below.
 - b. If any time remains, please use professional discretion in meeting with additional students in your home room.
 - c. RSP teachers meet with students and families based on the child's GPA and IEP goals. Please coordinate with grade level colleagues for at-risk students.

During the Conference:

- To build ownership and responsibility for their own learning, students are to be included in the conference.
- The Goal Setting Conference form should be used as the foundation for the conference; consider discussing Jupiter grades with the family.

The site principal will help to problem solve scheduling when any one homeroom teacher is overloaded.

Westminster School District **Certificated Stipend Table** Amended July 1, 2021

Flat Rate Stinend B	Percentage applied to	Column R-2 sten 1 a	f Teacher Salary	Schedule \$57 423
iriul kule slibellu r	rencentique applieu to	COIUIIIII D-Z. SLED I O	i leucilei Suluiv	JUITEURIE JJ/,423

Site Stip	pend - Flat Rate: Al	l Levels		
<u>Assignment</u>	Max # per site	Stipend %	<u>Duration</u>	<u>Paid</u>
Assessment Coordinator	1	1.83%	2 Years	10 Months
Technology Coordinator	1	1.83%	2 Years	10 Months
School Leadership Team	8	1.40%	2 Years	10 Months
District S	Stipend - Flat Rate :	All Lovels		
			Duration	Paid
<u>Assignment</u>	<u>Max #</u>	Stipend %	<u>Duration</u> 2 Years	10 Months
Nurse Coordinator	1	4.86%		
Speech and Language Coordinator	1	3.67%	2 Years	10 Months
Science Works Coordinator	1	\$4,000	3 Years	Per Trimeste
Psychologist Coordinator	1	3.67%	2 Years	10 Months
Counselor Coordinator	1	3.67%	2 Years	10 Months
Autism Coordinator	2	3.67%	2 Years	10 Months
Stinen	d - Hourly Rate : All	Levels		
Assignment	Max # per site	Stipend	Duration	Paid
PBIS Coordinator	1	≤15 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitt
GATE Coordinator	1	≤15 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitt
EL Coordinator	1	≤15 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitt
AVID Coordinator	1	≤15 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitt
Thinking Maps/Writing Trainer	2	≤15 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitt
SST Coordinator	1	≤20 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitt
China	al Constalined All I	Laviala		
	d - Specialized All I		l	5.11
Assignment	Max # per site	Stipend %	<u>Duration</u>	Paid 10 Manualla
Doctorate	N/A	1.83%	Perpetual	10 Months
Special Education Teacher	N/A	1.74%	Perpetual	10 Months
Adaptive Physical Education	N/A	0.83%	Perpetual	10 Months
BCLAD Utilization in Dual Language Immersion Program	N/A	1.83%	Perpetual	
School Registered Nurse Stipend	N/A	8.71%	Perpetual	10 Months
Assignment	Max # per site	Stipend	Duration	Paid
Elementary Science Camp	2	\$125/Day	3 days	Upon Comple
	chool Enhancemen		T	
Assignment	Max # per site	Stipend	Duration	Paid
After School Competition Coach	N/A	\$600*	Season	Time Submit
After School Club	N/A	\$400**	Club	Time Submit
Referee (per game)	8 per week	\$50	Game	Time Submit

^{**} Club stipend is based on \$400 one time per week, \$800 two times per week, two days per week maximum.



WSD Stipend Position Application

School: _____

ne: Date:				
lease check the extra duty/stipendefer to contract language for the	selection pro	ocess.		rested in for
at Rate Stipend Percentage applied to Column B-2,			de \$57,423	
	pend - Flat Rate: Al	l Levels		
<u>Assignment</u>	Max# per site	Stipend %	Duration	<u>Paid</u>
Assessment Coordinator	1	1.83%	2 Years	10 Mionths
Technology Coordinator	1	1.83%	2 Years	10 Months
School Leadership Team	8	1.40%	2 Years	10 Months
District 9	Stipend - Flat Rate:	All Levels		
Assignment	Max #	Stipend %	Duration	Paid
Nurse Coordinator	1	4.86%	2 Years	10 Months
Speech and Language Coordinator	1	3.67%	2 Years	10 Months
Science Works Coordinator	1	\$4,000	3 Years	Per Trimester
Psychologist Coordinator Counselor Coordinator	1	3.67%	2 Years 2 Years	10 Months 10 Months
Autism Coordinator	2	3.67%	2 Years	10 Months
Stipen	d - Hourly Rate: All	Levels		
Assignment	Max#persite	Stipend	Duration	Paid
PBIS Coordinator	1	≤15 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitted
GATE Coordinator	1	≤15 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitted
EL Coordinator	1	≤15 Hrs	2 Years	Time Sulbmitted
AVID Coordinator	1	≤15 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitted
Thinking Maps/Writing Trainer	2	≤15 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitted
SST Coordinator	1	\$20 Hrs	2 Years	Time Submitted
Ctiman	nd - Specialized All I	anals		
Assignment	Max # per site	Stipend %	Duration	Paid
Doctorate	N/A	1.83%	Perpetual	10 Months
	N/A	1.74%		10 Months
Special Education Teacher Adaptive Physical Education	N/A	0.83%	Perpetual Perpetual	10 Mionths
BCLAD Utilization in Dual Language Immersion Program	N/A	1.83%	Perpetual	10 Months
School Registered Nurse Stipend	N/A	8.71%	Perpetual	10 Months
action registered volume atthesia	nyn.	0.7 170	respectati	TO IMPOUNDED
Assignment	Max#persite	Stipend	Duration	Paid
Elementary Science Camp	2	\$125/Day		Upon Completion
		+ /		
Stipend - Sc	chool Enhancemen	t Middle Scho	loi	
<u>Assignment</u>	Max#persite	Stipend	Duration	<u>Paid</u>
After School Competition Coach	N/A	\$600*	Season	Time Submitted
After School Club	N/A	\$400**	Club	Time Submitted
Referee (per game)	8 per week	\$50	Game	Time Submitted
Coaching stipenals based on a minimum of one day per week of procti				ţ.
 Club stipenal is based on \$400 one time per week, \$800 two times pe 	r week, two days per wee	sk ananimum.		

Approved: _____ (Admin Signature)

To be kept on file at school site after names have been submitted to the District Office for stipend payment.

Westminster School District Stipend Position Descriptions:

Assessment Coordinator (2 school years): open to K-8th grade teachers

- Coordinates with the principal and school leadership team to schedule, implement and monitor state and local assessments
- Coordinates site staff access to the CAASPP website to access SBAC testing (TOMS) and the digital library
- Site liaison between the site and the district office of Accountability and Assessments
- Supports staff with specialized assessments: ELPAC and GATE
- Attends Assessment Coordinator meetings after contracted hours

Technology Coordinator (2 school years)

- Coordinates with the principal to troubleshoot technology issues associated with state and local assessments
- Assists teachers at the site in the use and access of formative and summative data.
- Responsible for the construction and maintenance of the social media
- Support technology use in the classroom by being a resource for teachers at the school site in the use and implementation of educational technology
- Coordinates Digital Citizenship implementation at the site
- Attends Technology Coordinator meetings after contracted hours

School Leadership Team (2 school years)

- Works as part of a shared site decision making team to support student achievement
- Attends district training and monthly site meetings to review MTSS implementation in the areas of academic achievement, behavior and social-emotional skills
- Provides two way communication and leadership to grade level and department PLC groups
- Ensure that grade level members document necessary student information and interventions for possible SST process
- Serves as a site representative of a grade level or department to provide whole school representation for implementing Tier I, II and III interventions and supports

Student Success Team Coordinator (2 school years)

- Schedules and manages the SST meetings
- Invites appropriate SST members
- Gathers applicable student records: discipline, attendance, and health records from student data systems and/or teachers

- Creates an SST student file with student demographic information to record SST goals/actions
- Integrates the information into SEIS system, as applicable
- Maintains the notes during SST meetings

Nurse Coordinator (2 school years)-must hold valid School Nurse credential

- Serves as liaison between the OC Health Department and OCDE and communicates information to nurses and health aides
- · Revises health services forms and policies, as needed
- Attends district and county meetings to review and discuss health and safety issues
- Provides consultation to administrators regarding health and safety issues
- Organizes and facilitates health meetings
- Attends Medi-Cal Collaborative meetings
- Oversees the District Licensed Vocational Nurse (LVN)
- Participates in ongoing collaboration with Student Services administrators
- Monitors scope of practice for what staff can do related to specialized health care services and health related tests
- Review and gathers data and reports mandated information to county and state agencies
- Researches current policies, legislation and health related resources
- Completes necessary forms and applications

Speech and Language Coordinator (2 school years)- must hold valid Speech and Language credential

- Determines department's testing needs and assist the Director, Student Services with coordinating the distribution of testing kits
- Manages interns for the District, communicates with local colleges, and assists with SLPA intern placements
- Supports contact for newly hired SLPs
- Reviews District SLP assessments and provide feedback at the request of Director,
 Student Services to ensure reports are legally defensible
- Assists Director, Student Services with planning and preparing monthly PLCs for SLPs and SLPAs
- Assists Director, Student Services with planning of school assignments and schedules, including caseload review during the school year, for District SLPs and SLPAs, as requested
- Provides consultation to SLPs and SLPAs
- Attends Medi-Cal Collaborative Meetings

Science Works Coordinating Teacher (3 school years)

- Provides local support within the ScienceWorks Consortium (Fountain Valley SD, Huntington Beach City SD, and Westminster SD) to organize, implement and coordinate the district ScienceWorks program that will benefit science instruction for all K-6 students
- Coordinates and develop annual schedules for kit trainings (organized by science content area strand)
- Serves as ScienceWorks liaison for Family Science Night events at Orange Coast College, Golden West College, and other community organizations
- Attends OCDE Middle School Science Networking Meetings (quarterly), OCDE science related meetings and other science meetings across the county
- Serves as liaison to various groups, including, but not limited to: Discovery Science Center, K-12 Alliance, Local District Foundations, and OC Business Roundtable
- Coordinates ScienceWorks training manual updates and duplication of materials
- Attends monthly, after-school ScienceWorks Teacher Collaboration Meetings
- Collaborates with other coordinating teachers to update kits and resources on a regular basis
- Assists with the planning of Family Science Nights within the local school district

P.B.I.S. Coordinator (2 school years)- open to K-8th grade teachers

- Supports the school implementation of the P.B.I.S. framework components with the site school climate team
- Plans and implements the school climate system with the school leadership team including the start of year kick-off events and booster events during the year
- Provides site professional development on the P.B.I.S. framework components
- Attends P.B.I.S. training for site coaches
- Evaluates the site implementation of the framework using the program surveys

GATE Coordinator (2 school years)- open to GATE certified K-6th elementary teachers

- Manages GATE assessment process, including referral paperwork and testing results
- Collaborates with classroom teachers to appropriately screen and refer students for GATE testing
- Ensure parent notification before and after GATE testing
- Coordinates GATE showcase and other parent events
- Attend GATE coordinator district meetings

AVID Coordinator (2 school years) - open to AVID trained K-8 teachers

- Collects data for CCI survey and any data metrics
- Completes all paperwork for the CCI survey which includes all student evidence
- Coordinate the process for student AVID recruitment
- Organizes field trips, contacts colleges, and arranges for transportation
- Assists students with scholarship application
- Administers and proctors the PSAT

- Attends all elective and regular full AVID team meetings, takes notes, and follows through on any tasks such as record keeping
- Presents at site professional development sessions (strategies, data, etc.)

EL Coordinator (2 school years)- open to all K-8th grade teachers

- Attends scheduled English Language (EL) Coordinator meetings to receive ongoing information regarding the district's EL Program and Pathways to Biliteracy
- Understands the design, purpose and use of the California English Language
 Development Standards and Proficiency Level Descriptors and how they work in tandem with the CCSS ELA and Literacy Standards
- Has knowledge of the ELA/ELD Framework
- Provides information and data to administration and teaching staff regarding ELs such as Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) students, Pathways to Biliteracy, and reclassification follow-up forms
- Serves as a liaison between the EL Instructional Support Specialist (EL ISS) and teachers for implementing Integrated and Designated ELD along with scaffolding strategies and resources
- Oversees initial reclassification and reclassification follow-up forms

Thinking Maps/Write from the Beginning Trainer (2 school years)- open to K-8th grade teachers with appropriate training

- Completes the Training of Trainers program (5 days for Thinking Maps is required)
- Collaborates with other trainers in the district to provide follow-up support for teachers
- Provides Thinking Maps training and support for implementation
- Attends Thinking Maps/Write from the Beginning Coordinator meetings after contracted hours

After School Clubs

- Within the first month of the school year and/or within the first month of the 2nd semester, unit members will fill out interest forms for club supervision, delineating dates, hours and times of clubs. Clubs are a minimum of an hour per session, once a week, with a maximum of two days per week per semester.
- Site administration will submit unit members' names that have shown interest to be club supervisors to the district's human resources department to get board approval.
- Club offerings are based on unit member interest forms and approved by the administration.
- Clubs are offered to students during school hours to ascertain interest and for students to sign up.
- Clubs are student led; teachers are advisors/supervisors and are not creating curriculum weekly for the club.
- Weekly sign up sheets are created and provided by the unit member that is the supervisor. Completed sign in sheets are submitted weekly to administration.

- A minimum of 10 students on average must be present during the duration of the club for the unit member to be paid for their service. Payment will be made to the unit member at the conclusion of the club after site administration submits the request to the payroll department.
- In order for the unit member to receive the stipend they must be present for 80% of the total number of club sessions (clubs on average run 12 sessions per semester).
- If student interest or attendance after 4 sessions does not meet the minimum average of 10 students, the club will be dissolved; if the unit member makes the choice to continue the club without the minimum average, they acknowledge they will not be paid a stipend.

After School Coaches

- Unit members will fill out interest forms for after school coaching, delineating dates, hours and times of sports/competitions. Sports/competitions are a minimum of an hour per practice, once a week, with a maximum of two days per week per season.
- Site administration will submit unit members' names that have shown interest to be coaches to the district's human resources department to get board approval.
- Sports/competitions are based on unit member interest forms and approved by the administration.
- Sports/competitions are offered to students during school hours to ascertain interest and for students to sign up and try out.
- Weekly sign up sheets are created and provided by the unit member that is the coach.
 Completed sign in sheets are submitted weekly to administration.
- A minimum of 10 students on average must be present during the duration of the sport/competition for the unit member to be paid for their service. Payment will be made to the unit member at the conclusion of the sport/competition after site administration submits the request to the payroll department.
- In order for the unit member to receive the stipend they must be present for 80% of the total number of practices or games/competitions (two unit members may share the sport/competition and alternate attendance).
- If student interest or attendance after 4 practices does not meet the minimum average of 10 students, the sport/competition will be dissolved; if the unit member makes the choice to continue the sport/competition without the minimum average, they acknowledge they will not be paid a stipend.

Assignment Preference Form

This form is designed to solicit your input regarding your current assignment. Article 7, Section 6.4 of your collective bargaining agreements states that teacher preference is a portion of the decision-making process when movement is necessary.

	required to grade level Mark only o									
	You may or	nly choos	e a grade	one time. '	You may ch	noose your	current gi	rade level b	out are not	
7.	What grad	le would	you prefe	er to teach	17*					
	Check all th	at apply.	_ K _	1 _ 2	_ з _	4 5	6			
О.	Please ente grades.			e level ass	ignment. If	you are te	aching a c	ombo, clic	k both	
6.	My current	nocition	n ie2 *							
	Yes No									
	Mark only	one oval								
5.	Are you a	special e	ducation	teacher?						
Cla	mentary ssroom achers	about you	r last five ye formation ye	ars of move	ment in the	ty to give info district as w ssignment c	ell as			
	Spec	ialized P			question 3		aumatian.			
	Stud	ent Servi	ces Suppo	rt Staff	Skip to q	uestion 23				
		•	lassroom 1 I Classroo	Teacher m Teachei	Skip t	o question	12			
	Mark only									
4.	Which job	category	y below b	est descri	ibes your	current W	SD positi	on? *		
	Job Descri									
	whether it make the	was bec change.						-		
3.	If you chec									
	Chang Taugh	ed grade t a comb	level at yo o class du	ur own rec	quest quest/actio	of your sit				
	Check all th		laval dua t	o the requi	aat (a ation	of your olt	a adminia	trator		
2.	Please ch		items bel	ow that h	as happer	red to you	within th	e last 5 ye	ears.	
1.										
1	Disease	ouldo uo	ur firet en	d last nor	no *					
0.00	ease rememb									

(Choose last if not offered at your school)

 \bigcirc

3

5

8.	Would you prefer to teach a combo next year? *				
	Mark only one oval.				
	Yes				
	○ No				
9.	If the answer to the question above was "Yes," please list the combo grade levels.				
10.	If applicable,	in what year did you last teach a combination class?			
11.	I would like to volunteer to be displaced if the need for a displacement arises. *				
	Displacement is defined as moving to another site. If you select "yes," you will have a chance to change your mind prior to the displacement actually occurring if such a displacement became necessary. For further information, please reference Article 7, Section 3 of your collective bargaining agreement.				
	Mark only one	e oval.			
	Yes				
	○ No				
Skip	to question 36				
	Middle School Classroom Teachers	For the purposes of this preference form, think of each subject/grade as being a separate prep. For example, if you teach 6th and 7th grade language arts, you would list them separately. If you teach honors and grade level, list them separately. Please treat language arts two period blocks as one prep. If you teach the same subjects in different grades levels, treat them as separate preps, please. FYI, you will be offered a chance to describe any issues/ concerns or give an explanation concerning this section.			
12.	If you have a b	following general subject areas. * alanced schedule, you will list the second subject/grade level below. Please t apply. More specific information about your current assignment will be v.			
	Check all that a Elective(s) Language Math P.E. Science Social Stu Special Ed	Arts dies			
13.	In my current	assignment, the subject I teach the most is			
		the subject and grade level of the prep you teach the most. In the case of a econd prep below.			
14.	Would you like	e to continue teaching that same subject/grade level?			
	Mark only one	oval.			
	Yes				
	◯ No				
15.	In my current	assignment, I also teach			
	If you teach a s	second subject/grade, please enter the subject and grade.			
16.	Would you like	e to continue teaching that same subject/grade level?			
	Mark only one	oval.			
	Yes				
	◯ No				

17.	In my current assignment, I teach If you teach a third subject/grade, please enter the subject and grade.
18.	Would you like to continue teaching these same subject(s)/grade level(s)?
	Mark only one oval.
	Yes No
19.	In my current assignment, I teach If you teach a fourth subject/grade, please enter the subject and grade.
20.	Would you like to continue teaching these same subject(s)/grade level(s)?
	Mark only one oval.
	Yes No
21.	If you chose "No" to any of the questions, please indicate the change you are requesting. This could be simply consolidating your schedule to have fewer preps, trading a subject/grade level out, or any other reasonable substitution. There will be another area below to enter information that you feel you might not have been able to communicate.
22.	I would like to volunteer to be displaced if the need for a displacement arises. * Mark only one oval. Displacement is defined as moving to another site. If you select "yes," you will have a chance to change your mind prior to the displacement actually occurring if such a displacement became necessary. For further information, please reference Article 7,
	Section 3 of your collective bargaining agreement.
23.	Please select your current position below. *
	Mark only one oval.
	School Counselor
	School Nurse
×	School Psychologist
	Speech & Language Pathologist
	Other:
24.	In my current assignment, where is the majority of your time spent? * Please state the location at which you are primarily assigned, if you have more than one with equal time, just pick one. You will list the second site assignment in another question
25.	Would you prefer to continue at this site? *
	Mark only one oval.
	Yes
	○ No
25.	Would you prefer to continue at this site? *
	Mark only one oval.
	Yes No
26.	In my current assignment, I am also assigned to which other site? Please state the location where your secondary assigment lies, if you have more than one with equal time, list one here and one below.
27.	Would you prefer to continue at that site?
	Mark only one oval.
	Yes
	No 129

28.	Please state the location of ye	I am also assigned to which oth our third assignment, if you have o one. You will list the other site ass	ne. If you have more tha		
29.	Would you prefer to contin	ue at that site?			
	Mark only one oval.				
	Yes No				
30.		I am also assigned to which otl your fourth assignment, if you have			
31.	Would you prefer to continue at that site?				
	Mark only one oval.				
	Yes				
	◯ No				
32.	If you chose "No" above, ple	ease describe what you would li	ke instead.		
		assignments. Please specifically you would like to adjust percentaget section.			
Skip	to question 36 Specialized Pr	ograms (TOSA, Dual Language,	, VAPA, PE, etc.)		
33.	Please provide the job descrip	tion that best describes your curre	nt assignment. *		
	Mark only one oval.				
	Dual Language Teacher				
	Teacher on Special Assign	ment			
	◯ VAPA				
	Other:				
			Mark only one oval.		
			Yes		
34.	Do you want to continue on	n in your current assignment? *	No		
35.	If you answered "No," please	e describe your desired change.			
Skip t	to question 36 Additional Information	This section is to allow you to community the form did not allow.	nunicate preferences which		
36.	I would like to talk to my principal	/supervisor. *			
	Mark only one oval.				
	Yes				
	No				
37.	Please add any thoughts he	ere that were not communicate	d above.		

This content is neither created nor endorsed by Google.

Google Forms



Intra-School/Intra-Departmental Form

Article VII, Section 6.5: Upon request by the unit member, the immediate supervisor shall place in writing the reason(s) for the reassignments in the District's Intra-School/Intra-Departmental Form.

Employee Name:	
Supervisor Name:	
Position/Site:	
The administrator will check below the reason(s) that the unit me	ember was selected for reassignment.
□ District Seniority □ Teacher Preference □ Needs of the Students □ Needs of the Educational Program □ Needs of the Staff □ Prior Number of Times a Considered Unit Member Has Between the Please provide a written rational for the reassignment in the space.	
Employee Signature:	Date:
Supervisor Signature:	Date: